Public Document Pack

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 24th November, 2015 at 7.30 pm
Venue: Conference Room,

The Civic Centre, Silver Street,

Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA

MEMBERS

ENFIELD

Council

Contact: Jane Creer / Metin Halil
Committee Administrator

Direct : 020-8379-4093 / 4091
Tel: 020-8379-1000

Ext: 4093 /4091

E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.qgov.uk
metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

Councillors : Dinah Barry, Lee Chamberlain, Jason Charalambous, Dogan Delman,
Christiana During, Christine Hamilton, Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy
(Vice-Chair), Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon (Chair)

N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting
should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be
permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis.

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 23/11/15

AGENDA - PART 1

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the

agenda.

_8)

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 20 OCTOBER 2015 (Pages 1

To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday

20 October 2015.


mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 124) (Pages 9 - 10)

To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways
& Transportation.

4.1  Applications dealt with under delegated powers. (A copy is available in
the Members’ Library.)

15/02026/FUL - LAND END, 18 AND 20, BUSH HILL COTTAGE, BUSH
HILL, LONDON (Pages 11 - 54)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of delegated powers to officers to negotiate
an appropriate level of off-site affordable housing contribution together with
the various obligations as outlined in the report. Subject to the completion of
a S106 Agreement, the Head of Development Management / Planning
Decisions Manager be authorised to grant planning permission subject to
conditions. Should no agreement be reached within 12 weeks, officers be
granted delegated powers to refuse the application.

WARD: Grange

15/03922/FUL - DEEPHAMS SEWAGE WORKS, PICKETTS LOCK LANE,
LONDON, N9 OBA (Pages 55 - 78)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Lower Edmonton

15/04171/RE4 - 4 AND 5, BURLEIGH WAY, ENFIELD, EN2 6AE (Pages
79 - 88)

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be deemed to be granted in
accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992 subject to conditions.

WARD: Town

15/04172/HOU - 74 THE CHINE, LONDON, N21 2EH (Pages 89 - 100)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Grange

15/04050/RE4 - VACANT LAND, MERIDIAN WAY, LONDON, N18 3HE
(Pages 101 - 112)

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be deemed to be granted in
accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992 subject to conditions.

WARD: Upper Edmonton



10.

11.

12.

15/04173/RE4 - WILLOUGHBY LANE GAS WORKS, WILLOUGHBY
LANE, LONDON, N17 ORY (Pages 113 - 124)

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be deemed to be granted in
accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992 subject to conditions.

WARD: Upper Edmonton

15/03266/FUL - ST JOHNS PREP SCHOOL, 497 THE RIDGEWAY,
ENFIELD, EN6 5QT (Pages 125 - 150)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Chase

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(There is no part 2 agenda)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 3

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.10.2015

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 20 OCTOBER 2015

COUNCILLORS
PRESENT Dinah Barry, Lee Chamberlain, Jason Charalambous, Dogan

Delman, Christiana During, Christine Hamilton, Ahmet Hasan,
Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy, Anne-Marie Pearce and Toby

Simon
ABSENT George Savva MBE
OFFICERS: Sharon Davidson (Planning Decisions Manager), Bob Griffiths

(Assistant Director - Planning, Highways & Transportation),
Paula Harvey (Legal Services), Andy Higham (Head of
Development Management) and Kevin Tohill (Planning) and
Metin Halil (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Approximately 15 members of the public, applicant and agent
representatives
Dennis Stacey, Chair — Conservation Advisory Group

205
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Simon, Chair, welcomed all attendees, including Kevin Tohill, who
is to be the new Planning Decisions Manager (North Area) and explained the
order of the meeting.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Savva. Apologies for
lateness were received from Councillor J. Charalambous.

206
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

207
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 22 SEPTEMBER 2015

AGREED the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 22
September 2015 as a correct record.

208
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 100)

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways and
Transportation (Report No. 100).

- 157 -



Page 2

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.10.2015

209
ORDER OF THE AGENDA

AGREED that the order of the agenda be varied to accommodate members of
the public in attendance at the meeting. The minutes follow the order of the
meeting.

210
15/03824/FUL - 291 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4XS

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager (South Area)
clarifying the application site.

2. The application proposed the demolition of the existing two storey rear
addition and the rebuilding of a new extension of comparable scale and
bulk for the provision of further office space.

3. The widening of the extension would prevent vehicle access to the rear

of the property, which currently exists, preventing access to the existing

parking spaces to the rear. Traffic & Transportation were satisfied that
there were sufficient spaces to the front of the property.

Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers.

The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’

recommendation.

o s

AGREED that planning permission be approved, subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

211
15/03613/FUL - 50 SUFFOLK ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4AZ

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager (South Area)
clarifying the application site which proposed the use of the mid
terraced property as an HMO for a maximum of 4 people.

2. The Council adopted policies sets certain criteria against which to
assess such applications. The application met:

o Sufficient dwelling size to accommodate 4 people.

e Bedroom sizes met the minimum requirement of 8 sq.m for a
single bedroom and the combined kitchen/living/dining area is
29.5sg.m above the minimum requirement of 27 sq.m.

e Not to exceed 20% of conversion in any road — no other
properties along the road had been converted.

¢ Not lead to unacceptable noise and disturbance. The occupation
of a maximum of 4 people was unlikely to be any different if the

- 158 -



Page 3
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.10.2015

property remained in single family occupation. A condition is
recommended limiting occupancy to 4, which is in place.
e There would be minimal net change in demand for car parking
compared to use as a single family dwelling.
The statement of Councillor Don McGowan, Ponders End Ward
Councillor, against the application, which was tabled and read out by
Councillor Ayfer Orhan, Ponders End Ward Councillor.
The statement of Councillor Ayfer Orhan, Ponders End Ward
Councillor, against the application. All three Ponders End Ward
Councillors opposed the application, including Councillor Doug Taylor
(Leader of the Council).
The deputation of Stephen Dupey (applicant).
The comments of Dennis Stacey, Chair of CAG.
Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. Concerns
were raised regarding the level of occupancy, anti-social behaviour and
the lack of building control for an HMO property as opposed to a single
occupancy house.
The officers’ recommendation was supported by a majority of the
committee: 9 votes for and 1 abstention.

AGREED that planning permission be approved, subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

212
15/03039/FUL - CHASE FARM HOSPITAL, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD,
EN2 8J1
NOTED
1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager clarifying the

2.

application site.

Outline planning permission had already been granted for the
redevelopment of the site to include the provision of a new hospital.
This proposal sought to provide the temporary buildings on the site
necessary to deliver this and to facilitate the redevelopment.

In terms of tree protection (para 6.6.6.) the Tree Officer was concerned
about the impact of the raised decking to the new café which could
have an impact on the root protection zone of protected trees and the
surfacing works associated with the green gym. This could be
addressed through amendments to the extent of the raised
decking/surfacing and therefore a condition requiring the submission of
further details of this and appropriate tree protection measures is
required (detailed below).

Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. Concerns
were raised regarding the location of the café, the clock tower, green
gym and tree protection.

- 159 -



Page 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.10.2015

5. Following a debate, the wunanimous support of the officers’
recommendation by the committee.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions within
the report and the additional condition below:

Notwithstanding the plans submitted, development shall not commence on the
erection of the temporary café building and associated decking or on the
surfacing works for the green gym, until revised details of the extent of the
decking/surfacing have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority (LPA). The works shall be completed in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the existing trees.

213
15/02727/HOU - 73 AVENUE ROAD, LONDON, N14 4DD

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager (South Area)
clarifying the application site.

2. Councillor Charalambous joined the meeting at 20:05 pm but was
unable to vote on this item due to lateness.

3. Planning permission was originally granted at Planning Committee in

April 2015 for the erection of a two storey side extension, and a part

single part two storey rear extension. The application now proposed a

two storey rear extension 3.5m in depth on the boundary with No.71.

This would not be compliant with the Council’s adopted policies.

The deputation of Mr lan Eggleton (Agent).

Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers.

The officers’ recommendation was supported by the committee: 9 votes

for and 1 abstention.

ook

AGREED that planning permission be Refused.

214
15/02717/FUL - 136 PALMERSTON ROAD, LONDON, N22 8RD

- 160 -



Page 5

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.10.2015

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Head of Development Management clarifying
the application site.

2. The proposed conversion to HMO use was previously occupied as a 7
bed children’s home and would not involve a loss of single family
accommodation.

3. Figures at 6.10, of the report, show the number of converted properties
in the street, which is over 50% which would make it difficult to argue
harm to residential amenity.

4. The standard of residential accommodation exceeded the floor space
requirements of the London Plan.

5. The provision of 1 car parking space. Due to low level of car ownership
in the street, Traffic and Transportation noted that additional parking
demand could be accommodated on street.

6. Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers.

7. The officers’ recommendation was supported by the committee: 7 votes

for and 4 against.

AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions within
the report and the amendment below to condition 2 to read:

The development hereby approved shall be laid out in accordance with the
approved plans and the rooms identified on the approved plans as
‘office/store’ (first floor) and ‘store’ (Attic floor) shall only be used for those
purposes and shall not be used for habitable purposes. There shall be no
deviation from the number, size or mix of bedrooms without the prior approval
in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

215
14/04997/FUL - 150 GREAT CAMBRIDGE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 1PW
NOTED

1. This application was debated at the same time as application ref:

2.

o s

14/04999/FUL, but a separate decision made for each application.
Introduction by the Head of Development Management, summarising
the proposals, and the planning history, and highlighting the key issues.
The only item to report was to apologise for an error in the agent details
which need to be removed.

Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers.

The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’
recommendation.

AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

216

14/04999/FUL - 196 GREAT CAMBRIDGE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 1UQ

- 161 -



Page 6

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.10.2015

NOTED

o g

This application was introduced and debated in parallel with application
ref: 14/04997/FUL, but voted on separately.
Introduction by the Head of Development Management summarising
the proposals and planning history.
Car parking provision was considered acceptable although there was a
requirement by TfL for 12 cycle parking spaces together with cycle
changing facilities. Condition 10 would need to be amended
accordingly.
The only further item to report was to apologise for an error in the agent
details which needed to be removed.
The comments of Mr Dennis Stacey (CAG Chair).
Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers’.
Members’ comments included:

a. that the application would provide a welcome improvement to

both sides of Lincoln Road.

b. Concern regarding the mini model to the front of the building.
The support of a majority of the Committee for the officers’
recommendation: 9 votes for, 1 against and 1 abstention.

AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

217

14/04825/FUL - TRENT BOYS SCHOOL HOUSE, 120 COCKFOSTERS
ROAD, BARNET, EN4 0DZ

NOTED

1.

2.

©~NOo

Introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, summarising the
proposals, and the planning history, and highlighting the key issues.
The use of the school house itself as a dwelling house was granted a
lawful development certificate in September 2013. Planning permission
was granted on appeal in August 2011 and the full appeal decision is
appended to the report.

The proposal provides for the retention of the two protected trees on
the site.

The application no longer includes solar panels to the roof given the
objections raised by the Conservation Officer.

Correction to the description was reported. The description of
development as confirmed with the agent is “Erection of new residential
dwellings”.

The comments of Dennis Stacey, Chair of CAG.

Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers.

The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’
recommendation.

- 162 -



Page 7
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.10.2015

AGREED that subject to the completion of a Section 106 agreement, the
Head of Development Management / Planning Decisions Manager be

authorised to grant planning permission subject to the conditions set out in the
report.

218
FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED that the provisional meeting date of 10 November 2015 would not be
required for a meeting of Planning Committee. The next meeting would
therefore be on 24 November 2015.

1. There will be a site visit to the following 2 planning application sites,
which are due to be determined on the 24 November 2015 Planning
Committee meeting.

The sites visits will be taking place on Saturday 21 November 2015 to
the following sites:

¢ 36 Walsingham Road, Enfield
e 18— 20 Bush Hill, Enfield
Councillors are asked to meet at 09:00am at the first address (36

Walsingham Road, Enfield) and can then move onto the second site,
which is in close proximity to the first address.

- 163 -



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE: AGENDA - PART 1 ITEMm 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE
24.11.2015

REPORT OF:
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways and Transportation

Contact Officer:

Page 9 Agenda Iltem 4

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015/2016 - REPORT NO 124

SUBJECT -

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Planning Decisions Manager
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841

4.1

APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF

4.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 391 applications were determined

between 09/10/2015 and 12/11/2015, of which 313 were granted and 78
refused.

4.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library.

4.2

Background Papers

To be found on files indicated in Schedule.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY
ADVERTISEMENTS DEC

On the Schedules attached to this report | set out my recommendations in
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements. |
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting.

Background Papers

(1)

(2)

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP).

Other background papers are those contained within the file, the
reference number of which is given in the heading to each application.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11 A PAT. 5

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 24" November 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, | Andy Higham Grange

Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson
Mr Sean Newton

Ref: 15/02026/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: Land End, 18 And 20, Bush Hill Cottage, Bush Hill, London

PROPOSAL: Redevelopment of site to provide 4 x 3-storey blocks of 20 self contained flats
comprising 8 x 2-bed, 8 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed with basement car and cycle parking and refuse
storage, balconies to front and rear, solar panels to roof, alteration to vehicle access and
associated landscaping.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mr K Fall Mr Michael Calder
C/O Agent Majesty House
United Kingdom 200 Avenue West
Skyline 120
Braintree
Essex
CM77 7TAA

RECOMMENDATION:

That Members grant delegated powers to officers to negotiate an appropriate level of off-site
affordable housing contribution together with the various obligations as outlined in the report above.
Subiject to the completion of a S106 Agreement, the Head of Development Management / the
Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions
Should no agreement be reached within 12-weeks, officers be granted delegated powers to refuse
the application.




Page 12

Ref: 15/02026/FUL LOCATION: Land End, 18 And 20, Bush Hill Cottage, Bush Hill, London

IEFn

North

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

Council

ENFIELD




1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

Page 13

Site and Surroundings

The application site comprises of three properties, each with a two-storey detached
dwelling, on the northern side of Bush Hill on the junction with Carrs Lane.
Surrounding the site to the north, east and west is the Bush Hill Golf Course, with
Carrs Lane dividing the site from the element of the golf course to the west. To the
south is Bush Hill, with dwellings opposite.

The development site is not located with a Conservation Area, neither does it contain
any listed buildings. A tree preservation order (TPO) covers the entire development
site: LBE ORDER NUMBER 8.

18 Bush Hill

Number 18 Bush Hill, the eastern-most property, is situated on lower ground level to
the remaining two dwellings which form the application site. The dwelling has
benefitted from extensions to the rear and sits 40m back from the back-edge of the
pavement.

The property is served by a driveway with its access point adjacent to the boundary
with Bush Hill Cottage, leading to a large area of hardstanding at the front of the
dwelling.

Immediately to the east is an area of woodland on the adjacent golf course.

Bush Hill Cottage

Bush Hill Cottage is the centrally positioned of the three dwellings. It benefits from
various extensions to the rear but also from a conservatory on its western flank but
which projects beyond the front building line. Although the front building line is similar
to that of 18 Bush Hill, due to the bend in the road, the dwelling is approximately 33m
back from the back-edge of the pavement.

The property is served by a circular driveway accessed from a single point of access
approximately 10m east of the Carrs Lane junction.

The property is well-screened from the road. To the east of the entrance drive the
screening comprises of some mature Leyland cypress while to the west, the hedge is
mostly comprised of Laurel. Significantly, midway between the flank wall and the
boundary with No.18 Bush Hill is a London plane tree approximately 30m in height,
described within the Arboricultural Report as being “a magnificent tree of great
stature and beauty” (p11).

Lane End

Lane End is the eastern-most of the three dwellings and fronts Carrs Lane. The
dwelling benefits from various single storey extensions, some of which are attached
to those serving Bush Hill Cottage.

The property is served by an access which is sited approximately 34m north west of
the junction with Bush Hill and almost directly opposite to the access serving the golf
club.



1.11.

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

3.1

4.1.

4.1.1.

4.1.2.

4.1.3.

Page 14

A solid boundary wall forms the majority of the boundary treatment with Carrs Lane
with some plantings behind.

Proposal

Permission is sought for the redevelopment of site to provide 4 x 3-storey blocks of
20 self-contained flats comprising 8 x 2-bed, 8 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed with basement
car and cycle parking and refuse storage, balconies to front and rear, solar panels to
roof, alteration to vehicle access and associated landscaping. Each block will provide
2 X 2-bed, 2 x 3-bed and 1 x 4-bed.

The two blocks fronting Carrs Lane will have a maximum depth of approximately
22.5m and a width of 18.7m, and will be approximately 9m in height to the top of the
parapet surrounding a flat roof.

The two blocks fronting Bush Hill will have a maximum depth of approximately 21m
and a width of 18.7m, and will be approximately 9m in height to the top of the parapet
surrounding a flat roof.

The second floor will be set back from the front of the building by between 1.8m and
3.6m.

A basement is proposed that will sit below all four blocks. This will provide parking for
26 vehicles and cycle parking for 40 bicycles. Two additional spaces are provided at
surface level for visitors.

Relevant Planning Decisions

Various planning applications have been made in respect of extensions to each of
the dwellings.

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Traffic and Transportation

No objections have been raised subject to securing appropriately worded conditions
relating to access, means of enclosure, electric vehicle charging points, cycle parking
and a construction traffic management plan. It is also advised that the scheme should
be providing a financial contribution relating to the Cycle Enfield project.

Tree Officer

Following some initial objections due to the impact of the development on the health
of the London Plane tree and the quality of the information submitted, it has been
advised that following the receipt of revised plans and supporting information, there
are no objections to the proposed development subject to securing conditions that
will in particular protect the long term health of the London Plane tree.

Housing Development & Renewal

It has been advised that on the basis of Core Poalicy 5, eight units should be
affordable units (rent =6, shared ownership= 2). Two units should be wheelchair
designed units.



4.1.4.

4.1.5.

4.1.6.

4.1.7.

4.1.8.

4.1.9.

4.1.10.

4.1.11.

Page 15

Environmental Health

It has been advised that there are no concerns with regard to noise or air quality. It is
also advised that the desktop contamination study concludes that an intrusive site
investigation should be undertaken. The information has not been submitted,
therefore it should be secured by condition to ensure that contamination does not
pose an unacceptable risk.

Thames Water

It is advised that there are no objections in relation to sewerage and water
infrastructure capacity. In addition, the developer is advised that discharging to a
public sewer, will require the prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services
to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to
the existing sewerage system.

Public Housing, Health, Adult Social Care

It has been advised that 28 parking spaces for 20 flats is considered excessive due
to the location of the site and the proximity of railway stations.

Economic Development

It has been advised that due to the size of the development, an employment and
skills strategy will be required.

SuDS Officer

A drainage plan is required following the London Plan Drainage Hierarchy and a
management plan for all drainage features.

Waste Services

It has been advised that there are no comments to be made.

Metropolitan Police Service

It has been requested that the development adopt the principles of “Secure by Deign
and complies with Sections 1, 2 & 3 of the current SBD New Homes 2014 and Multi
storey dwellings.

The Enfield Society

The following comments have been received:

“Bush Hill is one of the most pleasant residential roads in Enfield. The character
derives from single, good sized dwellings with plenty of greenery. The application
proposes a different form of development, in this instance blocks of apartments. This
would set a precedent for the area rapidly to change into blocks of flats with complete
loss of its special character, as has happened with the Bycullah Estate. The pre-
application submissions indicate the sort of result that could be anticipated. The
current proposal, for maisonettes in four blocks in a modern idiom, is architecturally
acceptable, but his does not alter the fact that it could be rapidly followed by
applications for blocks of flats in various shapes and sizes which would be difficult to



4.1.12.

4.1.13.

4.2.

4.2.1.

Page 16

resist. The Society therefore wishes to object strongly to the application on the
grounds that it would damage the character of this attractive area. We would not
object to redevelopment as single units of an appropriate size and design.”

Ward Clir Neville

Objections are raised for the following reasons:

¢ Flat roofed development out of keeping and character with the road
e Overdevelopment of the site

e Poor design and build quality

e Highway safety

Ward Clir Milne

Objections are raised for the following reasons:

e The proposal neither enhances nor protects the local character, which is
predominantly large detached properties.

e Itis totally out of keeping with any properties in the local vicinity, the design
being more akin to a school or office development, and has no regard or
sympathy with the 1920’s or 1930’s architecture predominant in the area.

e There is a shortage of large family dwellings in the Borough, once lost buildings
of this size will not be replaced resulting in a reduction of availability of such
dwellings.

e To compare this development with a 1960’s Council block on London Road , a
considerable distance away and in an areas of mixed residential and commercial
development, to justify the development is plain wrong. The two sites could not
reasonably be considered like for like in terms of area character.

e This would set a very dangerous precedent for the character of the area, and
would likely result in copycat developments which would change the character of
the area beyond recognition.

Public Response

Letters were initially sent to the occupiers of 56 adjoining and nearby properties in
addition to the posting of site and press publicity. As a result, 22 letters of objection, 1
petition against with 124 signatures (Ward Clirs notified), and 2 letters in support
were received. Following the receipt of some amended plans where two of the
buildings were moved nearer to the road, a further round of consultation was
undertaken on 9 October 2015. As a result, three further letters of objection have
been received. All objections are summarised below:

Impact on character of the area

o Gross overdevelopment of the site.
What about the conservation of Winchmore Hill?

e Out of character of the area which comprises a mix of traditional houses, with
pitched roofs, in a quiet suburban area.

¢ Disingenuous for the applicant to show pictures of flats, in other locations, in
Enfield. Bush Hill contains no flats whatsoever. It is typified by large properties
set in generous plots.

e The four separate blocks are in close proximity to each other. The closeness will
appear as a continuous wall of development as one approaches from either side



Page 17

of Bush Hill. Lack of space between the blocks runs contrary to the prevailing
style of the area.

The whole area is verdant with an abundance of trees. There is no space
between the blocks for trees.

3-storeys is out of scale with neighbouring buildings.

Substantial increase in density, footprint, height, size and massing.
Contemporary modernist design is not in keeping with the area and does not
preserve or enhance the locality.

Proposed flats are of a poor standard design with no architectural merit and re of
monotonous repetitiveness.

The design, being close to the road, will stick out like a sore thumb.
Inappropriate design.

The NPPF does give leeway to consider the prevailing style, rhythm and setting
of the location in which a development is sited. This proposal runs contrary to that
directive.

All properties in Bush Hill are set back from the road with forecourt parking. The
proposal will be situated very close to Bush Hill with an ugly basement entrance.
Substantial loss of mature trees.

No reference to the established pattern of existing buildings in locality.

Massive erosion of the character of the area.

An approval will set a dangerous precedent.

Close to adjoining properties.

Development is too high.

Whole area is verdant with an abundance of trees.

Such a development will be the beginning of the end of Bush Hill as we know it.
Proposed buildings too prominent.

Photographs provided are taken in the summer with a large tree obscuring the
true view.

Concern over the impact of the very large tree.

While not in a conservation area, it is adjacent to a site that does have one listed
building situated on an archaeologically sensitive site and an historic green lane.
Whilst the council is under pressure to build more homes, it does not mean it has
to accept entirely unsuitable projects.

Affect local ecology.

Modern featureless design.

The development will be detrimental to the spacious and open character of the
area, the visual amenities of nearby occupiers, will be an eyesore and contrary to
policies in the Unitary Development Plan.

It will alter the fabric of the area and amount to serious cramming in what is a low
density area.

Although not objecting to a higher density, the scheme should be in the form of
houses and not flats.

Core policy 5 seeks a range of housing sizes and that there is greatest need for
3-bed and 4-bed houses. The scheme provides flats, not houses, of which almost
half are 2-bed flats.

No flatted developments along Bush Hill and Bush Hill Road.

The flats referred to in Bush Hill Park are too distant from the application site to
form its character.

Part of Bush Hill Park is in a conservation area and the character appraisal refers
to how blocks of flats have harmed the character of the area. By allowing the
current scheme we are just repeating the same mistakes.

The design of the proposal does not comply with policy DMD 6 or the London
Plan and the NPPF.



Page 18

We do not want Bush Hill to resemble Cockfosters Road.

Moving the buildings forward make them more prominent and overbearing.
When No.134 Bush Hill was built they had to keep to the building line.

Impact on amenity

Environmental impact of such a large construction.

Noise pollution.

Increase in pollution.

Noise nuisance.

Digging out the basement will cause massive disruption. No information has been
provided as to how this will be mitigated.

Loss of privacy from front balconies.

Loss of outlook.

Highways matters

Insufficient parking for residents and visitors.

Carrs Lane also serves the golf club therefore with only 2 visitor bays, visitors will
park around the triangle, blocking access or impeding sightlines.

The priority tee junction and access to the basement are too near to the bend in
the road and is likely to cause accidents.

The bend by the golf club is a notorious accident black spot. It is a dangerous
blind bend.

Number of vehicular trips the 20 flats would generate looks light.

Significant increase in traffic.

There are many cars parked along the street at night.

The basement area will occupy half of the site. No other properties have
basement parking.

There is the potential for 94 additional cars in the vicinity.

Already difficult to get out of Ringmer Place in the mornings.

Inconceivable that there will be less than 2 cars per flat.

Access to The Orchard and Quakers Walk will be made more difficult with extra
traffic.

Carrs Lane is a pedestrianised country lane used by children, ramblers, dog
walkers, cyclists and will not withstand the increase in traffic.

Inadequate public transport provisions.

Any other matters raised

Existing low water pressure in the road.

Landowners have only financial matters on their mind and not neighbours and the
environment.

Inconsistences in the Planning Statement — reference to Bush Hill as one of the
primary routes into the Town Centre, and reference to a Fairfield Conservation
Area.

Why has no decision yet been made as to the tenure and mix of the units? This
could be critical to their marketing.

Whilst there is no law against demolishing a new build house, it is a waste of
time, money and environmentally unfriendly unless everything is recycled.
Increased danger of flooding.

The applicant states that the flats will be appropriate for people downsizing. Floor
plates, whether for two, three or four bedroom flats are very generous. It is



4.2.2.

5.1.

Page 19

difficult to sustain the argument that the development has a meaningful impact on
the Borough’s housing stock.

Strain on existing community facilities.

Water channels below could affect the development.

Loss of value for surrounding properties.

Insufficient time for objections has been given. More time should be given.

The developers promise a contribution towards Council expenditure elsewhere.

This is a tacit admission that the application does not in itself merit approval.
e Moving the buildings has not addressed concerns over excavation with the RPA
of tree T17 (London plane).

As advised above, two letters of support have been received. One of these is from an
owner of one of the properties, setting out the reasons for the development and the
second letter is from a 46-year resident of the street. Comments are summarised

below:

The development will enhance the area.

Care should be given to the entrance so as to not endanger traffic on the bend.
Sufficient car parking spaces should be provided.

The development blends into the surroundings.

In complete favour providing it does not open the door for the golf club to

develop their land.

The scheme will provide employment during the construction.

e It will provide a boost to the council and local shops from the increase in the
number of people.

Relevant Policy

The London Plan

Policy 3.3
Policy 3.4
Policy 3.5
Policy 3.6
Policy 3.8
Policy 3.9
Policy 3.11
Policy 3.12
Policy 3.13
Policy 3.14
Policy 5.1
Policy 5.2
Policy 5.3
Policy 5.5
Policy 5.6
Policy 5.7
Policy 5.8
Policy 5.9
Policy 5.10
Policy 5.11
Policy 5.13
Policy 5.14
Policy 6.3
Policy 6.9

Increasing housing supply

Optimising housing potential

Quality and design of housing developments
Children and young people’s play and informal recreation facilities
Housing choice

Mixed and balanced communities

Affordable housing targets

Negotiating affordable housing

Affordable housing thresholds

Existing housing

Climate change mitigation

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Sustainable design and construction
Decentralised energy networks

Decentralised energy in development proposals
Renewable energy

Innovative energy technologies

Overheating and cooling

Urban greening

Green roofs and development site environs
Sustainable drainage

Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Assessing the effects of development on transport capacity
Cycling



5.2.

5.3.

Page 20

Policy 6.12  Road network capacity
Policy 6.13  Parking
Policy 7.1 Lifetime neighbourhoods

Policy 7.2 An inclusive environment

Policy 7.3 Designing out crime

Policy 7.4 Local character

Policy 7.6 Architecture

Policy 7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology

Policy 7.14  Improving air quality
Policy 7.15  Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
Policy 7.19  Biodiversity and access to nature

Core Strateqy

CP2:

CP3:

CP4:

CP5:

CPo:

CP20:
CP21:
CP22:
CP24:
CP25:
CP26:
CP28:
CP30:
CP31:
CP32:
CP36:
CP46:

Housing supply and locations for new homes

Affordable housing

Housing quality

Housing types

Supporting community cohesion

Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure

Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage infrastructure
Delivering sustainable waste management

The road network

Pedestrians and cyclists

Public transport

Managing flood risk through development

Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment
Built and landscape heritage

Pollution

Biodiversity

Infrastructure contributions

Development Management Document

DMD1 Affordable Housing on Sites Capable of Providing 10 Units or More
DMD3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD4 Loss of Existing Residential Units

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD10 Distancing

DMD37 Achieving High Quality Design-Led Development
DMD38 Design Process

DMD44 Preserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets

DMD45 Parking Standards

DMD47 New Roads, Access and Servicing

DMD48 Transport Assessments

DMD49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
DMD50 Environmental Assessment Methods

DMD51 Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD53 Low and Zero Carbon Technology

DMD54 Allowable Solutions

DMD55 Use of Roof Space / Vertical Surfaces

DMD56 Heating and Cooling

DMD57 Responsible Sourcing of Materials



5.4.

6.1.

6.1.1.

6.2.

6.2.1.

6.2.2.

Page 21

DMD58 Water Efficiency

DMD59 Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk
DMD60 Assessing Flood Risk
DMD61 Managing Surface Water
DMD65 Air Quality

DMD68 Noise

DMD69 Light Pollution

DMD70 Water Quality

DMD72 Open Space Provision
DMD73 Children’s Play Space
DMD78 Nature Conservation
DMD79 Ecological Enhancements
DMD81 Landscaping

Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Practice Guidance

Mayor of London Housing SPG (Nov 2012)

LBE S106 SPD

Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2010)
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

Analysis

Principle

In broad terms, the proposal is consistent with the aims of the London Plan and
policies within the Core Strategy which seek to support development which
contributes to the strategic housing needs of Greater London and the Borough.
However, it is equally important that all other relevant planning considerations which
seek to ensure that appropriate regard is given to design, the character of the area,
neighbour amenity and residential amenity, traffic generation and highway safety and
acceptability with regards to sustainability, are taken into account.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

Density

The assessment of any development must acknowledge the NPPF and the London
Plan, which encourage greater flexibility in the application of policies to promote
higher densities. Policy 3.4 of the London Plan in particular encourages the
development of land to optimise housing penitential but recognises this must be
appropriate for the location taking into account local context, character, design and
public transport capacity.. The site falls within an area with a Public Transport
Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 1b, therefore the London Plan suggests that a
density of 150-200 habitable rooms per hectare (hrph) may be appropriate for this
location.

Each proposed block is identical in relation to the number and mix of units it will
therefore contain: 1x 4b8p (7no habitable rooms each); 2x 3b6p (5no. habitable
rooms each); and 2x 2b4p (4no. habitable rooms each). Over the four blocks, one
hundred habitable rooms are proposed on a site measuring approximately 0.548sgm.
This equates to a density of approximately 182.5hrph.



6.2.3.

6.2.4.

6.2.5.

6.2.6.

6.2.7.

Page 22

The scheme is above the mid-point of the suggested density range and given the
context of the site, it is considered appropriate that the development is not achieving
the maximum value of the density range. However, as identified above, adopted
policy acknowledges a numerical assessment of density is but one factor to consider
in assessing whether the site is capable of accommodating the proposed
development. Consideration must also be given to the design and quality of
accommodation to be provided, the siting and scale of the development, its
relationship to site boundaries and adjoining properties and the level and quality of
amenity space to support the development. These factors are considered below.

Design

There is clear guidance on the approach to the matter of design. The NPPF (section
7) confirms that the Government attaches great importance to the design of the built
environment, with good design being a key aspect of sustainable development but
Paragraph 59 of the NPPF confirms that design policies should “avoid unnecessary
prescription or detail and should concentrate on guiding the overall scale, density,
massing, height, layout, materials and access of new development in relation to
neighbouring buildings and the local area more generally”. Paragraph 60 further
advises that “decision should not impose architectural styles or particular tastes...
[nor] stifle innovation, innovation, originality or initiative through unsubstantiated
requirements to conform to certain development forms or styles...[although it is]
proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness” while paragraph 61
advises that “...decisions should address...the integration of new development into
the natural, built and historic environment”.

London Plan policy 7.1 (“Lifetime neighbourhoods”) advises that the design of new
buildings and the spaces created by them should “help to reinforce or enhance the
character, permeability, and accessibility of the neighbourhood” while policies 7.4, 7.5
and 7.6 confirm the requirement for achieving the highest architectural quality, taking
into consideration the local context and its contribution to that context. Design should
respond to contributing towards “a positive relationship between urban structure and
natural landscape features...” Policy DMD 37 (Achieving High Quality and Design
Led Development”) confirms the criteria upon which application will be assessed.
However, it also recognised there is a degree of subjectivity in this assessment of
acceptable design.

It is recognised that any form of redevelopment will effect a change on how this site
relates to the street scene. A key factor in this proposal would be the removal of
many trees on the site for which it is considered that adequate compensatory planting
is provided. In principle, would be difficult to argue this is not a site which could
accommodate more intensive form of development but the questions, illustrated
through the objections from the local community, is whether this is the right form for
that development.

The original scheme excluded No.18 Bush Hill. This would have led to a more
fragmented approach to the site and resulted in that dwelling sitting approximately
27m behind the front building line of the originally proposed buildings. This would
have created an adverse effect on the existing amenity for the occupiers of that
dwelling. A more comprehensive development, including No.18, as proposed, would
remove amenity issues and allows for a more cohesive development on the northern
side of Bush Hill and a unified street scene. It is considered this is to be welcomed in
terms of the development approach to this site.



6.2.8.

6.2.9.

6.2.10.

6.2.11.

6.2.12.

Page 23

Through discussion at pre application stage and recognising the significance of this
site within the street scene, the development now proposed has evolved from a large
single block fronting the perimeter of the site, through a scheme for 3 residential
blocks to the current scheme for 4 residential blocks. Whilst the addition of a further
block in the latest iteration adds to the intensity of development on the site, it is
considered the level of development is appropriate for this site. Certainty, Members
must focus consideration on the acceptability of the scheme before them rather than
any alterative that may or may not be preferable.

In terms of the effect of the development on the character of the area, the immediate
surrounding area, whilst containing large single family dwellings, is largely but not
exclusively characterised by “traditional-looking” buildings, that is 2-storey brick-built,
with multi-hipped roofs, many containing accommodation within the loft space.
Opposite the site however there are bungalow style properties and approximately
380m south is a short terrace of 3-storey town houses. It should also be noted that
approximately 500m to the south, off Bush Hill Road is the more modern
development of Cunard Crescent which comprises of three and two storey blocks of
flats while some 300m north-east of the site, at the junction of Bush Hill and London
Road is Princessa Court, a five storey 1960s block of flats. Consequently, on
balance, it is felt there is sufficient variety in the built forms for their not to exist an
overly strong singular character that taking into account the position of the site would
mean a more modern development typology could prove acceptable.

The proposal will introduce buildings which are quite contemporary in design and a
type of housing that is not prominent in the immediate area. Whilst it would represent
a significant change in the street scene, it is felt this in itself would not be sufficient
grounds to consider a refusal because as advised above, paragraph 59 of the NPPF
indicates what the LPA should be considering in relation to design. Moreover, there is
an overriding strategic need to increase housing supply within the Borough and in
London.

Mindful of Para 59 of the NPPF, the scheme under consideration is considered to be
of an appropriate scale within the context of the site and the street scene. Although it
is three-storeys in height, the impact is reduced through the second floor being
recessed back from the front of the building presenting a more dominant 2 storey
form. This is not dissimilar in effect from the more traditional two-storey dwellings with
their roofs hipped away from the road. In addition, articulation is provided on the front
elevations through the provision of large areas of fenestration. It is only the flank
elevations where the full height is more evident and due to the layout of the scheme,
this is only potentially noticeable from the north when approaching along Bush Hill
and when walking along the footpath that bound the golf course. In effect however,
the views of the flank elevations due to retained landscaping are limited and it is
proposed the flank elevations are provided with timber panelling to support living
walls (and to provide solar shading and privacy). Although contemporary, the use of
brick is an acknowledgement of the predominant building material in the area and on
balance, the height and overall form is considered to be appropriate.

Taking the above considerations into account, the proposed density, having regard to
the adopted London Plan standard as discussed above, is considered to be
appropriate for the site and for the area. With regard to massing and distancing, the
site is surrounded on three sides by the Bush Hill Golf Course. Notwithstanding this,
there is sufficient distancing being retained between the boundaries and the buildings
and although trees are being removed as part of the proposals, overall it is felt the
development does not appear overbearing from the public footways and surrounding
area.



6.2.13.

6.2.14.

6.2.15.

6.2.16.

6.2.17.

6.2.18.

Page 24

The layout is considered to be an appropriate design response to the shape of the
site, site constraints, to address the street, and for each building to address each
other. The siting of the buildings nearer to the road frontages than the existing
dwelling houses is considered acceptable albeit more prominent, as this enables the
buildings to address the road and have some presence. It also moves the built form
away from the golf course (Metropolitan Open Land) thus reducing any visual impact
there. It also ensures the blocks have an appropriate relationship to the retained
trees on the site particularly the large London plane tree.

At present, there is a variety of boundary treatment types across the three sites.
These include brick walls with railings, timber fencing and railings. The development
proposes to unify the boundary treatment through the provision of railings to a height
of approximately 1.2m along the site frontage. Immediately behind will be a beech
hedge and various trees between the hedge and the buildings. The proposed
boundary treatment is considered to be a significant improvement on the existing.

Having regard to all of the above, it is recognised the redevelopment of this site will
represent a significant change in its relationship to the street scene due to the
increase in the quantum of development on the site. Change in itself however, is not
a material consideration and consideration must be given to the actual merits of the
scheme proposed relative to guidance and adopted policy and whether this results in
an acceptable scheme Careful consideration has been given to this issue and while
the concerns of local residents are noted on balance, it is considered the design
principle and characteristics of the proposed scheme would not harm the residential
character and appearance of the street scene and surrounding area.

Quality of Accommodation

To improve the quality of new housing, the new development must meet with the
minimum standards contained within the London Plan (Policy 3.5 Quality and design
of housing developments) and the Mayor’s Housing SPG in terms of the GIA of
individual units and individual rooms because the Mayor considers the size of new
housing to be a key strategic issue. The adopted minimum standards are also
contained in DMD Appendix 4.

The minimum size of individual flats is dependent on the occupancy level. Of the four
blocks, the pair fronting Carrs Lane is identical in relation to the size of the individual
units, while the remaining pair, fronting Bush Hill, is slightly reduced to avoid any
impact on the large London plan tree to the rear. The respective size of the two sets
of blocks are set out below, with those for the “Bush Hill units” in brackets:

Carrs Lane units, each block to provide

Proposed Unit Size (sgm) | Adopted Minimum Standard
(sqm)
2 x 2b4p | 135 (125) 70
2 x 3b6p | 145 (135) 95
1 x4b8p | 295 (275) 119*

% The largest recognised unit is 4b6p requiring 99sqm. The London Plan Housing SPG advises that for each additional

occupant an extra 10sgm should be provided.

Turning to individual rooms, paragraph 2.3.22 of the Mayor’s Housing SPG, advises
that the preferred minimum floor areas for single bedrooms and double / twin
bedrooms is 8sgm and 12sgm respectively, although “7.5sgm and 11.5sgm are



Page 25

generally regarded as the smallest respective benchmarks”. The combined floor
areas for living / dining / kitchen space is 27sgm (4p), and 31sgm (6p). It should be
noted that in the table below, any differences in relation to the rooms provided for the
“Bush Hill units” is provided in brackets:

6.2.19.

6.2.20.

6.2.21.

6.2.22.

Room Type Proposed Area Minimum Adopted Area
(sgm) (sqm)
Bedroom 1 17 12
2b4p Bedroom 2 19 12
Kitchen / Living / Dining | 60 (50) 27
Bedroom 1 24 12
3b6p Bedroom 2 14.75 12
Bedroom 3 14.8 12
Kitchen / Living / Dining | 54 (44) 31
Bedroom 1 38.9 12
Bedroom 2 27.6 12
4b8p Bedroom 3 18.9 12
Bedroom 4 17.2 12
Kitchen / Living / Dining | 120.11 (100.8) *
«No additional floor space requirements above that for 6 persons.

Amenity Space Provision

Policy DMDB9 provides the standards for the level of private amenity space provision
for each unit and is primarily based upon the number of rooms and occupancy level.
The standards represent the absolute minimum, although regard must also be given
to the character of the area. Differences provided by the “Bush Hill units” are in
brackets:

Proposed Private Amenity
Space Size (sgm)

Adopted Minimum
Standard (sgm)

2b4p 11.7-16.9 (5.4 - 10.3) 7
3b6p 18.5 (12) 9
4b8p 12 11*

« 1he largest recognised unit is 4b6p requiring 9sqm. The London Plan Housing SPG advises that for each additiona

occupant an extra 1sgm should be provided.

In addition to the private amenity space as outlined above, the scheme will also be
providing approximately 3452sgm of communal amenity space, of which 2723sgm is
provided at the rear / side.

All of the proposed units, with the exception of two of the 2-beds (units 19 & 20),
exceed the adopted standard for private amenity space. The Mayor’s Housing SPG
advises that in exceptional circumstances (where site constraints prohibit private
amenity space for all dwellings), a proportion of dwellings may instead be provided
with additional internal living space equivalent to the area of the private amenity
required.

The two units in question fall below the minimum standard by 1.6sgm. Whilst the
scheme is not one that can be considered “exceptional” to justify the shortfall,
consideration should be given to the fact that the two terraces are still of a sufficient
size to accommodate patio furniture. In addition, the overall size of the two units is
78% greater than the minimum requirement for 2-bed units. Moreover, there is in
excess of 3400sgm of communal amenity space being provided, which far exceeds



6.2.23.

6.2.24.

6.2.25.

6.2.26.

6.3.

6.3.1.

6.4.

6.4.1.

Page 26

the levels of provision of other sites in the vicinity. On balance, it is considered that it
would be difficult to resist the scheme on the shortfall of private amenity space for
two of the units of 1.6sgm.

Daylight levels

Whilst there are no neighbouring developments that would be impacted upon by the
development, a daylight assessment has been provided to establish whether the
accommaodation proposed will receive acceptable levels of lighting. This is considered
particularly important for the scheme due to the near proximity of the large London
plan tree to the two blocks fronting Bush Hill. It is also acknowledged that the
applicant has reduced the rearward projection of the two aforementioned blocks.
Whilst this is primarily to negate any potential future need to reduce the crown
because the tree may appear too overbearing for future occupiers, it also helps to
reduce some impact from overshadowing due to its close proximity.

The daylight assessment has been undertaken in accordance with the
recommendations of the Building Research Establishment (“BRE”) report “Site
Layout Planning for Daylight & Sunlight 2011". The average daylight factor (“ADF”)
method is used and assesses the quality and distribution of light within a room, taking
into account the size / number of windows and room use / size. British Standard
8206: Code of Practice for Daylighting recommends 1% in bedrooms, 1.5% in living
rooms and 2% in kitchens.

The assessment concludes that having regard to the ADF, all living rooms and
bedrooms fully comply with the BRE target values, and in particular, during the
summer when the trees are in full leaf. With the exception of the kitchen in unit 2, all
other kitchen spaces do not meet the BRE target values when assessed against the
winter and summer transmittance values, ranging between 1.06% and 1.9% (winter)
and 1.01% and 1.98% (summer).

Although only one of the kitchen spaces assessed met the BRE target, regard must
be given to the fact that kitchens are not habitable rooms. On balance, it is
considered that the development has sufficient regard to daylight standards to not
detrimentally harm the living conditions of future occupiers.

Impact on Neighbour Amenity

The nearest dwellings are located on the opposite of Bush Hill, between 30m and
38m distant at their nearest point. This level of distancing and having regard to the
road between the proposed and existing developments, will not lead to conditions
prejudicial to neighbour amenity in terms of loss of outlook, light, overlooking and loss
of privacy. The development is therefore considered to have sufficient regard to
Policies 7.1 & 7.6 of the London Plan, Core Policy 30, Policies DMD8 & DMD10 of
the Development Management Document, and with guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework

Highway Safety

Policy 6.3 of the London Plan confirms that the impact of development proposals on
transport capacity and the transport network are fully assessed. The proposal must
comply with policies relating to better streets (Policy 6.7), cycling (Policy 6.9), walking
(Policy 6.10), tackling congestion (Policy 6.11), road network capacity (6.12) and
parking (Policy 6.13). Policies DMD45 & 47 provide the criteria upon which



6.4.2.

6.4.3.

6.4.4.

6.4.5.

6.4.6.

6.4.7.

6.4.8.

Page 27

developments will be assessed with regard to parking standards / layout and access /
servicing.

Parking

The maximum parking standards of the London Plan are set out below, although it is
advised that all developments in areas with a good PTAL score should be aiming for
significantly less than 1 space per unit. The site, as discussed above, is located in an
area with a poor PTAL score (1b) therefore applying the London Plan standards, the
scheme should be providing a maximum of 28 parking spaces.

Number of beds 4 or more 3 1-2

Parking spaces Up to 2 per unit Up to 1.5 per unit Less than 1 per unit

Twenty eight parking spaces are proposed, of which 26 will be located within the
basement and the remaining two will be at surface level to be used as visitor parking.
Of the parking spaces within the basement, 4 will be designated as disabled persons
parking. The layout of the parking and the provision of the disability spaces will be
secured by condition.

In accordance with advice received, the applicant has investigated the need to
provide a car club bay within the vicinity of the site. Zip-Car, the car club operator,
has confirmed that they are not looking to commit to a new car club bay at present.

Having regard to the requirement to provide 20% of the spaces for electric vehicle
parking and a further 20% passive provision for future use, the scheme will meet with
the adopted standard through the proposed 6 active and 6 passive spaces. The
details and provision of the active / passive charging points would be secured by
condition.

In relation to cycle parking, the London Plan requires 2 spaces for each 2-bed unit or
greater (long-stay) and 1 space per 40-beds for short-stay (visitor). This equates to
40 long-stay spaces and 1 short-stay space for the current scheme. The
development is proposing 40 long-stay spaces within a secure lock-up in the
basement and 8 short-stay spaces (2 groups of 4) at surface level. The level of
provision and location of the cycle spaces will be secured by condition.

In addition, it has been advised that £30,000 towards the provision of improved
pedestrian/cyclist infrastructure in the immediate vicinity of the site as part of the
Cycle Enfield project should be made. This would need to be secured through the
S106 Agreement.

Access and Servicing

Each existing property is currently served by individual access points. The existing
access serving No.18 will become redundant and the footway reinstated (to be
secured by condition). The access currently serving Bush Hill Cottage will be moved
approximately 7m to the west and a 5.5m wide entrance created to the basement
carpark. An existing redundant access on Carrs Lane will be shifted south (directly
opposite the raised island) to provide access to the proposed two parking spaces for
visitors. The access serving Lane End will be closed up (secured by condition) and a
pedestrian only access will be provided in its place.




6.4.9.

6.4.10.

6.4.11.

6.4.12.

6.5.

6.5.1.

6.5.2.

6.5.3.

6.5.4.

6.5.5.

Page 28

Each of the access points have been designed to an acceptable level in relation to
visibility splays and will enable vehicles to access / exit the site safely in a forwards
gear.

Currently, the pedestrian footway extends along Bush Hill up to the junction with
Carrs Lane. It is proposed that the footway is extended into Carrs Lane, terminating
at the new pedestrian only access described above. Safe footway access is
welcomed for the residents and will need to be secured through the dedication of the
relevant piece of land. It is intended that the new footway will be adopted.

Two bin stores are proposed at surface level that will each serve two blocks. The
respective locations are considered acceptable as residents will not have to walk
more than 30m to access the respective stores. Their appearance will be secured by
condition.

Having regard to the above, it is considered that the development makes acceptable
provision for parking and servicing and is unlikely to lead to conditions prejudicial to
the free flow of traffic or highway safety, having regard to Policy 6.13 of the London
Plan and DMD Policies 28 and 45 of the Development Management Document.

Housing Need

The Core Strategy seeks to ensure new developments offer a range of housing sizes
to meet housing need. In particular, it seeks to ensure 20% of market housing is for
four or more bedroom houses. The Core Strategy policy is based on evidence from
the research undertaken by Ecotec.

The findings of Ecotec’s research, Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment
(February 2010), demonstrates a shortage of houses of all sizes, particularly houses
with three or more bedrooms across owner occupier, social and private rented
sectors. The greatest requirement in the owner occupied market housing sector is for
family sized housing (i.e. 3+ bedrooms). This is equivalent to a need for 1,667 family
sized homes of which nearly 40% is for four bedroom homes over a period of two
years.

The earlier findings of Fordham’s Research, Enfield Council Housing Study
(September 2005) corroborate Ecotec’s findings. The research showed there was an
absolute shortage of four bedroom properties in the owner occupied sector, which is
unique to that sector. The report modelled the potential demand and supply for
different sized properties from 2003-2011 and found the greatest relative shortfall is
for three or more bedroom properties for owner occupation.

The following mix is proposed:

Dwelling Type Number Percentage (%)
2-bed 8 40

3-bed 8 40

4-bed 4 20

TOTAL 20 100

The development provides an appropriate mix of units and suitable compensatory
provision for the loss of the existing large-sized family dwellings on site. In this
regard, it is considered that the development is consistent with Policies 3.8 and 3.14



6.5.6.

6.6.

6.6.1.

6.6.2.

6.6.3.

6.6.4.

6.6.5.

6.6.6.

6.6.7.

Page 29

of the London Plan, Core Policy 5 of the Core Strategy and DMD Policies 3 and 4 of
the Development Management Document.

It is considered appropriate to secure the mix and size of units through an
appropriately worded condition to ensure that any potential future changes are fully
policy / standards compliant and appropriate levels of contributions have been
secured.

Sustainable Design and Construction

Lifetime Homes

The London Plan and Core Strategy confirm that all new housing is to be built to
Lifetime Homes’ standards. This is to enable a cost-effective way of providing
adaptable homes that are able to be adapted to meet changing needs.

A Lifetime Home will meet the requirements of a wide range of households, including
families with push chairs as well as some wheelchair users. The additional
functionality and accessibility it provides is also helpful to everyone in ordinary daily
life, for example when carrying large and bulky items. Lifetime Homes are not,
however, a substitute for purpose-designed wheelchair standard housing.

The Mayor’'s minimum internal floor space standards incorporate Lifetime Home
standards (Housing SPG para. 2.3.12). Notwithstanding this, a Lifetime Homes
Statement has been submitted detailing how the development will be Lifetime Homes
compliant. A condition is recommended to secure those details.

Contamination

Potential contamination may be present due to the potential for “made ground” to be
present, potential asbestos impacted soils from demolition of previous buildings and
infilled former gravel pits.

In accordance with the advice of the environmental health officer, details of a scheme
to deal with the contamination of the site to avoid risk to health and the environment
will be secured by condition.

Biodiversity / Ecology

Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (“Biodiversity and access to nature”) requires
development proposals to make a positive contribution, where possible, to the
protection, enhancement, creation and management of biodiversity. Core Policy 36 of
the Core Strategy confirms that all developments should be seeking to protect,
restore, and enhance sites. Policy DMD79 advises that on-site ecological
enhancements should be made where a development proposes more than 100sgm
of floor space, subject to viability and feasibility.

The proposal involves the demolition of three dwelling houses and their associated
outbuildings and there are mature trees within the site which could offer opportunities
for bat roosts. A bat roost survey has been undertaken which has concluded that the
buildings do not offer features that could be exploited by roosting bats. Moreover,
there were no signs such as droppings and or staining. The trees identified for
removal did not have crevices, with many covered in ivy. They are considered to be
unsuitable for roosting bats.



6.6.8.

6.6.9.

6.6.10.

6.6.11.

6.6.12.

6.6.13.

6.6.14.

6.6.15.

6.6.16.

Page 30

In relation to ecology, the majority of the site is amenity lawn. The trees to be
removed are poor quality specimens and many of those forming borders are
ornamental specimens. Replacement trees will be provided as per an agreed
landscape plan.

Further enhancements to the ecological value of the site will be achieved through the
provision of green walls. These will comprise of flowering plants in groups of 2 to 3
species to provide variety and interest. In addition, a sedum roof is also proposed
around the solar panels.

Having regard to the above, the proposed development will not unduly impact upon
the existing ecological value of the site but through measures proposed and to be
secured by condition, will serve to enhance the value of the site in accordance with
policy 7.19 of the London Plan, CP36 of the Core Strategy and policy DMD79 of the
Development Management Document.

Trees

An Arboricultural Assessment has been provided to help inform the decision making
process insofar as any potential impacts from the development proposal on trees
within the site and immediately adjacent. The development site currently contains 50
trees, four groups, one hedge and various shrubs.

An arboricultural survey has been undertaken and an Arboricultural Constraints
Report (with Constraints Plan) has been submitted in support of the application. All
trees were categorised in accordance with BS5837:2012 to establish their condition,
age and quality. Category A trees are of high quality, contribute to local amenity, and
should be retained if possible. Category B trees are of moderate quality with an
estimated life expectancy of at least 20 years. Category C trees are considered to be
of low quality, with either a limited life expectancy, or very young trees with a stem
diameter of not more than 150mm, or very little contribution to local amenity.
Category U trees are ones in such a poor condition that they cannot realistically be
retained as living trees.

Of the 16 trees / groups of trees / hedgerow identified to be wholly removed or in
part, 12 of these are graded Category C and four as Category B. The Category B
trees are directly impacted upon by the development and their removal cannot be
reasonably avoided. It is however proposed to re-provide 18 trees and this is
considered acceptable.

To ensure adequate provision is made for the protection of retained trees, the
recommended Root Protection Areas (RPA) have been calculated in accordance with
BS5837:2012 (and shown on the Tree Protection Plans ) and recommendations
outlined throughout the Arboricultural Assessment.

The most significant tree on site is the London plan, a Category A tree. The originally
proposed basement has been amended to take into account the roots of the tree and
the two blocks nearest to this tree (facing Bush Hill) have been reduced in depth to
provide a greater level of distancing to the tree.

It is acknowledged that a small area of the basement (8sqm) would still encroach into
the RPA of the London plane. The Tree Officer confirms that this level of
encroachment would not unduly impact upon the tree.



6.6.17.

6.6.18.

6.6.19.

6.6.20.

6.6.21.

6.6.22.

6.6.23.

Page 31

Moving the two blocks forward, as discussed above, was sought primarily to avoid
any potential future need to inappropriately prune or remove trees in the future
because the tree may appear too overbearing for future occupiers. A minimum
distance of 8.5m will now be retained from the back edge the two aforementioned
blocks to the outer spread of the canopy. Council’s Tree Officer agrees that this level
of distancing should be sufficient.

To provide protection to retained trees during construction, especially the London
Plane, recommendations have been provided within the Arboricultural Impact
Assessment. These include the usual measures such as protective fencing, the
supervision of demolition works by an arboriculturist, and the siting of plant,
machinery and materials outside of the root protection. In addition, specific
recommendations are proposed for works (including basement construction) in
proximity to the London Plane in particular, and the agreement of an underground
services plan. Appropriately worded conditions are proposed to secure the measures
proposed.

Energy

An Energy Statement has been submitted which would appear to demonstrate that
the development will exceed the energy reduction targets. The Statement provides
some recommendations with regards to low / zero carbon measures such as a

photovoltaic array atop each of the buildings and a community CHP. A condition is
therefore proposed to seek details of the energy saving measures to be employed.

Drainage

London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13 require the consideration of the effects of
development on flood risk and sustainable drainage respectively. Core Policy 28
(“Managing flood risk through development”) confirms the Council’'s approach to flood
risk, inclusive of the requirement for SuDS in all developments. Policies DMD59
(“Avoiding and reducing flood risk”) confirms that new development must avoid and
reduce the risk of flooding, and not increase the risks elsewhere and that Planning
permission will only be granted for proposals which have addressed all sources of
flood risk and would not be subject to, or result in unacceptable levels of flood risk on
site or increase the level of flood risk to third parties. DMD61 (“Managing surface
water”) requires the submission of a drainage strategy that incorporates an
appropriate SuDS scheme and appropriate greenfield runoff rates.

The drainage strategy is not clear (two options have been mooted), although it is
noted that permeable paving, a sedum room and living walls will be employed. In
addition, over 3000sgm of garden space is being retained to further allow for natural
surface water drainage. Although the aforementioned is welcomed, a full drainage
strategy should be submitted. A condition is proposed to secure these details.

Site Waste Management

Policy 5.16 of the London Plan has stated goals of working towards managing the
equivalent of 100% of London’s waste within London by 2026, creating benefits from
waste processing and zero biodegradable or recyclable waste to landfill by 2026.
This will be achieved in part through exceeding recycling and reuse levels in
construction, excavation and demolition (“CE&D”) waste of 95% by 2020.

In order to achieve the above, London Plan policy 5.18 confirms that through the
Local Plan, developers should be required to produce site waste management plans



6.6.24.

6.7.

6.7.1.

6.7.2.

6.7.3.

6.7.4.

6.7.5.

6.7.6.

6.7.7.

Page 32

to arrange for the efficient handling of CE&D. Core Policy 22 of the Core Strategy
states that the Council will encourage on-site reuse and recycling of CE&D waste.

Details of a construction waste management plan can be secured through an
appropriately worded condition

Viability
Affordable Housing

Affordable housing is housing designed to meet the needs of households whose
income is insufficient to allow them access to “decent and appropriate housing in
their borough” (para.5.17 Core Strategy). The scheme does not propose any on-site
affordable housing.

All sites should be Core Policy compliant and in this regard, eight units should be
provided as affordable units. However, the initial view is that the scheme could only
potentially provide four affordable units. However, given the size and potential values
of the units, affordable units cannot realistically be provided. Independent viability
advice has been sought in relation to the provision of on-site affordable housing for
the scheme. Negotiations are still underway with the applicant to agree an
appropriate level of contribution and an update will be provided to Members at the
committee meeting.

Education / Childcare

The scheme will be liable for an education contribution for the net increase of
seventeen units, in accordance with Table 7.3 of the S106 SPD:

8 x2b4p =8 x £1855.98 =  £14847.98
8 x 3b6p = 8 x £6907.96 =  £55263.68
1x4b8p =1x£11408.98 = £11408.98
Total £81520.64

In addition to the above, childcare contributions will also be sought based upon Table
7.5 of the S106 SPD:

8 x 2b4p = 8 x £290.66 = £2324.80
8 x 3b6p = 8 x £465.06 = £3720.48
1x4b8p =1x£494.12 = £494.12

Total £4216.84

The total level of contributions sought for education and childcare is £85737.49. This
would need to be secured via an s106 legal agreement.

Employment and Training

Core Policy 16 of the Core Strategy confirms the commitment of the Council to
promote economic prosperity and sustainability in the Borough through a robust
strategy to improve the skills of Enfield’s population. One initiative is, through the
collaboration with the Boroughs of Haringey, Broxbourne, Epping and Waltham
Forest is to promote skills training for local people.

Details of a Local Employment Strategy could be secured by legal agreement. The
Strategy should set out how the development will engage with local contractors /



6.7.8.

6.7.9.

6.8.

6.8.1.

6.8.2.

6.8.3.

6.9.

6.9.1.

7.1.

Page 33

subcontractors, the number of trainees to be employed on site and the nhumber of
weeks training will be provided.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Mayoral CIL is collected by the Council on behalf of the Mayor of London. The
amount that is sought is for the scheme is calculated on the net increase of gross
internal floor area multiplied by an Outer London weighting (£20) and a monthly
indexation figure (259 for November 2015).

The development is CIL liable for the construction of 4067sgm of new residential floor
space and the CIL calculation is: (£20/m2 x 4067.12m2 x 259)/223 = £94473.91.

Other Matters Raised

The impact on the values of adjoining properties is not a relevant planning
consideration.

Thames Water has advised that they are satisfied with the development with regards
to sewerage and water infrastructure capacity.

It is recognised that should the development be approved, there will be additional
pressure placed on community facilities such as schools and childcare. To address
this, the Council is able to seek financial contributions as set out in the adopted S106
SPD. The scheme should be providing financial contributions as set out below. The
seeking of contributions is not an admission that the scheme is not acceptable but
recognition that developers should be contributing to necessary infrastructure.

Section 106 / Legal Agreement

Having regard to the content above, it is recommended that should planning
permission be granted, the following obligations / contributions should be secured
through a legal agreement:
¢ An off-site affordable housing contribution (sum to be agreed)
e £81520.64 towards education provision
e £4216.84 towards childcare provision
e £30,000 towards the provision of improved pedestrian/cyclist infrastructure in the
immediate vicinity of the site as part of the Cycle Enfield project
e The dedication of a 2m wide strip of land on Carrs Lane to provide a public
footway
Local Employment Strategy
0 Securing the local sourcing of labour
0 Securing the local supply of goods and materials
0 Securing on-site skills training
5% monitoring fee for the financial contributions

Conclusion

Having regard to all of the above, it is considered that on balance, planning
permission should be granted for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development would contribute to increasing London’s supply of
housing, having regard to Policies 3.3, 3.4 & 3.14 of The London Plan, Core
Polices 2, 4 & 5 of the Core Strategy, Policies DMD1, 3 & 4 of the Development



8.1.

Page 34

Management Document, and with guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework.

2. The proposed development due to its design, size, scale and siting, does not
detract from the character and appearance of the street scene or the surrounding
area having regard to Policies 3.5, 7.1, 7.4 & 7.6 of the London Plan Policy, Core
Policy 30, DMD Palicies 7, 8, 9 and 10 of the Development Management
Document, and with guidance contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework.

3. The proposed development due to its siting does not impact on the existing
amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties in terms of loss of light, outlook or
privacy and in this respect complies with Policy 7.6 of the London Plan, Core
Policy 30, DMD Palicy 10 of the Development Management Document, and with
guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

4. Having regard to conditions attached to this permission, the proposal makes
appropriate provision for servicing, access, parking, including cycle parking and
visibility splays, and in this respect complies with Policies 6.3, 6.9, 6.12 & 6.13 of
the London Plan, DMD Policies 45 and 47 of the Development Management
Document, and with guidance contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework.

5. The proposed development, by virtue of measures proposed and conditions
imposed, will contribute to the mitigation of and adaptation to climate change,
having regard to Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.7, 5.8, 5.9, 5.10 & 5.13 of the London
Plan, Core Policy 32, DMD Policies 51, 53, 58, 59 and 61 of the Development
Management Document, and with and with guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation

That Members grant delegated powers to officers to negotiate an appropriate level of
off-site affordable housing contribution together with the various obligations as
outlined in the report above. Subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement, the
Head of Development Management / the Planning Decisions Manager be authorised
to GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as set out below. Should no
agreement be reached within 12-weeks, officers be granted delegated powers to
refuse the application.

1. Approved Plans - Revised

2. Time Limited Permission

3. Mix/ Size of Units

4. The development hereby approved shall only be laid out as 20 flats (comprising 8
X 2-bed, 8 x 3-bed and 4 x 4-bed) as shown on Drawing N0s.284.201 Rev.10,
284.202 Rev.10, 284.203 Rev.07 There shall be no deviation from the number,
size or mix of units from that approved without the prior approval in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Having regard to securing an appropriate mix in the number and size of
units and having regard to securing an appropriate level of contribution(s), in
accordance with adopted Policy.

5. Details of Materials
6. Lifetime Homes



10.

11.

Page 35

Prior to development commencing, details shall be provided to the Local
Planning Authority confirming how the scheme will meet with 100% Lifetime
Homes’ standards, unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To provide for future adaptability of the housing stock.

Details of External Lighting

Details of any external lighting to be provided including the design, height and
siting shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to installation. In
addition details regarding how the external lighting scheme has been designed to
minimise light spillage and its impact on wildlife particularly along the wooded
boundaries of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The external lighting shall be provided prior to the occupation
of the first residential unit and maintained at all times thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, safety, residential amenity and to
ensure that light sensitive receptors are not unduly affected.

Details of Basement Construction

Development shall not commence until details of the engineering methodology
and sequence of works for the construction of the basement, to be completed by
an appropriately qualified person, has been provided to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing.

The methodology should take into account the recommendations as set out in
the Tree Protection Plans and Arboricultural Method Statement as per condition
28 (‘Tree Protection’) of this permission.

The development shall only be implemented in accordance with the approved
Engineering Methodology and Sequence of Works.

Reason: To ensure adequate protection of retained trees.

Details of Hard Surfacing

Dedication of Land — Public Footway

The development shall not be occupied until the applicant has provided written
confirmation that the land outlined in red on Drawing N0.284.219 Rev.00 has
been dedicated to the Council to enable a public footpath to be constructed
around the site onto Carrs Lane.

Reason: The land is required to extend the public footway onto Carrs Lane to
enable pedestrians to safely use the public highway.

Parking / Turning Facilities

Unless required by any other condition attached to this permission, the parking
and turning areas shall be laid out as shown on Drawing No.284.200 Rev.10 and
284.201 Rev.10 and permanently retained for such purposes unless otherwise
approved in writing by the Local planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that parking and turning facilities are in accordance with
adopted standards.

12. Disabled Parking



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 36

The number and location of the disabled parking/ blue badge spaces indicated on
Drawing N0.284.200 Rev.10 shall be provided in accordance with the approved
plan and thereafter retained for this purpose.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory provision and retention of blue badge spaces
for the development in accordance with adopted standards.

Private Vehicles Only - Parking Areas

The car parking spaces to be provided shall be kept available for the parking of
private motor vehicles at all times The parking spaces shall be used solely for
the benefit of the occupants of the residential units of which it forms part and
their visitors and for no other purpose and permanently retained as such
thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with adopted Policy and to
prevent the introduction of activity that would be detrimental to visual and
residential amenity.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points

Prior to any works commencing in relation to the provision of parking / turning
facilities, typical details, including siting and design of plugs, of electric vehicular
charging points to be provided in accordance with London Plan standards
(minimum 20% of spaces to be provided with electric charging points and a
further 20% passive provision for electric vehicles in the future) shall be provided
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.

All electric charging points shall be installed in accordance with the approved
details prior to first occupation of the development and permanently maintained
and retained.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with the sustainable
development policy requirements of the London Plan.

Details of Access and Junction

The development shall not commence until details of the construction of any
access roads and junctions and any other highway alterations associated with
the development, inclusive of the reinstatement of redundant footway crossings,
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before
the development is occupied.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with adopted Policy and does
not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on adjoining highways.

Gates

Any vehicular entrance gates erected shall be automatic to prevent stopping
vehicles obstructing the footway, they shall be hung to open inwards and shall be
set back a minimum distance of 5m from the carriageway edge. Pedestrian gates
shall be hung to open inwards.

Reason: To avoid the unnecessary obstruction of the public highway in the
interests of highway safety.

Means of Enclosure



18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 37

Details of the proposed railing fence to enclose the site shall be provided to the
Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The fence shall be erected in
accordance with the approved detail prior to first occupation.

Reason: To secure an acceptable design in the interest of visual amenity.

Construction Methodology / Traffic Management Plan

Unless additional detail is required as set out below, demolition and construction

shall take place in accordance with the submitted ‘Proposed Site Management

Plan’ (Drawing N0.284.212 Rev.00), unless otherwise approved in writing:

The detail shall include:

a) a photographic condition survey of the roads, footways and verges leading to
the site;

b) wheel cleaning methodology and facilities (inclusive of how waste water will
be collected /managed on site);

c) the estimated number and type of vehicles per day/week;

d) details of any vehicle holding area;

e) details of the vehicle call up procedure;

f) Coordination with other development projects in the vicinity;

g) A Construction Management Plan written in accordance with the ‘London Best
Practice Guidance: The control of dust and emission from construction and
demolition’.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved detail.

Reason: To minimise the impact of construction works upon highway safety,
congestion and parking availability and to ensure the implementation of the
development does not lead to damage to the existing highway and to minimise
disruption to neighbouring properties and the environment.

Cycle Storage

Prior to first occupation, the above ground and basement bicycle parking spaces
shall be provided in accordance with the detail as shown on Drawing
No0s.284.200 Rev.10 and 284.201 Rev.10, unless otherwise approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved cycle storage shall be
permanently maintained, kept free from obstruction and available for the parking
of bicycles only.

Reason: To provide secure cycle storage facilities free from obstruction in the
interest of promoting sustainable travel and in accordance with adopted policy.

Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, details (inclusive of elevational treatment)
of the refuse storage / recycling facilities shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval in writing.

The facilities shall be constructed in accordance with the approved detail prior to
first occupation.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity.

Energy Efficiency

The energy efficiency of the development shall provide for no less than a 35%
improvement in the total CO, emissions arising from the operation of the
development and its services over Part L of Building Regs 2013 as the baseline



22.

23.
24.

Page 38

measure, unless otherwise approved in writing. Prior to first occupation,
confirmation shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority of the
development meeting or exceeding the stated target.

Reason: To ensure that the development meets or exceeds the energy efficiency
and sustainable development policy requirements of the London Plan and the
Core Strategy.

Details of Zero / Low Carbon Technologies

Details of the zero / low carbon technologies to be used in the development
(rooftop photovoltaic panels and combined heat & power boilers) shall be
provided in accordance with details to be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval in writing and implemented prior to first occupation of the
development and permanently maintained. The submitted detail shall
demonstrate compliance with the approved renewable energy strategy and
include the design, size, siting, and a maintenance strategy / schedule inclusive
of times, frequency and method.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the Local
Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction targets by
renewable energy are met in accordance with adopted Policy.

No Additional Fenestration

SUDS 1

Prior to development commencing, a drainage strategy shall be provided to the

Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The drainage strategy shall

include the following details:

a) How the chosen Strategy conforms to the London Plan Drainage Hierarchy

b) A drainage plan that includes flow routes,

c) Overland flow routes for exceedance events

d) The discharge rate off site

e) The proposed storage volume of storm water

f) Specifications for any swale and rain gardens (and any other drainage
feature)

g) A management plan for the drainage system

h) Measures to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters

i) A management and maintenance plan, for the lifetime of the development,
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or
statutory undertaker or any other arrangements to secure the operation of
the scheme throughout its lifetime; and

J) The responsibilities of each party for implementation of the SUDS scheme,
together with a timetable for that implementation.

Reason: To ensure that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable risk of
flooding from surface water run-off or create an unacceptable risk of flooding
elsewhere and to ensure implementation and adequate maintenance.



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 39

SUDS 2

Prior to occupation of the development approved, a verification report
demonstrating that the approved drainage / SuDS measures have been fully
implemented shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in
writing.

Reason: In the interest of managing surface water runoff as close to the source
as possible in accordance with adopted policy.

CfSH 1

Development shall not commence until evidence in the form of a design stage
assessment conducted by an accredited Code for Sustainable Homes Assessor
and supported by relevant BRE interim certificate, has been provided and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The evidence provided shall
confirm that the dwellings can achieve a Code for Sustainable Homes rating of
no less than Code Level 4 (or such national measure of sustainability for design
that replaces that scheme).

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no change there from shall
take place without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of addressing climate change and to secure sustainable
development in accordance with adopted Policy.

CfSH 2

Following the practical completion of the dwelling but prior to first occupation, a
post construction assessment, conducted by an accredited Code for Sustainable
Homes Assessor and supported by relevant BRE accreditation certificate, shall
be provided to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.

Reason: In the interest of addressing climate change and to secure sustainable
development in accordance with adopted Policy.

Tree Protection

The development (including demolition) shall be undertaken in accordance with
the recommendations and Tree Protection Plans (SHA 088TPP 1-4) contained
within the submitted ‘Arboricultural Impact Assessment Report’ and the
submission of an approved Arboricultural Method Statement (inclusive of
Arboricultural supervision programme) in accordance with BS5837: 2012, having
particular regard to the basement construction details to be submitted pursuant
to condition 8 (‘Details of Basement Construction) of this permission. There shall
be no deviation without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that retained trees are not adversely affected by any aspect
of the development.

Trees - Underground Services

No underground service works shall commence until details of underground
services for the development have been provided to the Local Planning Authority
for approval in writing. Services shall be located outside of the root protection
areas (RPA) of retained trees and not at all into the RPA of Tree T17 as
identified on the Tree Protection Plan. Should it be unavoidable that underground
services will encroach into an RPA of any retained tree, an Underground
Services Method Statement shall be provided for approval in writing.



30.

31.

32.

Page 40

Reason: To ensure that no retained tree is unduly harmed by the implementation
of the development.

Vegetation Clearance (Outside of Nesting Season)

All areas of trees, hedges, scrub or similar vegetation where birds may nest
which are to be removed as part of the development, are to be cleared outside
the bird-nesting season (March - August inclusive) or if clearance during the bird-
nesting season cannot reasonably be avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist will
check the areas to be removed immediately prior to clearance and advise
whether nesting birds are present. If active nests are recorded, no vegetation
clearance or other works that may disturb active nests shall proceed until all
young have fledged the nest.

Reason: Nesting birds are protected under the Wildlife & Countryside Act, 1981
(as amended), this condition will ensure that wildlife is not adversely affected by
the proposed development in line with CP36 of the Core Strategy

Landscaping

No works or development shall take place until full details of the landscape
proposals have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Details shall include:

(a) Planting plans;

(b) Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment);

(c) Schedules of plants and trees, to include native, wildlife friendly species
and large canopy trees in appropriate locations (noting species, planting
sizes and proposed numbers / densities);

(d) Implementation timetables;

(e) Wildlife friendly plants and trees of local or national provenance.

All landscaping in accordance with the approved scheme shall be completed /
planted during the first planting season following practical completion of the
development hereby approved. The landscaping and tree planting detail shall set
out a plan for the continued management and maintenance of the site and any
planting which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five years of
completion of the development shall be replaced with new planting in
accordance with the approved details or an approved alternative and to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the ecological value of the site is enhanced post
development in line with the Biodiversity Action Plan, CP36 of the Core Strategy
and the London Plan. To minimise the impact of the development on the
ecological value of the area, to ensure the development provides the maximum
possible provision towards the creation of habitats and valuable areas for
biodiversity and to preserve the character and appearance of the area in
accordance with adopted Policy.

Living Walls

Details of the “living walls” shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for

approval in writing. The submitted details shall include:

(a) Type of native wildlife friendly plantings (with a minimum of three species);

(b) Density of plantings;

(c) Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated
with plant establishment);



33.

34.

35.

Page 41

(d) Maintenance plan

Plantings shall be provided within the first planting season following practical
completion of the development. Any planting which dies, becomes severely
damaged or diseased within five years of completion of the development shall be
replaced with new planting in accordance with the approved details or an
alternative approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To enhance the ecological value of the site and to ensure the
development provides the maximum possible provision towards the creation of
habitats and valuable areas for biodiversity in accordance with adopted policy,
and to ensure highway safety.

Biodiverse Roof

Details of the proposed sedum roof to be provided on all four buildings shall be

submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The submitted

detail shall include [location], design, substrate (extensive substrate base with a
minimum depth 80-150mm), vegetation mix and density, and a cross-section of
the proposed roof.

The biodiverse roof shall not be used for any recreational purpose and access
shall only be for the purposes of the maintenance and repair or means of
emergency escape.

The biodiverse roof shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details prior to first occupation and maintained as such thereafter. Photographic
evidence of installation is to be submitted and approved in writing by the council.

Reason: To assist in flood attenuation and to ensure the development provides
the maximum possible provision towards the creation of habitats and valuable
areas for biodiversity in accordance with adopted Policy.

Contamination

The development shall not commence until a scheme to deal with the
contamination of the site including an investigation and assessment of the extent
of contamination and the measure to be taken to avoid risk to health and the
environment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Remediation shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved scheme and the Local Planning Authority provided with a written
warranty by the appointed specialist to confirm implementation prior to the
commencement of development.

Reason: To avoid risk to public health and the environment.

Construction Site Waste Management Plan

Prior to any development commencing, inclusive of site clearance, details of a
Construction Waste Management Plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval in writing. The Construction Waste Management Plan shall
include as a minimum:

(a) Target benchmarks for resource efficiency set in accordance with best
practice;

(b) Procedures and commitments to minimize non-hazardous construction waste
at design stage. Specify waste minimisation actions relating to at least 3 waste
groups and support them by appropriate monitoring of waste;



Page 42

(c) Procedures for minimising hazardous waste;

(d) Monitoring, measuring and reporting of hazardous and non-hazardous site
waste production according to the defined waste groups (according to the waste
streams generated by the scope of the works);

(e) Procedures and commitments to sort and divert waste from landfill in
accordance with the waste hierarchy (reduce; reuse; recycle; recover) according
to the defined waste groups; and

(f) No less than 85% by weight or by volume of non-hazardous construction,
excavation and demolition waste generated by the development has been
diverted from landfill

Reason: To maximise the amount of waste diverted from landfill consistent with
the waste hierarchy and strategic targets set by Policies 5.17, 5.18, 5.19 of the
London Plan.



ONINNY I

OL'00¢ pEe

dva @ Ov® 00l 8107097

39VL10D TIH HSNE

QL7 SALIHOU TIVOUY

NY1d LNOAVT ONBIdVd INFWISYE

Odd SV

LIN3Wd013A3A TVILNIAIS3Y

LNV 1d VdIAYA

(3]
4
(]
o
©
(a

N d L:o>j ONINY7d INIWIS 79 ‘3SOd0Yd §7

N
NS d 4V

v

a NV

8n13 4109 »d¥d TIH HSNg

ﬂszE&(czo:zMqu(:zEmmm

ai31AN3 “1TIH HSNE



1006 $50 (7590 &

71 40074 ANNGHS + 3115 'a350d0Yd §7

o0z ¥8z \

dva @ Oy® 00l &I0T

182 12N
NOGNOT ‘QT314N3
TH HSNE 02
39v.110D TIIH Hsng

QL7 S3LUTHOUS TTVOUY
NY1d 40074 ONNO¥O + LIS
3S040Yd SV

v -

LINIWAOT3AIA TVILNIAISTY

o
N
! .- %
i 4
A 'S
= 1
I
i
<
< !
() o)
3
o e
g =y
h s _
l-..ln |..~ _._
e : \ )
\.\.. -t , |
T -
! i b i y | 073 4100 H8vd TIH HSNE
: )
- ()
3
i . /
v \ = \_\ \ - - b= .« .
/
, EE EEl
-~ 7 "SINIWLHVAY 'ONOZ FW3HDS TVILNIAISIY
=

= a31AN3 “17IH HSNE




NY1d 40074 1Sdld :a3S0d0dd 57

NYTd 400714 151
3S040d SV
,,,,,,,

INIWAOTAAIA TVILNIAISTY

1IN

‘SINIWLUVAY ‘ONOZ FWIHOS TVILNIAISTY

a131AN3 “17IH HSNE




£O'=0C P8

NY1d 40074 ANODIIS 'a3S0d0Yd §7

444444

,,,,,,,

INIWAOTAAIA TVILNIAISTY

A
ANV 1dVdaIAYa

Page 46

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

a131AN3 “1TIH HSN



Qa4 3H325-13341S 'ISOAOYd §7

d Lo {ovaosn
Tdva  ar  Ov®00il GI070U9T
182 1N k
NOGNOT Q131N

HSNE 07
F9VLI0D TIH HSNE

SANIIS-1ITILS
0dd SV

LIN3IWAO13A3A TVILNIAISIY

JL FdNL23LIHDY

LNV 1d VAIAYA

00 INIOS-13THLS :QISOdONd SV

=

98 IN3DS-13IYLS 1a3S0dONd 57

hve | ;
1003 Mg

-
4
(0]
22
&..

7 ANIDS-13THLS }aISOdONd 57

‘SINIWLHVAY 'ONOZ FWIHOS WL

. | a131AN3 “17IH HSNE



X3ss3 WVHONIWYIG

NOAGNOT
»n-oo-

@inioejiyosiedep - mmm

L006 758 (b¥80) 1 XJ.OU.G\_ZUUWu_IU\_QOU@O,—ulum El LZMNAH_‘—/N—MI_ .OI_W_H_ZM
ONINNVid TIH HSNa oz
SNLYLS 3nSSI

0011 ¥vE 3T¥S
JOV.LLOD THH HSNd
LOZLE V8T o

NOILD3IS-ILIS d3TV13A :d350d0dd SV
dL7 S31143d0dd 1VodV
NOISIAZY ON 9M0

ON 1J3rodd  IN3IT)

dva ar v ® 0oLl Sloz'orgz NOILD3S-ILIS A31v1i3d

MI3H) NMY¥0 3IV3S avg @3SOd0OYUd SV /
CL1 IANL23 L1442y v P\
> LINIWAOTIAIA TVILNIAISTY
INVIdVAIAYA:.:
I I
| |
I |
_ J
L
|
|
e
rd
Fd
I I
i i
0058 1 SETeE 0009 1
SGlS¢
H 069EY
0T t
! , NVT1d A3 :d3S0Od0dd SV
T e oy B mv 7
™y i
wv o 7
35 _
"> '
wn = L
m S .f
= .
=z

3

\

\ o ws e ws w
| Hi
1

\

1

| 0051 ¥vg 37v3S
.w._.Zm_Z._.m<n_< .OZON____m_Zm_ Um|_<_._.zm_n__wm_m

"d13IdN3 11IH HSN4




BUSH HILL, ENFIELD

Page 49

RESIDENTIAL SCHEME: 20NO. APARTMENTS.

GENERAL NOTES:

THE COPYRIGHT IN ALL DESIGNS, DRAWINGS,
SCHEDULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND ANY OTHER
DOCUMENTATION PREPARED BY DAVID PLANT
ARCHITECTURE LTD IN RELATION TO THIS PROJECT
SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF DAVID PLANT
ARCHITECTURE LTD AND MUST NOT BE REISSUED,
LOANED OR COPIED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT.

APARTMENT BUILDING 1

APARTMENT BUILDING 2

APARTMENT BUILDING 3

APARTMENT BUILDING 4

PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT DAVI D A P L A N T
s ARCHITECTURE LTD
AS PROPOSED: APARTMENT BUILDINGS PATE SCALE: DRAWN: — CHECK:
PERSPECTIVE VIEWS 26.10.2015 NTS @ A3 JB DAP
CLIENT PROJECT NO. DWG NO. REVISION.
ARGALL PROPERTIES LTD
= 284.214.01
BUSH HILL COTTAGE p——
ENFIELD. LONDON PLANNING

N212BT

e studio@daparchitecture.co.uk t (0844) 854 9007

www.daparchitecture.co.uk
LONDON BIRMINGHAM ESSEX



MI3HD ‘NMyYdHa













This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55

A 1 g o
AYCTIIUd 1ICITT O

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 24" November 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, | Andy Higham Lower Edmonton

Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson
Mr Richard Laws

Ref: 15/03922/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: Deephams Sewage Works, Picketts Lock Lane, N9 OBA

PROPOSAL: Works in the south part of the site involving erection of 3 new buildings as part of the
Deephams enhanced sludge digestion facility.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Thames Water Utilities Ltd Mr Andy Blaxland
Clearwater Court 7 St Peter Street

Vastern Road Winchester

Reading Hampshire

Berkshire S023 8BW

RG1 8DB United Kingdom

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION:
That Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.




Page 56

Ref: 15/03922/FUL LOCATION: Deephams Sewage Works, Picketts Lock Lane, N9 OBA,

A

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
ENF!)ELD?% Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci

Scale 1:1250

North




1.0

11

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3.

Page 57

Site and Surroundings

Deephams Sewage works is Thames Waters fourth largest sewage works. It treats
sewage collected within its catchment and discharges effluent flows into Salmons
Brook a tributary of the River Lee. Located off Picketts Lock Lane in Edmonton, the
full extent of the sewage works is 34 hectares of land, the application site is sited on
area occupying approximately 7 hectares of this larger site.

The sewage works is currently undergoing a major Upgrade works as part of
planning permission granted in February 2015 (14/02612/FUL), which are currently
being undertaken at the site at present. The Upgrade will meet the environmental
permit requirements for the quality of the effluent (treated waste water) discharged
from Deephams Sewage Works into Salmons Brook. The Upgrade will also increase
wastewater treatment capacity to accommodate population growth and improve the
infrastructure at the sewage works much of which is over 50 years old. The Upgrade
will also significantly reduce odour levels.

Proposal

The Enhanced Sludge Digestion project is located on land in the southern part of the
Deephams Sewage works site. The application site currently comprises part of the
Deephams Sewage works site devoted to sludge treatment and sludge cake
storages. It comprises of plant and equipment, together with large open air sludge
cake storage pad, buildings open and enclosed digester tanks, gas bags and other
equipment, and vacant land.

The proposal involves the erection of three new buildings as part of the Enhanced
Sludge Digestion Facility at the sewage works.

A) A new combined CHP & THP low Voltage motor control building, this building will

have a pitched roof with a height of 4.29m to eaves, and 5.65m to pitch. The footprint
of the building will be 21.14m in length and 10.14m in width. The cladding of the walls
will be profile sheet coloured grey.

B) A new steam generation building, this will have a pitched roof with a height of
6.425m to eaves and 8.25m to pitch. The footprint of this building will be 25.7m in
length and 16.7m in width, the cladding of the walls and roof would be coated steel
profile sheet coloured grey.

C) A new cake dewatering building is also proposed, this will have a pitched roof with
a height of 14.43m to the eaves, and 15.9m to pitch. The footprint of the new
dewatering building will be 38.6m in length and 16.76m in width.

The proposed development will enable Thames Water to:

¢ Treat additional volumes of sewage sludge generated as a result of population
growth within the Deephams catchment;

o Treat the sewage sludge to higher environmental standards;

¢ Reduce the volume of sludge cake produced, as a result of the improved
digestion process, and the volume requiring transport off site for recycling to
agricultural land, and

¢ Recover more biogas and convert this to electricity to help run the sewage



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 58

treatment processes on site and reduce reliance on the National Grid.

The proposed development will collect sludge produced by the primary and
secondary treatment processes within the sewage works. Following straining and
blending to remove any remaining material such as rag, the sludge will be transferred
to centrifuges for thickening and to reduce its water content. The thickened sludge is
then transferred into the Thermal Hydrolysis Plant (THP) for high temperature
treatment before being passed into the existing anaerobic digesters. The biogas
produced by the digestion process is collected and used to power an additional 1.56
MW CHP engine, together with the two CHP engines being installed as part of the
Upgrade works (Planning Application ref: 14/02612/FUL) that will generate heat for
use in the THP process and electricity, reducing the need for the site to receive
power from the national grid.

The digested sludge is then dewatered in presses to reduce its water content and
stored on the existing sludge cake storage pad prior to transport off site to be
recycled to agricultural land. The cake storage pad will provide capacity for up to 70
days sludge production (approximately 11,500m? of sludge cake) which is in
accordance with Thames Water's standard requirements to ensure sufficient space is
available for occasions when sludge cannot be take onto agricultural land (e.g. due to
adverse weather conditions).

The sludge liquors arising from dewatering will be returned to the main sewage
treatment works for further treatment, the same as for the existing processes. The
thermal hydrolysis process, siloxane filter regeneration on the CHP engine and
digested sludge dewatering building will all be odour controlled.

The completed enhanced sludge digestion facility will be operational 24 hours a day,
days a week, in line with the rest of the sewage process. Construction of the
Enhanced Sludge Digestion Facility is planned to commence in Autumn 2016 with
works completing in early 2019. Once the new sludge treatment process is
operational the existing 5 secondary digesters will be demolished as these will no
longer be required.

Relevant Planning Decisions

15/01701/S0- Environmental Impact Assessment Screening Opinion request under
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment ) ( England &
Wales) Regulations 2011, as amended 2015, for installation of enhanced sludge
digestion to existing sludge treatment facilities- Screening opinion concluded that
proposal does not constitute EIA Development.

14/02612/FUL- Upgrade of sewage infrastructure, including phased development of
primary settlement tanks, aeration lanes, final settlement tanks, pumping station,
blower house, secondary digesters and ancillary buildings- approved 20:02:2105

P14-00525SOR -Request for a Scoping Opinion in respect of proposals for
Deephams Sewage Works Upgrade. Scoping Opinion request given by the LPA on
the 25/4/14.



3.4

3.5

3.6.

4.0

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

41.4

4.1.5

Page 59

P14-00100SOR- Request for a Screening Opinion- Regulation 5 of the Town and
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 for the
demolition of redundant Digesters & Associated Plant and patrtial culverting, re-
profiling and diversion of Enfield Ditch Tributary- Screening Opinion issued
confirming not EIA development 10/ 2/14.

P14-00097 PRI- Demolition of redundant pumping station building and redundant
single storey switch gear building- Prior Approval not required 10/2/14.

Various notification works regarding the intention to undertake works under permitted
development on the site.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees
Tree Officer

No objections raised.

Environmental Health

Does not object to the application for planning permission as there is unlikely to be a
negative environmental impact. In particular there are no concerns regarding air
quality, noise or contaminated land. The application contains sufficient information in
terms of noise, air quality, and odour and dust control from demolition and
construction activities. The noise report sets out in detail the noise likely to be
generated from construction and operation of the new plant. The methodology used
and the results are robust and the conclusions accepted. The odour report
demonstrated that the odour arising from the new plant will be less odorous than the
existing installation which fits in with the upgrade of the rest of the site. A condition is
required to ensure the methodology for controlling dust and emissions, detailed in
the construction management plan submitted with the application, is employed
during the works on site to install the new plant and buildings.

Traffic and Transportation

No objections subject to a Construction travel plan & traffic management plan.

Canal & River Trust

No objection to the proposed development.

Environment Agency

They have no objections to the proposals as the development falls outside the extent
of the modelled 1 in 100 chance in any year flood event, taking the impacts of
climate change into account. They have reviewed the supporting flood risk data and
don’t consider that there are grounds for objection. With regards to surface water
drainage, although they commented on the drainage strategy for the application for
the main upgrade works, as this is a new application they are happy to defer the
assessment of the drainage proposals the authority in its capacity as lead local flood
authority.



4.1.6

4.1.7

Page 60

English Heritage (Archaeological)

The site lies within an area where heritage assets of archaeological interest may lie.
Appraisal of this application indicate that the development would not cause sufficient
harm to justify refusal of planning permission provided a condition is applied to
require an investigation to be undertaken to advance understanding.

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority

If planning permission is granted a condition is required requiring strict adherence to
the proposed landscape strategy involving management and maintenance of the
landscape belts to ensure their effectiveness in screening the development.

London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority

4.1.8 The brigade is satisfied with the proposals for firefighting access subject to

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

compliance with Part B5 of the Building Regulations.

Public

A total of 54 surrounding properties were consulted in addition 2 site notices were
displayed. 1 letter of concern/objection was received raising the following points.

e Concerned about the impact of smell from the sludge and indication of any
impact of smell from the buildings
e Concerns about dust and hours of work

Relevant Policy

The London Plan (Consolidated With Alterations Since 2011) March 2015

The London Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, setting out an integrated
economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the development of
London over the next 20-25 years. Since the 2011 plan was published in July of that
year, revised early minor alterations (REMA) were made to ensure it reflected the
National Planning Policy Framework and the Government’'s approach to affordable
housing. These were formally published on 11" October 2013. Draft further
alterations to the London Plan (FALP) were published for public consultation in
January 2014 to reflect Mayoral priorities set out in his 2020 Vision: The Greatest
City on Earth — Ambitions for London, particularly the need to plan for the housing
and economic capacity, needed for London’s sustainable development against the
background of the growth trends revealed by the 2011 Census. These have now
been incorporated, along with the changes made by the REMA, into the consolidated
London Plan which was published in March 2015.

The following policies are considered pertinent to the assessment of this application:

Policy 1.1 Delivering the Strategic Vision & Objectives of London
Policy 2.2 London & the wider Metropolitan area

Policy 2.6 Outer London: Vision & Strategy

Policy 2.13  Outer London: economy

Policy 2.18  Green Infrastructure



5.5

Policy 3.2
Policy 5.1
Policy 5.2
Policy 5.3
Policy 5.5
Policy 5.6
Policy 5.7
Policy 5.9
Policy 5.10
Policy 5.11
Policy 5.12
Policy 5.13
Policy 5.14
Policy 5.16
Policy 5.17
Policy 5.18
Policy 5.20
Policy 5.21
Policy 6.1
Policy 6.3

Policy 6.9
Policy 6.10
Policy 6.12
Policy 6.13
Policy 6.14
Policy 7.1
Policy 7.2
Policy 7.3
Policy 7.4
Policy 7.5
Policy 7.6
Policy 7.8
Policy 7.13
Policy 7.14
Policy 7.15
Policy 7.16
Policy 7.19
Policy 7.21
Policy 7.24
Policy 7.26

Policy7.27
Policy 7.28
Policy 7.30
Policy 8.2
Policy 8.3

Page 61

Improving Health & Addressing Equality

Climate change mitigation

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

Sustainable design and construction

Decentralised energy Networks

Decentralised energy in development proposals
Renewable energy

Overheating and cooling

Urban greening
Green roofs and development site environs

Flood Risk Management
Sustainable drainage
Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

Waste Self sufficiency

Waste Capacity

Construction, excavation & demolition waste
Aggregates

Contaminated Land

Transport- Strategic Approach

Assessing the effects of development on transport
capacity

Cycling

Walking

Road network capacity

Parking

Freight

Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities
An inclusive environment

Designing out crime

Local character

Public Realm

Architecture

Heritage Assests and Archaeology

Safety, Security & Resilience to Emergency
Improving air quality

Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
Green Belt

Biodiversity and access to nature

Trees & woodlands

Blue Ribbon Network

Increasing the use of the Blue Ribbon Network for
Freight Transport

Blue Ribbon Network Infrastructure & recreational use
Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

London’s canals and other rivers and water spaces
Planning Obligations

London’s canals and other rivers and water spaces

Local Plan — Core Strategy

CP1
CP20
CP21

Strategic Growth Areas
Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure
Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage

infrastructure



CP22
CP24
CP25
CP28
CP29
CP30:

CP31
CP32:
CP33
CP35
CP36:
CP37
CP38
CP39
CP40
CP46

Page 62

Delivering sustainable waste management
The Road Network

Pedestrians and cyclists

Managing Flood Risk through development
Flood Management Infrastructure
Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

Built and Landscape Heritage

Pollution

Green Belt and Country Side

Lee Valley Regional Park and waterways
Biodiversity

Central Leeside

Meridian water

Edmonton

North East Enfield

Infrastructure contributions

Development Management Document (DMD) adopted Nov 2014

DMD37
DMD38
DMD44
DMD45
DMD47
DMD48
DMD49
DMD50
DMD51
DMD52
DMD53
DMD54
DMD55
DMD56
DMD57
DMD58
DMD59
DMD60
DMD61
DMD62
DMD63

DMD64
DMD65
DMD66
DMD68
DMD69
DMD 70
DMD 75
DMD 76
DMD 77
DMD 78
DMD79
DMD80
DMD81

Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
Design Process

Preserving and Enhancing Heritage assets
Parking Standards and Layout

New Road, Access and Servicing

Transport Assessments

Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
Environmental Assessments Method

Energy Efficiency Standards

Decentralised Energy Networks

Low and Zero Carbon Technology

Allowable solutions

Use of Roof space/ Vertical Surfaces

Heating & Cooling

Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste Minimisation
Water Efficiency

Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk

Assessing Flood Risk

Managing surface water

Flood Control Mitigation

Protection & Improvements of Watercourses & Flood
defences

Pollution Control and Assessment

Air Quality

Land Contamination & Instability

Noise

Light Pollution

Water quality

Waterways

Wildlife Corridors

Green Chains

Nature Conservation

Ecological Enhancements

Trees on development sites

Landscaping



5.8

6.0

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

Page 63

DMD 83  Developments Adjacent Green Belt

Other Relevant Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) March 2012

National Policy Statement for Waste Water March 2012

Future Water- The Government Strategy for England

National Planning Policy for Waste (October 2014)

Water for Life- Government’s White Paper on Water

Water Act (May 2014)

Defra’s Strategic Policy Statement to Ofwat- Incorporating Social

& Environmental Guidance (May 2013)

The Mayor’'s Water Strategy: Securing London’s Water Future (2011)
Circular 17/91- Water Industry Investment: Planning Considerations
Circular06/05- Biodiversity & Geological Conservation

Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework (July 2013)
Central Leeside Area Action Plan (Proposed Submission)

Meridian Water Master Plan, Planning & Urban Design Guidance
Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document (November 2011)

Analysis

Principle of Development

Thames water is required to ensure that its facilities for treating wastewater sludge
are able to meet the demands placed upon them by population growth, climate
change and stricter environmental regulations. To meet the overall aims of sludge
treatment In North London the strategy has been to provide enhanced digestion
technology .This current proposal will:

e Reduce quantities of sludge to be transported off site for recycling to
agricultural land

e Reduce odour sometimes attributed to applying sludge to land

e Potentially widen accessibility to other land types for sludge cake disposal

In both “ Future Water” The Governments Water Strategy for England 2008 and
“Water for Life the Governments White Paper on Water 2011, recognises that
improving sewage systems is fundamental to the quality and ecology of the water
environment, meeting the needs of a growing population and addressing climate
change. In addition the NPPF urges local authorities to ensure that supporting
infrastructure is of sufficient quality and capacity to meet forecast demands. The
principle of the proposed development is further supported by Policy 5.14 of the
London Plan to ensure that London has adequate and appropriate infrastructure to
meet the requirements placed upon it by population growth and climate change, and
to protect and improve water quality. Core Policy CP21 also advises that in order to
“improve water quality in the Borough during the life of this Plan, Thames Water plan
to improve/ redevelop Deephams Sewage Treatment works. The core strategy notes
that the Borough is committed to delivering sustainable water infrastructure and
intends to work with water companies to ensure that Enfield's future wastewater
treatment needs are managed effectively in a coordinated manner. Paragraph 8.4.5
of the DMD states that a major upgrade is being planned for the Deephams Sewage
works during the plan period, to meet new environmental standards and also to
accommodate growth within the catchment area. The principal of the Enhanced
Sludge Digester Facility is supported as being necessary to deliver infrastructure to



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

Page 64

meet existing and future wastewater demands. The principle of the proposal is
therefore supported by planning policy.

Odour/ Air Quality

An odour assessment has been undertaken of the Enhanced Sludge Digestion
project. The project will result in a further reduction in odour emissions from the
works. This further reduction is achieved through the improvement in the quality of
sludge cake, a reduction in the volume of sludge cake stored, the demolition of what
will become the secondary digesters, and the implementation of two additional
control units. These further reductions also need to be seen in the context of the very
significant reductions in odour as a result of the Upgrade project implementation.

Environmental Health advise that the odour report demonstrates that the odour
arising from the new plant will be less odorous than the existing installation which fits
in with the upgrade of the rest of the site. A condition is required to ensure the
methodology for controlling dust and emissions, detailed in the construction
management plan submitted with the application, is employed during the works on
site to install the new plant and buildings.

An Odour Management Plan for the site during construction of the Deephams
Sewage Upgrade, and for its future operation is secured through planning conditions
on the upgrade planning permission. That Odour Management Plan will be updated
to incorporate the implementation of the Enhanced Sludge Digestion project, this can
be appropriately conditioned. It is considered that the proposal would have
appropriate regard to CP 32 and DMD 65.

An air quality assessment has also been undertaken of the Enhanced Sludge
Digestion scheme and the assessment concludes that it would not change the
conclusions of the detailed air quality assessment undertaken for the proposed
Sewage works Upgrade. No objections are raised by Environmental Health in terms
of air quality regarding the proposal.

Impact on Residential Amenity

It is not considered that the siting of the three proposed buildings would adversely
impact on the residential amenities of properties within the vicinity, given their siting
and distance within the site. The closest premises to the new buildings for the
Enhanced Sludge Facility are Industrial building in Adra Road and it is not considered
that that they were would be adversely impact by the buildings.

Traffic Generation /Parking and Highway Safety

A Transport statement together with a Construction Logistics Plan and a Construction
Travel Plan has been submitted with the application. During the construction phase of
the Deephams Sewage Works Upgrade (already approved and works underway) a
dedicated construction compound has been provided by the main Picketts lock Lane
entrance site. This compound would also be utilised for the construction of the
Enhanced Sludge Digestion Facility. This compound area provides 160 dedicated car
parking spaces, including 3 disabled bays and 20 cycle parking spaces.

As the Enhanced Sludge Digester (ESD) facility is to be constructed at the same time
as the Deephams Sewage Upgrade, the Transport Statement also considers the
potential combined effects of the two projects. The peak construction traffic for the



6.4.3

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

Page 65

Upgrade project will occur during Phase 2, the construction of wastewater treatment
stream A. The peak in traffic during that phase will have ended before the
construction of the Enhanced Sludge Digestion facility commences. The assessment
is that thereafter, as the latter Upgrade phases are constructed and the ESD Facility
is built, the combined traffic would still be less than the Upgrade Phase 2 peak.
Accordingly, it is not considered that the combined construction traffic would give rise
to unacceptable impacts in transport terms.

Once complete there would also be a reduction in operational traffic movements from
the site, as the Enhanced Sludge Digestion process would result in less sludge being
produced for recycling, which requires off site transport to agricultural land. There
would be no change to the operational staff on site following the construction of the
buildings.

Design / Landscape Character

Core Policy CP 30 requires all new developments to be high quality and design led
having regard to their context. London Plan Policies 7.1, 7.4 and 7.6 are also
relevant regarding design, character and appearance. DMD37 also refers to
achieving High quality and design led development. The proposed buildings will be
seen in the context of the existing sewage treatment infrastructure and operations
and are considered to be of a scale comparable to the existing infrastructure and
buildings on site. The buildings will be seen in the context of the existing industrial
landscape from near and distant views. Whilst the largest building (the new cake
dewatering Building) will have a footprint of 38.6m in length by 16.76m in width with a
height of 15.9m, given the scale of the site and the complex of surrounding industrial
buildings in Adra Road, it is not considered the proposal would have any significant
impact on the surrounding area.

The proposed three new buildings are functional in terms of their design and would
mimic the industrial architecture present on site, in particular the large scale
warehousing buildings located immediately to the south. Materials and colours for
these new buildings would be grey so as to fit in with the existing industrial
landscape of the site. Overall the design and appearance of the buildings are
acceptable in policy terms.

In terms of impact on landscape/ visual character, the proposed is already located
within the developed Deephams Sewage works and is within a belt of industrial
development. Accordingly it is considered similar in scale and character to the
existing land uses, with the area consisting of large building and hard standings, with
limited vegetation. Industrial estates are located to the south of the proposed
development. Accordingly, it is not considered that the proposal would result in any
significant effects on the landscape character of the site, the surrounding industrial
character or the Lee Valley character Area.

Whilst the new dewatering building would be visible in glimpsed views, it is
considered that they would not be significantly different from the existing views of the
industrial and warehousing buildings located to the south. The new building and other
permitted developments will be seen within the industrial context of the surroundings.
The landscape strategy and associated landscape plans indicate new planting along
the eastern boundary with taller native trees, hedgerows and shrubs. Existing trees to
be retained will be protected by protective fencing during the construction period.



6.5.5

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.8

6.8.1

Page 66

While the scale of the development is substantial, when viewed in the context of the
wider site and the upgrade works currently being undertaken, it is not considered that
this proposed development would have any significant visual impact on the adjacent
Green belt, having regard to London Plan Policy 7.16 and CP33. None of the site
itself is situated within the green belt.

Sustainable Design / Energy

The London Plan Climate change policies require developments to make the fullest
contributions to tackling climate change by minimising carbon dioxide emissions,
adopting sustainable design and construction, prioritising decentralised energy and
incorporating renewable energy. The following policies of the London Plan are of
particular relevance 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.5, 5.6, 5.7, 5.8, 5.9, and 5.18. In addition Core
Policy 20 (Sustainable Energy & Energy Infrastructure), is also applicable. In addition
Sustainability and Energy Development Management Document Policies DMD 51,
52, 53, 55, are also relevant. The applicants have submitted both a Sustainability
Statement and Energy Statement with the application.

The proposed Enhanced Sludge Digestion facility will produce additional biogas, from
an equivalent sludge volume, which will be collected and stored in gas holders, and
used to feed the proposed CHP for on-site electricity generation and provision of
heat to the digestion process.

The energy statement identifies that the energy (electricity and heat) generation from
renewable fuel CHP is estimated to reduce the carbon footprint by approximately
5,960 tonnes of CO2 emissions per annum within the context of the baseline for the
Upgraded (ESD) works. This Co2 reduction outweighs the additional loads that are
anticipated at the site and will allow Thames Water to achieve an overall reduction of
Carbon emissions at the Deephams site of 81%, which is significantly above the 35%
reduction required by Policy 5.2 of the London Plan.

Biodiversity /Trees/Landscaping

The majority of the site is previously developed land, containing sewage treatment
infrastructure and therefore has limited ecology and nature conservation intrest. The
main features of ecological interest are found along the periphery of the site along
the eastern boundary. The Lea Valley Site of Metropolitan Importance Nature
Conservation (SINC) is adjacent the site. However, the development does not
propose any works within the SMINC boundary and there will be no direct impact
upon the SMINC.

There is a small limited removal of scrub although this is identified as being of low
biodiversity value. The landscape strategy proposes that existing vegetation along
the eastern boundary of the development will be supplemented with taller native
trees, hedgerows and shrubs to enhance biodiversity and habitat connectivity. This
will also provide additional screening of the building to people using the Lee Park
Way and River Lee Navigation. The additional planting and habitat enhancement is
considered to have appropriate regard to DMD 80 and 81 as well as London Plan
Policies 7.19 and 7.28

Flooding/ Surface Water

A detailed Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been submitted with the application .
The FRA concludes that based upon the most recent modelling it is anticipated that
the works would not increase the fluvial flood risk on the site or elsewhere. No



6.9

6.9.1

6.9.2

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 67

objections to the proposal are raised by the Environment Agency in terms of flood
risk. In terms of surface water a sustainable drainage strategy will be secured by an
appropriately condition so as to follow the drainage hierarchy in the London Plan as
well as having regard to DMD61 which will include information on storage volumes
and direction of flows.

Community Infrastructure Levy

As of April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulation 2010 (as amended) came
into force which would allow “charging authorities” in England and Wales to apportion
a levy on the net additional floor space for certain types of qualifying development to
enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure that is need as a result of
development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of London has been charging CIL in
Enfield at a rate of £20 per sgm.

The three new buildings that will be constructed are exempt from CIL payment as
they are classed as buildings into which people” do not normally go” e.g. buildings
containing plant etc. that would only visited for maintenance

Conclusion

The proposed three buildings are considered acceptable in terms of their form, design

and scale having regard to their location within the Deephams sewage works site
and their surrounding context. It is not considered that the proposals would give rise
to any adverse environmental effects during the construction and there will also be
an appropriate Construction Environment Management Plan.

Once complete the proposal will improve the quality and reduce the quantity of sludge

cake that is produced and taken off site to be spread on agricultural land. There will
be a reduction in operational vehicle movements following the completion of the
development. The proposal will also significantly increase the biogas generation from
the sludge treatment process leading to an increase in renewable energy generation.
There will also be a reduction in odour emissions from the site. In addition new
landscaping is proposed to enhance the existing boundary vegetation on the eastern
boundary of the site where it abuts the Lee Valley Regional Park and Green Belt,
which will also include biodiversity enhancements.

The proposed development meets a clear statutory need within an existing

operational sewage works and is considered acceptable in policy terms.

Recommendation: That Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the following
Conditions:

C60- Approved Plans
C7- Details of Materials
C10 -Details of Levels
Archaeology

(A) No development shall take place until the applicant (or their heirs and successors
in title) has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological



Page 68

investigation in accordance with a written Scheme of Investigation which has been
submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.

(B) No development or demolition shall take place other than that in accordance with
the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A);

(C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post
investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set
out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under part (A) , and the
provision made for analysis , publication and dissemination of the results and archive
deposition of results.

Reason: Heritage assets of archaeological interest are expected to survive on the
site. The Planning authority wishes to secure the provision of appropriate
archaeological investigation, including the publication of results.

Sustainable Drainage System
Prior to the commencement of development a Sustainable Drainage Strategy shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The Sustainable Drainage

Strategy shall include the following:

. A Plan of the exiting site
. A topographical Plan of the area

° Plans and drawings of the proposed site layout identifying the footprint of
the area being drained ( Including all buildings, access roads and car
parks)

. The controlled discharge rate for a 1 in 1 year event and a 1 in 100 year
event ( with an allowance for climate change), this should be based on
the estimated greenfield runoff rate
The proposed storage volume

. Information on proposed SuDS measures with a design statement
describing how the proposed measures manage surface water as close to
its source as possible and follow the drainage hierarchy in the London
Plan.

. Geological information including borehole logs, depth to water table and/
or infiltration test results
Details of overland flow routes for exceedance events

o A management plan for future maintenance

Reason: To ensure that the proposal has appropriate regard and Development Plan
Document Policy DMD61 in providing a Sustainable Drainage Strategy.

Landscape Strategy

The proposed landscaping shall accord with “ Deephams Sewage Works Enhanced
Sludge Digestion Facility “ Landscape Strategy Final report August 2015 including
the landscaping plan Drawing 230 A..

Reason: to ensure the provision of a satisfactory landscaping Scheme and in the
interests of visual amenity and biodiversity.



10.

11.

12.

Page 69

Updated Construction Environmental Management Plan

Prior to the commencement of development an updated Construction Environment
Management Plan (CEMP) for the existing Upgrade works to also include the
Enhanced Sludge Digestion Facility shall be submitted to and approved in written by
the Local Planning Authority. The updated CEMP shall be regularly monitored and
reviewed.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not lead to damage to the existing
highway and to minimise disruption to surrounding neighbours.

Ecological Enhancements

The biodiversity measures and enhancements shall accord with Ecology report
“Ecological Site Improvements & Species Protection final Report “ August 2015.

Reason: To ensure biodiversity enhancements having regard to Core Strategy Policy
CP36 and DMD 79 of the Development management document.

Updated Odour Management Plan

An updated Odour management plan to incorporate the implementation of the Sludge
Digester Facility shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA and
thereafter adhered to. The Updated Odour management Plan shall include include
measures to ensure regular monitoring and review of odour emissions from the
Odour Control units, in consultation with LB Environmental Health Officers to ensure
the predicted reduction in odour emissions fr5om the completed development.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development minimises and reduces odour
having regard to Policy 7.14 of the London Plan, Core Strategy cP32 and
Development management Document Policies DMDD64 and 6

Construction and Logistics plan

Prior to the commencement of development and updated Construction and Logistics
Plan (CLP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA and there after
adhered to during the works.

Reason: In order to minimise the impact of the development on the surrounding
highway network, in addition to setting out how the construction site and its operation
will be managed.

Sustainability / Energy

The development shall be implemented in accordance with Energy Statement and
Sustainability Statement Final Reports 2015.

Reason : In the interests of sustainable development and to ensure that the Local
Planning authority may be satisfied that CO2 reduction targets are met in accordance
with Policy Cp20 of the Core Strategy, DMd51 of the Development Management
Document, Policies 5.2,5.3,5.7 and 5.9 of the London Plan2011 including alterations.

Details of Contamination



Page 70

13. C51 A- time Limit



Page 71

I
[
lifz
|l=’
m',, ag,

’.
=, gy
ARG
!ll-lv S
137

I

7

i

iy

i
5

I

il
i

i
H 7

SN
o) R 5%
-'s'-.#@"

4

i

il

S,

59




[ I ] | | ] | | GET S9.13U00 W/ 0]%ST Seslq ¢ (popuedq B
S A | ! | i | [ | ‘bumnd ‘z/0 ‘g ‘001-08
i | | , - | v sanued Wz o|v%s syeaiq ¢ {paupuelq ey
sk o ! | 4 . | —=——r———= 16umnd ‘z/0 ‘g '001-08 '
u.;:_ W00 [ 14 | | 0 T SET 5313U20 W'0| %S T s1eaiq 7 'patpueiq esoulds
£ s (L N [ | | {Bumnd 12/0 '8 ‘00T-08
[ ——— _. fmi | | | | “ 4 — —_— —_ —  —_— — sv 593U W/ 0|%S S|RIBIE| YAM Japea] wnyojn
= “ ! | ﬂ [ . __._N e ABouow snbz
o \ - | | 1 | oz S243U20 W/'0|%0E syeasq g {payoueiq eu, z
HLYM STWVHL jo- o | 1) | t6umng z/0 ‘g ‘001-08
==l [ , | I _ GeT  |senues wzo|wst Ll .ﬁﬂww_ﬂu eug|ane sn,
| | \ 1BUIND 17 -
Fpesbdn MIS SWYHAIIA ! [ f ] m_z_ur_ mU.:mu_ | i A_ ,., T e GeT sau3ua0 W/ '0|%sT s)ealq z ‘payduelq ansadwed -
— ﬁ |- | (| ) 1 \ kS l1es ; | | *Bumno ‘z/0 'a ‘001-08 .
I | | IS B LSTERTE) AWEUSA| % XN WiI0j/5peib/azs ENE
[ | 1l | ! Pt | e g, = - 8 — — (W bS 0gp Xo1dde) (TWL) T Xilll mMoIabpat|/3ai
. ueq ssei5 Bufysixa: < | ‘ : = ST Qi
_, | | | | ! { 7 7 i 9 umoys sy Japes| Xt ‘g ‘052-002 SHISIAIAS snul
B [ = b f— — -
[ { | ! /_ i posies 5upnd -juejdsuedy]
P | ol i s umous sy 12/1/0 ‘8 '002-SLT sibey Hies,
| | | (. i
i ! 1 . | 25 pasies bunand -juejdsuely]
| esodamiiisauly ouz | ; g - | v umoys sy '2/1/0 '8 '002-5L1 eqie xi2s
_ ejnpuUad BjMag ou j 7] ) \ syealq
) { | mx_ R 1| e £ 'paiayjeay abie \
[ | nz_ leS | \'/v 6 umoys sy IXE 8y 0SY-00% ‘ 81-9T pinpuad emagl |
! | | — syealq
| mﬁ._u.,mu>_>w snuld "ou T- - . Hlll.n..mlhrrnn..ww.uvbl\lrl . £ ‘paiayieay abue \
. % It S umoys sy XE g _0S¥-00% ‘ 81-9T esounn|b snuly
[Aqueny|  ANsuaq| Y% XIW wI10}/2pelb/ozIS

< | enpuad ejued ‘eu 1

. _ SLIS3AIAS Snuld "ou 7

]
| enpuad einjeg ou 1
m mmwc_u:_.ﬁ snujy "ou |

ONIQTING “

ONI¥3LYMIA |
Q350d0Yd

N i

NOISSIRI3d SMNNY 1
)

ONIINOS-Seiom asodoxd T

NN 1IAIA
311 - DRIOM EBOJONd

EHSNONEA STIUONYLS -
SRANLONILS IMLSIXI

VIV NOUNOT AV SMNNY Tl s
SIIINI OL ADI

v

(3Inpayos bugueyd s -
TW1) Bupuerd mosabipey ~7
i posodasg | 251

bunueid 3ag pasodosd I

JuswdopAIp eypey
0} paADUR 3q 0] W4

N\
'sp13saAlAs snuid fou T |
2 L k, enpuad ejnjag ‘ou -

Page 72

|z
srnid
P

. .B.ménwao.:“

| | nmL_u_.__nu:Et ou T |

pauiej s34 Bupsixy

ZL0Z££86 S8 | e|npuad efmaq tou 7 |
Z 8Iqe.L g pougap se _, __.,_mn_nu_ﬁm.ecﬂ |
| :dnoub uoneybaa |

eale uonoajaxd 100! - Yy
foain Bupsixa uf sdef gy oys3ayy

amjeA uonualAL [

| umoys |
S129A OI> Yum $338 3120 @ | 30U Atgpunoq 35 pLoAaq I\\
uasixa

40 3uiAg ‘peag - n kodale) ® I uopeyaban pue sva.) b
Aupenb moj - ) Ao333e) ° | V _ I i
Ayjenb 3jeRpow - g A3a3e) |
Avjenb ySiy jossay) - v kiogaien Y Wi | \
f v

s|le3ap Joj 1odals
S92 BjWE] 0119)9. ISed|d

Aoy

ued adeospue| pesodold :g 8nbi4

Supuep g woy ojens ou 00|
:sa10N




9002 prIsommN PIA sy, @

#SL00 ~LHS - d - 00 -000 ~MNV-0£9V

uq

NVd 4.LIS dSOdO¥d
(dHL) NOLLSHEDIA 4DANTS IONVHNA
va

4avdaddn MLS SIWVHJHH

Aavandn MLS SIWVHHH

apes3dn LS sweydaad] 0g9y umy o

NOANOT/ SIWVHd T

porEdIpul Sy
s

[ 1a1eM
Ad3A130 1Y0 | sameny
selN JoreM sewey
S10TLOLO INED ar NOLLVOI'TddV ONINNV Id

$3504¥Nd ONINNY1d ¥04 03T¥OS 38 NvO SONIMY¥A

w 00574 3Tv0S

zo,mgma ONINNYTd ONININDTY - oM aasododd [

mums&odﬁo Q3LLINYTd - SHYOM a350dodd [

P Q3HSITOW3A STUNLONYLS — —
SIYNLONYLS ONILSIXT ——

V3V NOILYOITddY ONINNY Td - e

SIAAIINITOL ATA

SdANd FOVISHIINI¥3LSION "1
SdNd ¥3ISNYAL 390N7S 4313910 06

(SMW3L1 404 992 940 335 - § v3HY) ONRI3LYMIA 390115 3153910 ‘62
(LS W3L1 404 09200 940 338 - ¥ Y3Y) dHO 82

(SN 31140465200 940 336 - V) dHL 22

SOVLS Fuv14 ‘%

39Y0 AVQYxY4 OV8 SY9 JOVHOLS SYOOIR ‘52

OVE SYO FOVHOLS SYO0K 7

dHLOL SdNNd H3ISNVAL 30ANTS AXYARId €2

HSODi HILYMHSYM ‘22

12

<Q3HSMON3C> 02

ONIQING ¥31S3910 61

SH3153910 AUV ‘B

SHITIOHSYO 2}

I04INOD OO 91

3OVHOLS ¥INAT0d ‘5l

(ONIQING LT38YNOY NI SANNd ¥39SNYaL 30NTS GLVALLOY M3IN "L
ONITTING L138YNOY 01
‘SHNVLIOVHOLS HINATOd

SINVL 34408 S¥S

ONITING STV

NOLLYLS ONIdNd ¥3L 113 9810
YSODI OO dLL

(dLL) INYd INSWLYTHL ANVILS3L
<Q3HSIONIA>

(dSv) INv1d 390N18 GLYALLOY
(515d) SHNYL INSWTLLZS AxvHiRid

SIANLONELS [93008d O1 A1

SALON

00-dHL-MNY 438NN
ONIMVYHA NOILYIITddY ONINNYId

MOOOOOen .,
AL e
DOnomonn
TO000HII0NIo0n. |

zvzaabgzﬁﬁbgmggma
‘ - MM

St
IOV poommn
— | I

o

e e e

-

OOMMA:




v T9LO0 ~LHS - d - 00-0T0 ~MNV-0£9V

o ox A

ONIATING NOLLVYANAD WVALS ¥ VAV
(dH.L) NOLLSEDIA 39dNTS AONVHNA

a4avdddn MLS SWVHdIdd
sy

a4avandn MLS SWYHdIdd

porEdIpul Sy
-

AYIAITFA TYLIAYO sawey )
saniN 401eM sowey L

v

e | wea
IN/ED

$3504¥Nd ONINNY1d ¥04 03T¥OS 38 NvO SONIMY¥A

w 0014 3T¥08

SALON

N_.o.n_I.r.v:\,_(m_m_m_EDZ
ONIMVYHA NOILYIITddY ONINNYId

g $52UISNE GO

05911194

¥00Q $$3007

4004 3 STIVM HOLYW OL
SFANOTE STILING VIOSV3

005 T4 3178 TYNDIS ¥NOT00 TS G3INIYd
SYALINHS 931108 ¥ 59000

5202 v (3NOLSNOOW) A349 ¥N0T0D '133HS O 1108d 133LS G310 10SUSY1d
3008 B STV

STV ONIG INE TNEaDa

00131 :FW0S 7 19200

NOILYAI13 1SaMm ¥

¥00Q $5300V

00151 :3W0S 7 1900

NOILYAZ13 1SY3 '€

05911 194

¥00Q ¥3LLNHS ¥3T104

05911194

00131 FWOS 7 1900

NOILYATT3 HLNOS 'Z

05911194

00l WSL

1900

NOILVYAS T3 HLHON

N o 1 O

}




o a

ONIATING OO AH ¥ ATdHD % dHL AINIFINOD

4avdddn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

suy penuo)

4avandn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

porEdIpul Sy

ops

AYIAITFA TYLIAYO sawey )
saniN 401eM sowey L

[AI)

INVED NOLLYOITddV ONINNVId v

$3504¥Nd ONINNY1d ¥04 03T¥OS 38 NvO SONIMY¥A

w 0014 3T¥08

Il
i
7

Uil
iy
it

7]
i
i

i

i
I

SALON

P1L0-dHL-MANY 438NN
ONIMVYHA NOILYIITddY ONINNYId

e, agrvzz Sz )+
11 90vvZ 922 O+
108 525 SWoA oS feisuweg

MY E

g $52UISNE GO

o0seLl 194

¥0OQ ¥3LLNHS ¥3T108

3004 2 STIVM HOLYW OL
SFIANOT % SYALING VIOSV3

5003 T4 3178 TYNDIS ¥NOT00 T33LS G3INIVd
SHALINAS ¥3TI08 ¥ 549000

6602 T4 (BNOLSNOOW) A9 ¥N0T00 'L33HS (T T108d 133LS G3L¥0D 10SLSY1d
3008 8 STV

STYREL NI ING WNGaDa

004: | FIVOS 7 £9.00

NOILYAT13 HLNOS 12

o0Li1 HSL £9.00

NOILYATT3 LSIM '+

059l 194

¥00Q $53007

[ HSL £9/00 004: | FIV0S 7 £900

NOILYAT3 LSv3 I€ NOILVAIT3 HLHON |}

05911194

4000 §5300V




9002 PrT somn Ay s, @

v 69L00 ~LHS - d - 00 -0£0 “MINV-0£9V

oy ox A

Avd VD ¥ ONIATING DNIIALVMEQ - § VIV
(dHL) NOLLSEDIA EDANTS AHONVHNH

mLAnveq

4avdddn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

su penuo)

4avandn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

Sy loig
o o
NOGNO'T/ SWVHAFAA wwoy. womwaon
pajediput sy v AALVMALSYM
s g o s s dnouy wlosg
r N LE6EEEDL 72184
@ sy Gunoog sy S0 spoo oreser
. ——
a0 200 ey e ey 30y
0 upry asony \b_g.l
ALIAMFA TYLIIYO sawey]
SonN 19yeMm sewey |
TR ) o ]
INED | msd NOLLVOIlddV DNINNVId V.

$3504¥Nd ONINNY1d ¥04 03T¥OS 38 NvO SONIMY¥A
w 0024 3T¥05

o 8 e v z 0 2

Page 76

SALON

U o WOV

m_,o.n_I._..x§<mmm=>_DZ
ONIMVYHA NOILYIITddY ONINNYId

e e

g S58UISNE YOI

HSYM 133HM

00z: L H«owi 69.00

NOILYATT3 1SIm [+

V34Y ONIGYOT HONO¥HL IANA

Y
w00zZL+ 194

SYIVLS $$300Y

LHOIFH TIVH3A0

0065T
0EVPT

MO138 NOOY JOW
HLIM LINN 38V413M

400Y B STIVM HOLYW OL
STIANOTS SHALING VIOSYH

500 v 3118 TYNDIS ¥N0100 13318 GIUNIVY
SYALLNHS 431108 ¥ 58000

SE0L ¥4 (3NOLSNOOW) AFHO HNOT00 '133HS 03 1140Md T3ALS (3LY00 10SLSYd
009 B STV

ONIGAYTO TIVM VLI 3 TIH0¥d

TIVM HSNd

‘ONIAY1D TIVM VL3N A3 1408d ONIQaY10 400 13N a311408d

00z: 1 FWS 7 69200

NOILYAI1F HLNOS |€

I

ONIGAYTO TIVM L3N 03 TIH08d — ﬁ “ONIAAYTD 400¥ T¥LIW G104

00Z: 1 HSL 69.00

NOILYAT13 1SV3 12

Y
w00zZl+ 194

ONIGAY19 4008 L3N a3 11408d

TIVMHSNd

¥00Q Y3LLNHS
HITI0H TYNY3LX3

TIVM HSNd

00z: 1 H,GL 69,00

NOILYAT 13 HLYON [}

¥00Q VLI TYNY3LX3
OL SHIVLS SS300V

¥00Q TVAIN
IYNEILXE

w00z L+ 194

MO138 WOOM JOW HLIM LINN FHY1IM|

i

ONIGaY10 TIYM Y13 3TIH0¥d L

F "ONIAAV10 400¥ V13N A3 N08d




9007 PrISoWIDN P sTYL ©

1LL00 =LHS - d - 00 -000 ~MINV-0£9V

ox A

114S SNOLLOES ALIS
(dHL) NOLLSHEDIA 4DANTS IONVHNI

omy A

4avdddn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

suy penuo)

4avandn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

ey ol

PEIRIN LS SWEdoaq 0F9V s us

NOGNO'T/ SWVHAFAA wwoy. womwaon
payediput sy v AALVMALSYM
s g o ssooig g oy potosg
ar N LE6EEEOL Z7184:39a
squung sy snng 0450 spoo oreser
. ——
aHO 2000 RupEay S gy 50y
oy uryosoy e —
A21eM
ALIAMFA TYLIIYO sawey]
selN JoreM sewey
o [T R o =
SI0TL0L0 | NED NOILVOITddV DNINNV'Id V.

$3504¥Nd ONINNY1d ¥04 03T¥OS 38 NvO SONIMY¥A

N~

o
©
o

0521 308

[m— — ]

vz o 2

MINYL¥3A4NG LWL GlE
QY4 J9VIOLS YD B ONITTING ONRZLYMIA 1€

SYINMOASNYHL AH VRV ONRJTLYMIA 3DANTS GAUSION  ELE

SO ONISO0 B dN-HYW HINAT0d ONRILYMIA F90NTS LSO 2UE
SdNNd 0334 390N 03153910 SS35d INRELYMIA SANOS HOH ~ “HE.
YINYLY3JANG LIS OO 0lE
SYNYL 0334 390N7S 03153910 SS35d ONREELYM3A SANOS HOH  '60E-
SINYL FOWHOLS B dN-DAYH HINAI0d ONRILYMIA 39ANTS 43LSIDIA 80E
075 3OVHOLS ¥INATO INRALYM3A 390M1S 03153910 “L08

(2N100) ¥OV1S ONIWALSAS NOLLYILNIA ALMIOYA SNRALYMIA 908
1354315008 ¥3LYM T18VI0d  50E
135 431008 YALYMHSYM, V0E
SINYLYYHE YALM TIBYL0d  E0E
INVL VS Y3LYMHSYM 208
SINVL¥3440G FLYHINGD 108
YOVIS ML GHO 907
INONIAHD 0T

MINYLIOROIS IO TS '$0C
ONICTING WALSAS NOLLYANIO WYALS 602
ONIGTING D0W AH B A1dHO B dHL GINIBWOD 200
SYINHOISNYHLAH Y3V dHL 102
YSODIONISOA B N30 ¥INATO ONRIFLYMIA dHI-Td €2

N VR4V dHL - 135 ¥3LIS008 HILYMHSYM 221
VASY dHL - 135 ¥3LSO08 ¥ILYM T8I0 IZh
VY HL -INVLIYINE ¥ILYM TI8YL0d 02k
VY dHL ~INVLIYINE YILYMHSYM Bl
Q@)+ 100) %0vLS ONIGNTONIWALSAS INNLYZNL 81000 YauY dHL 811
SNARHOS 300NMS NSSd 21

SdNd YIISNIL IOANTS AIANTTE 94
HOSSTUMODMNVL ¥344NE  Sib
SdNNd GFINII0S 1L
SINVL¥34NE SN0 ELL
SHNYL IOWHOLS 300MS INTIOS  Thh
SINVLONIONII8 390N L1
SN SSYdABHL DL
SdNNdNOLNTIG 601

SdiNNd 0333 FONIMINGO 804
NOLLYLS ONIdING 3LYHLTI SIONIRINIO ONKILYMIA dHI-Td 201
SdNNd ¥3ISNYHL IDANTS GISATONAAH 904
INYTd (dHL) SS300Yd SISATOYTAH TNHL 501
Ol QI HL 0L
STONIMINZO ONRIELYMIQ dHLI-Rdd 0L
SHNVL FOVHOLS B dN-IHWI HINATO ONRIFLYMIA dHI-Td 201
OIS 39VHOLS ¥INATOd ONRIILYNIA dHLTAd  “10}

SdNNd FOVLSHILNI ¥3153
SdNNd ¥3SNiL FOANTS A3LSIONA 0E

<Q3HSNON3C> 02
ONITTING ¥31S39I0 61
SH31539I0 XA ‘Bl
SUITIOH SO L1
I0KINOD ¥10QO 91
JOVHOLS ¥INATOd b
SNV 434408 390N7S L
SeHiNd 0334 43153
YINY1 0334 43153910 7).
(ONIQING LT38YNDY NI SANd ¥3ISNvaiL 390NM1S GLYALLOY M3N "L
ONIQTING L138YNOY 0}
SYNVLIOVHOLS ¥INATOd

SINYL 3408 S¥S

ONIATING SSRANY I

NOILYLS ONIdWNd ¥31714 0810
YSODI Q0N dLL

(dLL) INVd INFNLYZRIL ASVILNIL
<03HSMON30>

(dSv) LNv1d 390N1S GLYALLOY
(515dl) SYNVL INFWFLLIS AV

STANLONGLS [03M08d 01 A

VIS V4 %
FOVO AYOVYYA 9Y8 S¥O FOVHOLS SYO0IE ST
98 S¥O 39I0LS SYO0I8 1T
dHLOL SdNd ¥3SNVL IOANTS AW €2
SODI ALYMHSYM T2

SALON

U o WOV

120-dHL-MAY J38NNN

ONIMVYHA NOILYIITddY ONINNYId

2} 88752z 92ZLOPPY

1 90vvZ 922 O+

108 525 SWoA oS feisuweg

g S58UISNE YOI

MY

¢NOILVATT3 I

052: 13908

e = ==

052 fm.zomi 12100

(@3ANNILNOD) | NOILYAT T3 al

T
wjooezh

I

@

| NOILYATT3 (B}

F
wooL kL

05Z: 13908 | 11100

®




9007 PrISoWIDN P sTYL ©

v TLLOO <LHS - d - 00 <000 “MNY-0£9Y
G g
TS SNOLLDES ALIS

(dHL) NOLLSHEDIA 4DANTS IONVHNI

st newia

4avdddn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

suy penuo)

4avandn MLS SWYHdIdd 09V

ey ol

PEIRIN LS SWEdoaq 0F9V s us

NOANOTT/ SWVHAAA vy jworesen

pajedipul sy v MALVMELSYM

s s woug s s oy poiosg

ar N LEGEEEOL Z71SdHA

sguseiq oy snaos w50 290 vowo
——

dHO 200 Bapeay e ey 250y

o —
o uiry 350y

121EM
A3AM3a Tv1dY0 | saueyy
saninN 18jep) sewey |
e St =
S10TLOLO INED ar NOLLVOI'TddV ONINNV Id v

082° 1308 7 210

(@3aNNILNOD) ¥ NOILYAT 13 |ap

~

4

$3504¥Nd ONINNY1d ¥04 03T¥OS 38 NvO SONIMY¥A
w 05214 308
o —ww
o e 8 v z 0 z

INVLY344N8 IIVHLTE  SlE

Q¥d IOVHOLS YO 3 ONITTING ONRELYMIA  4E.

‘SHINHOSNVAL AH YRV ONRELYMIA 390NIS GALSION €€

YSODI OISO B dN-3WW ¥FNATOd ONRILYM3] 390NTS GALSIDIA  ZhE
SdNNd 0334 300N1S 03LS3DN0 SSTUd INRALYMIASANOS HOH *HE.
YINYL¥333N8 3LV TYI0T  DIE

SNVL 0334 390N7S GILSIOI] SS30d ONRALYMIA SANOS HOH  '60E.
SYNYL 39VOLS B dN*DAVW ¥INATOd ONRILYMIA 390N 1S G3LSIDI  BOE
OIS IOVIOLS ¥INATOd INRIALYM3A 390MTS AILSIONT *20¢

(2N00) V1S ONIW3LSAS NOLLYTLINIA ALMIOYA ONRSZLYMIA  '90E
135431008 ¥3LVM T18YIOd  S0E

135431008 YALVMHSYM 0¢

INVLVIHE Y3LYM T18YI0d €0

YINYL YIS YILYMHSYM 206

MINVL¥344N8 ILVHINGD  H0E

YOVIS NN GHO 907

INIONIAHD 0T

HINYLIOWIOLS IO TS "H07

ONITTING WALSAS NOLLVXANID WYALS 607

ONIGTING D0W AH B A1dHO B dHL GINIBWOD 200

SYINHOISNYHL AH V3V dHL 102

Q0  350MONIS00 S dN- iV HINATOSONRELYIZA dHLRid €2
N~ V34V dHL - 135 ¥3LS008 MIALYMHSYM  TCh
VY dHL - 135 ¥ILS008 ¥LYM T18VI0d  “1zk

YRS GHLOINYLIVRIEMELYM TI8VI0d 02

() VY dHL-INVL Y38 HLYMHSYM, Bl
N100) YOVLS ONIGNTONI NELSAS INFALYRIL HNOT0 V3 dHL 81l
SNFFH0S I0AIS RNSSRU 1)

© SINNA HFISNVIL 390TIS GRONTTS 9L
YOSSIUAWOO MNYL ¥3JdNE Gl
P SdANd G331 NTOS  ¥hb

MINVL¥3IING SIHOAN e

SINVL IOWIOLS 30NTS GINFRIOS 21
SYNYLONIGNII8300MS  “LiL

SANNA SSYAABHL 011

SANNdNOLLNTIG 601

SdNd 0334 3ONIHINTD 801

NOLLYLS ONIdNNd 3LVHLTIH SIONMINGO ONLYMIA dHI-Tdd 101
SNNd Y3SNRL IOANTS GISAIOHAAH 90k

INYTd (dHL) SS3003d SISATOHOAH WWS3HL 501

OIS QT4 dHL 101

SIONIMINIO ONRALYMIA dHL-Red €01

SHNVL FOVHOLS B dN-IHVI ¥3WATOd ONRIZLYMIA dHI-Tdd 201
OIS 39VHOLS YINAT0d ONIILYMIA dHLFEd  “10b

SdiiNd FDVLSHAINI¥ILSION ‘1€

SdiNNd ¥3SNWIL IOANTS 031391 0

YOVLS Y14 ‘9L

39¥D AVOY2YA 9¥8 S¥9 3OVHOLS SYOOIE ST
O¥E SYO 3OVHOLS SYO0I8 72

dHL 0L SN H3ISNSL 390NIS AVINRId ‘€2
MSODI HALYMHSYM ‘22

<GIHSITON3C> 02
ONITING ¥31$39(0 61

43153910 AV ‘8l

SUITTOH SO 21

704INOD ¥N0T0 9k

3OVHOLS ¥INATOd Sh

SYNVL ¥344n8304017S 7L

SdiNNd 0334 4313910 ‘th

YINYL G334 4313910 7}

(ONIGING LTIBYNDY N SdNd ¥3ISNL 390NTS GILYALLOY M3N "1
ONIOTING 1T38YNDY 0}

SYNVL3OVHOLS ¥INAIOd

N 33408 SYS

ONITING SSRUMYTA

NOLLYLS ONIdNNd 31114 9510

SOD 9O dLL

(dLL) INVTI INFNLYZNL ANVILEL

<Q3HSIONI>

(dsv) LNv1d 39078 GALYALLOY

(615d) SYNYL INIWTLLIS Axvid

SFINIONFLS 1037084 OL /A

SALON

U o WOV

CC00-dHL-MINY d3aNNN
ONIMVYHA NOILYIITddY ONINNYId

2} 88752z 92ZLOPPY

1 90vvZ 922 O+

108 525 SWoA oS feisuweg
g S58UISNE YOI

MY

O
N
® o

erf

082° 1308 | 2100

¥ NOILVATT13 [y

0¢)

@ @

(90¢}

082: 1 3OS | 21400

€ NOILVATTA €

o1




Page 79 A ot vi

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 24" November 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, | Andy Higham Town

Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson
Ms Gemma Robinson

Ref: 15/04171/RE4 Category: LBE - Dev by LA

LOCATION: 4 And 5, Burleigh Way, EN2 6AE,

PROPOSAL: Change of use form Retail (A1) to Medical Health Clinic (D1).

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Bindi Nagra Tahir Ditta

P O Box 52

Civic Centre

B Block South
Silver Street
EN1 3XD

RECOMMENDATION:
That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with Regulation 3 of
the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to conditions.




Page 80

Ref: 15/04171/RE4 LOCATION: 4 And 5, Burleigh Way, EN2 6AE,

—T L
O = = ‘ ’ z
5
Enfield Grammar School
The
Grammar
School
m House
m]
5D
T |
ENFIELD TOWH
7 (=]
||
PH
|
107
Benjamin Court
=
g 3
| | | 5 -
=
g -] |
T
|
o Market b
15 7 ||
| L] 1 4to 5 3 1ta2
|
. S ey e e e
.DR ——
‘H STREET u Boro Const & Ward By
|
e
26 2 4e 24 i
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. ®
ENF(%ELD’ Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




Page 81

Site and surroundings

1.1

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

The application site area comprises a relatively new ground floor unit to the
north side of the pedestrianised section of Burleigh Way. It currently has Al
retail use.

The surrounding area is a mix of commercial units on the ground floor and
residential above. To the east Burleigh Way leads to the Market Square and
to the south it joins Church Street.

The site is within the Enfield Town Conservation Area, within a Site of
Archaeological interest and a Major Centre.

Proposal

Planning permission is sought for the change of use from Retail (Al) to
Medical Health Clinic (D1).

The Medical Health Clinic will comprise five (5) treatment rooms, two cubicle
service areas with ancillary waiting area, reception, wash closets and staff
room with kitchenette.

The proposed opening hours are to be:

Monday to Friday: 8.00am to 7.00pm;

Saturday: 9.00am to 2.00pm; and

Sunday: 9.00am to 2.00pm.

No change to the total floor space is proposed, it will remain as 157m?.

The proposed total number of full time employees is 6, with no part-time
employees proposed.

Relevant Planning Decisions

TP/10/1112 Planning permission granted for the demolition of the existing
building and erection of 6 commercial units & 39 residential units (50% of
which Affordable Housing) in two, part 3 & part 4 storey blocks, comprising of
6 x 1-bed, 17 x 2-bed & 16 x 3-bed flats, incorporating accommaodation in roof

space with front, rear & side dormer windows & pedestrian access to the
Market Place.

Consultation
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Environmental Health

No objection.

Enfield Town Conservation Area Study Group

No comments received.



4.1.3

4.1.4

4.2

42.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

Page 82

Conservation Officer

No objection.

Traffic and Transportation

No objection.
Public

Letters were sent to 84 neighbouring properties. The consultation period
ended on the 15 October 2015. No representations were received.

Relevant Policy

The London Plan

6.13 Parking
7.4 Local Character

Core Strateqgy

CP13 Promoting economic prosperity

CP16 Economic success and skills

CP17 Town Centres

CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

Development Management Document

DMD16 Provision of new community facilities
DMD26 Enfield Town

DMD44 Conserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets
DMD45 Parking Standards and Layout

Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance
Enfield Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal

Analysis

Principle

The principal of a change of use is acceptable providing that it does not harm
the vitality and viability of the shopping centre, amenities of residential
occupiers, street scene, conservation area nor impact upon traffic and

parking.

Impact on Vitality and Viability

CP18 of the Core Strategy states that a range of facilities and uses will be
encouraged consistent with the scale and function in the hierarchy, to meet
people’s day to day needs whilst preserving the predominance of retail use



6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

Page 83

within the centres. CP17 encourages development that would ensure that
Enfield Town will be the preferred location for new retail, leisure and cultural
developments, particularly those with a borough wide catchment area.

DMD26 relates to Enfield Town and states development within primary
shopping areas, comprising primary and secondary frontages must have
regard to a number of criteria amongst others including the following; it must
not create an over-concentration of similar uses, must be of an appropriate
town centre use and complement the shopping function of the centre, retain a
shop front, achieve an active ground floor frontage during the day, not have a
detrimental visual impact and must respect the character of the centre.

The units the subject of this application are not on a primary shopping
frontage and therefore may support non-Al uses. Moreover, the units have
been vacant since their construction and have struggled to attract long term
occupiers. The proposed community service use will complement existing
uses in the Enfield Town centre area by providing a key community service in
an area that is well serviced by public transport and will bring into use a long
standing vacant unit .

DMD26 is further supported by DMD25 under general considerations for town
centre development whereby development will only be permitted if it meets
the following set of criteria:

a. the proposed use supports town centre vitality and viability,

b. the design and siting of the development promotes visual continuity
with the surrounding built environment,

c. the proposed use does not harm the character, appearance and
amenity of the area,

d. the residential amenities of local residents will not be harmed by way
of noise, disturbance, loss of daylight or privacy,

e. the development will not have an adverse impact on safety and traffic
flows or unacceptably add to traffic and parking problems in the area,

f. the scale of parking is proportionate to the size of the development,
and an active frontage is achieved at the ground floor.

Those elements that are repeated in both policies but not assessed above are
assessed below.

Provision of Community Facilities

DMD16 encourages new community facilities which will be supported
borough wide, with planning permission being granted providing the proposed
development is demonstrated to have a community need, makes an efficient
and effective use of land and buildings, and where appropriate, provides
opportunities for co-location, flexible spaces and multi-use, is easily
accessible to the community it is intended to serve by walking, cycling and
public transport to reduce dependence upon private car transport, is designed
to provide access for physically impaired users, does not harm the amenities
of neighbouring and nearby properties and does not have a negative impact
on the area in terms of the potential traffic generated.

The proposed use as a medical centre will provide health care services within
the centre of the Enfield Town area. It is considered that the proposal makes
efficient use of an existing building to provide a high demand community
service.



6.3.3

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

Page 84

The site is located on the pedestrianised section of Burleigh Way which is
accessible for both disabled and non-disabled people from both the Market
Square and also via Church Street. Taking the above into consideration the
proposal would be an appropriate sustainable use of the site having regard to
DMD16.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area

The site was permitted for retail uses but has never been occupied. The
application does not propose any external changes to the building except for
window signage and minor identification treatments. However, the
arrangement of facilities within the building will mean that the existing
shopfront windows are likely to be obscured in some way, to safeguard the
privacy of patients. Whilst recognising the need for privacy, it is considered
important to see details of the treatment of the windows to encourage an
active and visually interesting frontage as possible and therefore a condition
is recommended requiring the submission of details. Subject to this, and
taking into consideration that there is otherwise no change to the external
structure of the shop front, it will not harm the character and appearance of
the unit and so would serve to conserve the Enfield Town Conservation Area
having regard to DMD37 and DMD44.

Any signage associated with the proposed use will need to obtain advertising
consent as appropriate.

Impact on Neighbouring Residential Properties

The medical use will occupy the ground floor unit of the proposal. The upper
floors above the commercial units of Burleigh Way are residential. The
proposal does not include any external additions. Taking into consideration
the mixed use nature of the surrounding area, the proposal will not have an
unduly harmful impact to nearby residential occupier’'s amenities having
regard to DMD25 and DMD26.

Impact on Traffic and Pedestrians

Currently the site has no designated parking spaces for staff vehicles nor for
the public. There is restricted parking available within Market Square on
specific days of the week. The site area has a Public Transport Access Level
rating of 5 (with 1 being the least accessible and 6 being the most
accessible). The site is served by a number of bus routes, with bus stops
nearby and Enfield Town Rail station in close walking distance. The unit is
currently situated on a pedestrianised section of Burleigh Way.

Due to the location the proposed use is unlikely to attract trade from passing
cars. There are parking restrictions along Church Street but parking facilities
are available within the car parks near Little Park Gardens and Cecil Road.
Taking the above into consideration the change of use is within a highly
accessible area with various modes of transport available.

In addition, the proposal would not have a negative impact upon pedestrian
safety.



6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.8

6.8.1

7.1

8.1

Page 85

Hours of Operation

The proposed opening hours are to be Monday to Friday 8am — 7pm,
Saturday 9am — 2pm and Sunday and Bank Holidays 9am to 2 pm.

Should permission be granted a condition will be attached ensuring that any
changes to the hours of operation for the D1 use will have to be first agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This will also ensure there is no
undue harm to the residents of the surrounding area. In addition to this
Environmental Health have no objections. In regard to the above the proposal
accords with policies CP30, DMD25 and DMD26.

Refuse and servicing

The existing development incorporates bin stores (general waste and
recyclable) for the retail units at the ground floor. For the duration of the
project, the bins are to be stored in the retail secondary bin store which is 1 of
3 bin stores located to the left of the Unit 1 Burleigh Way. This is acceptable
having regard to DMD32.

Conclusion

It is considered that the change of use of the retail unit to D1 will not be
detrimental to the surrounding area and will add vitality to the shopping area
and will conserve the character and appearance of the Enfield Town
Conservation Area.

Recommendation

That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with
Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992
subject to conditions :

C60  Approved Plans

C38 Restricted Hours - Opening
The premises shall only be open for business and working between
the hours of 08:00hrs and 19:00hrs Monday to Friday, 09:00 and
14:00 on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Reason: to ensure that the approved use does not unduly prejudice
the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby residential
properties.

C49 Restricted Use Class

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015, or any amending
Order, the premises shall only be used for purposes within Use Class
D1(a) ‘for the provisions of any medical or health services except the
use of premises attached to the residence of the consultant or
practitioner’.

Reason: To ensure the premises is used only for a Use Class D1(a)
purpose and no other Use Class D1 purposes that may result in
adverse traffic or noise impacts in Burleigh Way.



Page 86

4 That prior to occupation of the premises details shall be submitted of any
proposed treatment to be applied to the existing windows to the front
elevation of the building to safeguard the privacy of patients. The works shall
be carried out only in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.

5 C51A Time Limited Permission



Page 87

10 40 10 10 - 98900/ “oNNudn
fap uBpwing  auweualy
20y Buymesg 357 | -- : Aiepunog sus 31
el L payoayg | -- B g L]
BQUNUE BpUAR  lumRi] | -- "B WooH IRoL
Bd ABMNG | Zw)GL RNy eS| 55049
516060 wageg | -- RSy [RWINXT SEOUD
o @ooLt e | -- TR S oL
.- W 360 UOBULCY| EBSY
"Sue|d pasodold 3 Bunsix3

UE|d JOOY PUNOJD) .o,

3¥9 ZN3 'uopuo?
'Xesa|ppIN ‘pleyu3
Aep YBIBINg G B b SHUN  ihuedosg

L £, TSP 1Y LAk M i . P 1Y Ko
e LA T TR 1 Sl 15 A D 1 (BMr R st e A NN

et e

—

i | BOLLIAULSHEY
| s

i

= ]

Buiuado axep

LNOAVT ONILSIX3

T

1NOAVT1 d3S0Od0¥d




-Page 88—

20 40 20 ¢0-989V00/N  oNvued

Kemyblopng g yIun  :aweua|i4

BeNa L o8y Bumelq 3g7 | SeA : Arepunog ais 391
wna'L P0EUD| 000 I EEERY 1NOAVT ONILSIX3
Jsquinyg Jspuined  tumelq 000 ‘ealy wooy [el0l
Jaquinyg Japuinied  :AsaIns | 000 ‘ealy [BUIBIU| SSOID § § ] i :E: § 1
S102-60-60 @ked | 000 ‘Baly [BUIRX] SSOI9
£V © 00T:T 9[eds | 000 BalY 8lIS [e10L
e SonELIOl Tary T x : ey : ,
suoisuawiq 7
sue|d pasodoid 3 Bunsix3
ue|d 100j4 punoig DL Buiuado e 7
3v9 ¢N3 ‘uopuon g

‘osa|ppIA ‘pIayu3
Kep yblaIung G 3 ¥ IUN  Ausdoig

0269

zves

8¥8eT

0566

areq U0 | wa uonduosaq Aoy I_ID O><I_ O Z _I_lm_xm

ves

, P "
102-60-60| 8d | 8d Aiddng remu) 00 i sove 3 s
ST02-60GT | 8d | 9d | GT-60-4T SHN Woy [lews 0} Se papuawy | T
L L L pE— L r
M o]
3
cwgg |8
101S
2 Wy ET | ZwoT
° woo. juswieal] wooy swex3y
= 0092 - f
g k)
W N
zwge DNl B WS 0T
avi 8 JuawWIeal) 1s8) J|8S
.| 9
g weT Zwg Zw
Banog puoluag o lv4 L WooJ Juawyeal 1591 119S wooy yerg
w 00tz 19 z1se )T 000T T 788¢€ T 5562
2unda | £uoBaunsano: 5 g
P
Wl
| -
[y
W v29e T eretT T T6€C T T6€C
| ——NADL ng,ﬁp [
7, o  ~ 0566 8v8CT
| o - [

31IS NO N3XV.L 38 LSNIN SNOISNIWIQ 1TV "ONIMYHd WO¥S 3TvIS LON 0d




Page 89

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 24" November 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham
Sharon Davidson
Ms M Demetri

Ward:
Grange

Ref: 15/04172/HOU

Category: Householder

LOCATION: 74 The Chine, London, N21 2EH,

PROPOSAL: Single storey side extension, part single, part 2-storey rear extension, raised patio and
detached shed at rear and hard surfacing and new steps to front.

Applicant Name & Address:
MrY Kazim

Agent Name & Address:
John Perrin And Co

74 The Chine 885, Green Lanes,
London London,

N21 2EH N21 2QS
RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions




Page 90

Ref: 15/04172/HOU LOCATION: 74 The Chine, London, N21 2EH,

e
e
P
P

A

North

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council

ENFIELD




Page 91

Site and Surroundings

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

Number 74 The Chine comprises an interwar semi-detached dwelling circa. 1921-
1935 that is sited within the boundaries of the Grange Park Conservation Area. The
dwelling is characteristic of inter-war speculative housing and has a strong Arts and
Crafts influence, featuring a double height canted bay window (leaded lights) topped
with a projecting half-timbered gable, canted oriel window and a hipped roof (clay
tiled) with central exposed brick chimney stack over. A brick porch set on a canted
plan with original half glazed timber door and clay tiles over is a prominent feature to
the front elevation along the front boundary.

The site has an east to west orientation and there is a slope on the site so that the
application dwelling is set at a higher ground level than the rear boundary. The front
garden comprises soft landscaping and a sweeping path. There is hardstanding
along the side of the house that leads to an existing detached garage which is set
back from the rear elevation of the house sited adjacent to the common boundary
with number 72 The Chine. To the rear of the garage is a store and greenhouse. The
rear garden measures approximately 325 square metres and is enclosed with close
boarded fencing.

Grange Park Conservation Area is formed of a cohesive group of houses and shops
initially laid out and partly built between 1910 and 1914 by a single developer, and
subsequently completed in the 1920s and 1930s. The designs of the existing
dwellings draw on strong Arts and Crafts influences and consistently make use of
high quality details and materials. The area retains a strong sense of architectural
unity which is key to its special character and appearance of the area.

No. 74 is cited in the Conservation Area Character Appraisal as a building
contributing to the special interest of the area. Key views identified in the Appraisal
are afforded northwards along the Chine. The Conservation Area is also covered by
an Article 4 (2) Direction which withdraws certain permitted development rights
relating to dwelling houses.

Proposal
This proposal seeks permission for a single storey side extension, part single, part
two-storey rear extension, raised patio to the rear, detached shed to the rear and

alterations to the front hard standing.

The proposal will involve the demolition of the existing garage, stores and green
houses on the site.

Relevant Planning History

15/00422/HOU

Two storey side extension, part single, part two storey rear extension, rear dormer
and rooflights to side and front roof.

Refused on the 29" June 2015. The application was refused based on the following
reason:

The proposed two storey side and rear extension due to its excessive size, width and
design would result in a prominent form of development that would not be
subordinate to the existing dwelling and would unacceptably disrupt the balance of



3.2

4.0

4.1

41.1

41.2

4.2

Page 92

the pair of semi-detached dwellings that make a positive contribution to the
established special character of the surrounding Conservation Area. In this regard,
the proposed development would result in demonstrable harm to the character and
appearance of the application dwelling, the pair of semis, the street scene and the
Grange Park Conservation Area. The proposed development would fail to preserve
or enhance the Grange Park Conservation Area and fail to comply with Policies 7.4
and 7.8 of the London Plan, Policies CP30 and CP31 of the Core Strategy, Policies
DMD8, DMD13, DMD14, DMD37 and DMD44 of the Development Management
Document and the Grange Park Conservation Area Appraisal (2008).

Since the refusal, Officers have been in discussion with the applicant. The current
scheme is reflective of these discussions. The differences are as follows:

The side extension is single storey rather than two storey.

A planter has been incorporated to the front of the single storey side extension.

The drive way has been increased in depth by 0.9m.

The first floor element of the part single, part two storey rear extension has been
reduced in width and is now deeper past the existing bedroom to the rear.

The front roof lights have been removed.

The rear dormer has been removed.

A shed is being erected in the rear garden.

The window facing The Chine serving the study now matches the window on the
existing elevation.

Consultation
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Conservation Officer

No objection is raised as the scheme reflects the discussions agreed prior to the
resubmission. This is subject to the following conditions:

1) Submission of details of the proposed windows (1:20 scale with 1:5 sections
showing cills/headers); and

2) Materials are required to match the existing in terms of brick type, bond and
mortar.

Conservation Advisory Group (CAG)

An obijection is raised to the proposed scheme. The CAG minutes states that No. 74
the Chine comprises an interwar semi-detached dwelling circa 1921- 1935,
characteristic of speculative developments of this era with a strong arts and crafts
influence. The area retains a strong sense of architectural unity which is key to its
special character and appearance. The dwelling is cited as making a positive
contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The Group
noted that key views are afforded northwards along the Chine. Although the
proposed side extension has been set back from the building line and the rendered
plinth helps to break up the massing of the proposed extension, the development is
still highly visible in the streetscape particularly given the steep rising topography of
the site. The Group also stated that the massing is not subordinate to the existing
building and the ridge height should be set below the canopy to the main facade.

Public



42.1

422

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.0

6.1

6.1.1

Page 93

Letters were sent to 6 adjoining and nearby residents, a site notice was posted and a
press notice published in the Enfield Independent and no comments were received.

Grange Park Conservation Area Study Group

The Study Group raises an objection to the scheme as it would do nothing to improve
or add to the character of the Conservation Area. This is because the extension at
the side would look unimpressive and the Study Group to do not like the front
elevation. In view of the hill, the proposal will look imposing from The Chine.

Relevant Planning Policies
London Plan
Policy 7.4 - Local Character

Policy 7.6 — Architecture
Policy 7.8 — Heritage Assets and Archaeology

Core Strateqy

CP30 - Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment
CP31 - Built and landscape heritage

Development Management Document

DMD6 - Residential character

DMD8 — General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD11 - Rear Extensions

DMD13 — Roof Extensions

DMD14 - Side Extensions

DMD37 - Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
DMD44 - Preserving and enhancing heritage assets

Other Policy

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Grange Park Conservation Area Appraisal (2008)
Enfield Characterisation Study

Analysis

Impact on character of the surrounding area and the Conservation Area

Policy

Policy CP31 and Policy DMD44 states that when considering development proposals
affecting heritage assets, regard will be given to the special character and those
applications for development which fail to conserve or enhance the special interest,
significance or setting of a heritage asset will normally be refused. This approach is
consistent with that set out in the NPPF. Policy DMD14 seeks to ensure that
extensions to the side of existing residential properties do not assist in creating a
continuous facade of properties or a terracing effect out of character with the street
scene.



6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.1.5

6.1.6

6.1.7

Page 94

Harm

Any development proposal has some form of impact. An “impact” is not necessarily
harmful. ~ Paragraph 132 of the NPPF confirms that it is the significance of the
heritage asset upon which a development proposal is considered and that “great
weight should be given to the asset’'s conservation”. Where a development will lead
to less than substantial harm, the harm is to be weighed against the public benefits of
the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

Case law has established (Barnwell Manor Wind Energy Ltd v East
Northamptonshire District Council [2014] EWCA Civ 137) that where an authority
finds that a development proposal would harm the setting ... or the character and
appearance of a conservation area, it must give that harm “considerable importance
and weight”. Moreover (Forge Field Society & Ors, R v Sevenoaks District Council
[2014] EWHC 1895 (Admin)) where there is a finding of harm there is a strong
presumption against planning permission being granted.

Assessment

The single storey side extension has been set back from the bay window and
projecting porch of 74 The Chine. The extension has been designed with a crown
roof which benefits from roof lights within the pitched element of the roof. The
rooflights are to be conservation style and are set towards the rear of the side
extension and thus would not be readily apparent in the street scene. The extension
has been designed with a window on the front facade that matches the existing
ground floor window at number 74. Next to the side extension would be a door
leading to an alley way down the side of the garden. Details of this side door would
be required to be submitted. Ultimately, it is considered that the side extension has
been designed to be subordinate to the parent dwelling house. The front facade of
the dwelling house would remain the prominent feature in the street scene due to the
design and siting of the single storey side extension.

The part single, part two storey rear extension is conventional in design and
traditional in appearance. The ground floor French doors are modern in appearance
given the size of the glazing which expands the majority of the width of the extension.
The addition of modern French doors is deemed to be acceptable as they would not
be visible from the public realm.  The ground floor element of the extension has
been designed with a pitched roof that complements the pitched roof element of the
side extension. The first floor element that accommodates the new bedroom has
been designed with a pitched roof which is also hipped to reduce its overall bulk and
mass. The other first floor element has been designed with a flat roof which extends
the depth of the existing bedroom. The flat roof element would not be visible from
the street scene and it is modest in its depth at 1.1m deep.

Details of the patio area materials, the stairs and fence would need to be secured by
way of a condition to ensure they are appropriate for the site.

It is considered that overall the proposed scheme would not harm the Conservation
Area but would have a neutral impact, which would be localised given the siting of 74
The Chine., and thus the character and appearance of the Conservation Area would
be preserved. Further, the larger extensions are situated to the rear of the property
and therefore not visible form the public realm. Furthermore, due to the substantial
level differences along The Chine the full appreciation of the single storey side



6.1.8

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.4

6.4.1

Page 95

element would not be overtly apparent within the street scene or to the wider
Conservation Area.

Conclusion

In conclusion, the proposal would preserve the character and appearance of the
Grange Park Conservation Area. The proposal would comply with Policies 7.4 and
7.8 of the London Plan, Policies CP30 and CP31 of the Core Strategy, Policies
DMD8, DMD14, DMD37 and DMD44 of the Development Management Document
and the Grange Park Conservation Area Appraisal (2008).

Impact on Neighbours

Policy DMD8 requires development to preserve amenity in terms of daylight, sunlight,
outlook, privacy, overlooking, noise and disturbance.

The proposed first floor rear extension would not intrude into a 30 degree line when
taken from the mid-point of the nearest original first floor window from No.72 or 76.
Amended drawings were received that reduced the depth of the extension so that
there is no intrusion into the 30 degree line when taken from No.76.

In terms of the single storey rear extension there would be no intrusion into the 45
degree line when taken from No.72, but there would be an intrusion when taken from
the adjoining neighbour No.76. It is noted that the proposed extension would
measure 3.3 metres in depth but given No.76 has implemented a 2.5 metre deep
single storey rear extension and the proposed extension would be set no higher than
the neighbouring extension it is considered that the proposed extension would not
result in any significant impact on outlook or loss of light to the windows of No.76.

The proposed patio has been reduced in width so that it is set in from the common
boundary with No.76 which would ensure there is no significant opportunity for
overlooking to occur to this neighbour.

Parking/ Amenity Space

The proposal would add one additional bedroom to the dwelling which would result in
a four bedroom dwelling. The rear garden measures approximately 325 square
metres. The proposed extension would not be of a scale that would impede on the
rear garden space enjoyed by the occupants of the application dwelling and therefore
sufficient garden space would be retained for existing and future occupants.

In terms of parking it is important to assess whether the loss of the existing garage
would give rise to conditions that would significantly increase the demands for car
parking provision in the surrounding area in accordance with principles outlined by
NPPF and parking standards referred to by Policy 6.13 of the London Plan. It is
considered that the retention of the hard-standing drive and associated crossover
currently servicing the garage is of sufficient size to accommodate the demands for
off-street parking provision resultant from the loss of the existing garage, thereby,
remaining broadly compliant with NPPF and Policy 6.13 of the London Plan.

Trees/Soft and Hard Landscape

The existing width of the site is 10.5m. The existing width of the hard standing is
2.4m with the remainder being a raised landscaping area with stairs. The proposal
seeks to increase the width of the hard standing to 3.2m (to the front of the side
extension) and 3.5m (to the shared boundary with the public highway). The



6.4.2

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

Page 96

remaining area is to remain as a raised landscaped area with a new brick wall being
erected through the reconstructed bricks already on site. The increase in the width of
the hard standing is deemed to be acceptable. The existing hard standing can only
be described as a sea of tarmac which is uneven. An increase in hard standing is
not always acceptable within the Conservation Area. The current hard standing is
unsightly and suffers from drainage problems. The proposal is to relay the drive way
with permeable block paving. Details of the actual materials would be required by
condition. This improvement to the appearance of the surface finish mean that overall
there is an enhancement, even with the marginal increase in width. No objection is
raised to this element of the scheme.

There are no trees affected by the proposed works.
Other

It should be noted that the Article 4 Direction covering the Grange Park Conservation
Area removes permitted development rights for the erection of outbuildings. A block
plan has been submitted demonstrating that an outbuilding is to be erected to the
rear of the property. A photograph has been submitted demonstrating that the out
building is to be a shed that is to be 2.4m (8ft) wide and 3.6m (12ft) deep. However,
details of the height of this conventional and traditional wooden shed have not been
advanced. This has been requested and an update will be provided at the meeting..
Once established Officers will be able to advise whether the proposal falls within
permitted development rights or whether a condition is required to be imposed for
further details.

CIL

The development is not CIL liable.

7.0 Recommendation

7.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. Time Limit (three years)

2. Plans (to be built in accordance with the approved plans)

3. Details of material, which also includes the brick type, bond and mortar to the
dwelling house and to the burr brick wall and planter

4. Details of the proposed windows to a scale of 1:20 with 1:5 sections showing

cills and heads to be submitted.

Details of the hard standing to be submitted.

Flat roof of the extension not to be used as amenity

Details of the boundary fence to the rear including levels, details of the patio

and details of the stairs of the adjoining site.

8. Details of the proposed shed.

No o



Page 97

g/805T

PTSNOS ¥ NI NHOT

V2001 FI0T 12qUWanoN
e -

TN uopuoTp aud gy, vL

UOISUING 3pIs A2101S a[5ul
“IB1 £21018 0m] pasodol
Pt

S19|

PRAOBE SR 100 OF SOy
Bquimu w paoapas sydigooy
NS

sszauo Jupued od se mornesy | g
§1° IT IRUI0S £Ra0
Tanneyd s (s aurpieae

1 3penis 2m ey )]
Asmpunddg g o TesU e 18 oned
ML SEMAPES 08 WAOp Laols sidarg
B PIOAT 08 MELNRE A 3P
LGISIINX [ HMOUS MOPULA

00() 11 9 ON W0G SUl] ,0F

-

SNOISIAZYH

e g an e pARpUYy

uo nead 2 apis

e —

of
ond o i sdags wap

FUND YOI O] PomILg

A qanem of Spuy-—

Aroos xngEA s o 3

Funsres yanm 052
SMDPLLM LETIELIR]E

Goﬂdbv—u JEDT

PR Rpmod poaerd agnop man——

e ypiea o) 31

MO BN
pamwos pad paregd 3gnop way

P 43 ung——
A Of ilop sdars man
Auusrea it oy paspusy ———
Tansres Yol 01 oM ug

s100p Furppog 1 wenmunge
pareod 2pmod pazegd 2jgnop wasy

Sunsina g o) BpuEy

S0P LY

- P sapmod pazepi apgiop wan

Femsixs ganm o) sapy

Funsixo ymww o0 348 ut
SMOpUIM Jaquuy paze|d ajgnop
01 SMOpUIM Juody [z afueyD)
“ALON

UoneAl[? 1oy




Page 98

JE/808T

PTTSNOS 79 NI

E% D01 PLOT J9quanac]
- b

1N HOpuo AUty oy | vl

UOISUR)X2 2pIs A2101s [Tur
“1eal £aJo1s om1 pasododg
Lwbasl

iL'oN

dot ey 1y 2R §—]-

s (i of £301 |

FgJ0a XA onEARs0 3

ueid 1003 183

LR LY LI SN

PRI B A4 ARMIALD L3Py

Stetawd 201 Jqrauusd

Ui KemaaLtp {8[30 PUR 2IRATIN

—— sk (om0 s

201) Lepunog man
LM 3p1s Opa mop S8 om L

PR 34 o sl

PRHEHOARP 20 01 25010} u2aaF)

uydoop punoss

_ I

LN

_;|J.._u_._..._5a

sy ()

SIN —~
E TR
Wi (T ady

cu__.:r-mrll_
_

SIN
2smon) g
g | ApuiEiaey |

woop Auipy 19




)« 250
Tu THE CRAiINE

Z. sy




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101

Agenda Item 9

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 24" November 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham
Sharon Davidson

Ms Sharon Davidson

Ward:
Upper Edmonton

Ref: 15/04050/RE4

Category: LBE - Dev by LA

LOCATION: Vacant Land, Meridian Way, London, N18 3HE

PROPOSAL: The remediation of contaminated soils and shallow groundwater and removal of buried

structures.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Marc Clark

Silver Street

Enfield

EN1 3XY

United Kingdom

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Brian Hamilton
Lomond House

Newbury Business Park
Newbury

Berkshire

RG14 2PS

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to conditions




Page 102

Ref: 15/04050/RE4 LOCATION: Vacant Land, Meridian Way, London, N18 3HE

o i
ot
R

< o
EL)'[J .

jan3

RN

X
2.

&

2

et
el
e

<

9.
X
2

feta

0:0‘
T

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
ENFIELD
Council

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820




Page 103

1 Site and Surroundings

1.1 The application site is triangular in shape and extends to approximately 1.10ha. It
was previously used as a coal handling site and railway sidings associated with the
adjacent former Willoughby Lane gasworks. It has recently been acquired by the
Council, along with the gasworks site for future redevelopment as part of the wider
regeneration proposals for Meridian Water. Many elements of the former
infrastructure on site have been demolished and the site has been subject to a
number of phases of investigation and some limited ground water remediation
measures. However, further remediation is essential in order to render the site
suitable for redevelopment.

1.2 The site is bounded by Meridian Way to the east, the railway line to the west Leeside
Road to the south. The site is relatively flat but rises at the southern end where an
embankment adjoins Leeside Road. A number of earth bunds are present, originally
located to prevent vehicular access at the perimeter and to inhibit movement around
the site. To the north of the site are steps leading to a disused subway which passes
below the railway line to Willoughby Lane, which contains a medium pressure gas
main.

1.3 The site surface generally comprises heavily vegetated rough ground with a small
area of tarmac road running from the site entrance in the north east, where a
signalled controlled junction with Meridian Way has been created. Strands of Giant
Hogweed have been identified on the site. This is an invasive species and requires
management and control. Japanese Knotweed is also present on part of the site and
this will also require treatment.

1.4 No trees or structures on site have been identified as suitable as bat roosts. An
ecological walkover has identified habitat potentially suitable to support common
reptile species but no reptiles were found during subsequent reptile surveys.

2 Proposal

2.1 This application, together with that for the adjoining Willoughby Lane former
gasholders site reported elsewhere on this agenda (15/04173/RE4) proposes the
remediation of contaminated soils and shallow groundwater and the removal of
buried structures. The need for remediation of the deep groundwater beneath the
London Clay will be considered following additional investigation and risk
assessment and is outside the scope of this current planning application.

2.2 The remediation strategy covers soil remediation, former abstractions wells and
proposed remediation, shallow groundwater remediation objectives and options.

2.3 Soil remediation will involve excavation to a nominal depth of 1.6m below final
ground levels to reveal significant contamination and structures/foundations. It is
anticipated that the site will be raised by an average of 0.5m, less in the north where
the site will grade into the existing road and a greater increase in the south. The
depth of excavation is likely to range between 1.6m in the north to 1m in the south.
Excavations will be extended to a greater depth to chase out any gross
contamination in the unsaturated zone. To the west of the site, adjacent to the
railway, the depth of excavation may be reduced.



Page 104

2.4 The strategy seeks to ensure that significant contamination in the unsaturated zone

is removed and shallow structures that may interfere with future building foundations
are excavated, without undertaking widespread excavation below groundwater,
which may give rise to odour nuisance during the remediation works.

2.5 Site works will generate additional traffic, particularly the requirement to export site

materials and waste. Procedures will be developed to reduce traffic impact, such as
averaging or timing of vehicle movements, route planning on public roads and
maximising re-use of material on site where reasonable practicable. The site only has
one access direct to the A1055 Meridian Way, which leads north to the A406 North.
The currently estimated volume of contaminated soil to be taken offsite for treatment
or disposal is approximately 1200m3 , which equates to 80 lorry loads involving 160
lorry movements. If waste disposal was to occur Monday to Friday over a 4 week
period , this would equate to 4 loads per day. There will be relatively little import of
materials into the site.

2.6 The applicant confirms that the remediation measures included in this planning

3.1

4

application have been developed as part of an overall two stage package of
measures that are together designed to enable the site to be safely redeveloped.
Once the works currently proposed are completed then further measures will be
required. These additional measures do not form part of the current proposals. They
will be an integral part of the redevelopment and will be incorporated in a separate
application.

Relevant Planning decisions

None of direct relevance

Consultation

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Traffic and Transportation

4.1.1 No objections subject to conditions relating to construction management.

4.1.2

4.1.3

Environmental Health

No objections. The remediation strategy is acceptable and should ensure there is no
risk to human health arising from contamination in the shallow ground. All
contaminants potentially below the London clay could pose a risk to controlled waters
and the Environment Agency would comment upon this aspect of the strategy. The
remediation strategy must be fully implemented in line with the report forming part of
the application and a verification report will be required once the remediation works
are completed.

Environment Agency

No objection to the proposed soils and shallow ground water remediation as a
standalone activity, subject to conditions . The Agency note that this is part of a long-
term re-development to be subject of further applications.



41.4

415

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.2

42.1

5.1

5.2

Page 105

Transport for London

No objection on the basis of the number of trips per day as a result of the
remediation works. TfL are content that this figure will present minimal impact on the
road. TfL are therefore content that the proposal meets the required standards.
However, they recommend that a condition be set to prevent HGV movements to and
from the site between 07:00 — 08:00am and 17:00 — 18:00pm. This would further
prevent any impact during peak hours

Historic England

On the basis of an updated Historic Environment Desk Based Assessment, Historic
England confirms that there is now sufficient information to determine the application.
They advise that the development is likely to cause some harm to archaeological
interest but not sufficient to justify refusal of planning permission provided that a
condition is attached to require an investigation to be undertaken to advance
understanding. The condition recommended requires no works to take place until a
written scheme of investigation has been submitted to and approved.

Network Rail

No objections. The application must ensure that the development does not encroach
on Network Rail land, affect the safety, operation or integrity of the railway and its
infrastructure, undermine its support zone, place additional load on cuttings, over-salil
or encroach upon the air-space of any Network Rail land, cause to or obstruct or
interfere with any works or proposed works or Network Rail development now or in
the future.

London Borough of Haringey

No comments received
Public

Letters have been sent to the occupiers of 432 adjoining and nearby properties. No
responses have been received.

Relevant Policy
London Plan

2.13 Opportunity areas and intensification areas ( Upper Lee Valley)
2.14  Areas for regeneration

5.21 Contaminated land

5.22 Hazardous substances and installations.

6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology

Core Strateqy

CP1 Strategic Growth Areas
CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes (Central Leeside/Meridian
Water)



5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 106

CP32 Pollution
CP37 Central Leeside
CP38 Meridian Water

Development Management Document

DMD44 Conserving and enhancing heritage assets
DMD64 Pollution control and assessment

DMD66 Land contamination and instability

DMD67 Hazardous installations

DMD70 Water quality

Other relevant policy

NPPF

NPPG

Central Leeside AAP
Meridian Water Master Plan

Analysis

Principle

The application site forms part of the Meridian Water regeneration area where the
Council expects to see the delivery of at least 5000 new homes along with
associated infrastructure and employment opportunities. The remediation of these
sites is a necessary initial phase of the regeneration process and therefore this
application is welcomed.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

Unlike the former gasholder site, this site does not adjoin any residential properties.
The nearest adjoining occupiers are Tesco and lkea to the east and industrial
premises to the south. It is considered the proposed works would have no undue
detrimental impact on the operations of these existing premises, subject to
conditions relating to construction management and dust control.

Traffic Impact on adjacent road network

The applicant has confirmed that the development would generate a limited number
of daily HGV movements. This is acknowledged by both Transport for London and
the Council’s Traffic and Transportation team who raise no objections to the
development in terms of impact on the local highway network, subject to conditions
controlling hours of working and construction management.

Environmental Impact

There is both national and local policy support for the remediation of contaminated
sites to protect human health and the environment and to bring sites back into
beneficial use.

The Environment Agency has confirmed that the proposals are acceptable in
themselves. They note that the works proposed seek only to deal with visible gross
contamination and this may not preclude the need for subsequent soils remediation



6.6

6.7

7.1

8.1

Page 107

based on proposed future development. The applicant acknowledges the potential
need for future remediation associated with any redevelopment scheme.

The applicants planning statement confirms that the site contains two invasive
species, Giant Hogweed and Japanese Knotweed. A condition is recommended
requiring these to be eradicated from the site in accordance with a strategy that has
first been agreed.

Flood Risk

The site is shown in Flood Zone 1 and not at risk of fluvial flooding. A small area of
flooding to the south east of the site is identified in the 1 in 200 year event. The LBE
preliminary flood risk assessment (PFRA) indicated that there had been no
groundwater incidents across the site to date. The detailed Level 2 SFRA for the
wider Meridian Water development area states that the area is not considered at
significant risk of groundwater flooding. There is a residual risk of flooding as a
consequence of reservoir failure. The proposed remediation works are temporary
and the limited flood risk will be assessed and managed as par tof the applicants
construction environmental management plan.

Conclusion

The proposed remediation is welcomed as the necessary first stage for the
redevelopment of this site and the longer term regeneration ambitions for Meridian
Water.

Recommendation:

That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with
Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to
conditions:

No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until a
verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the submitted remediation strategy are
complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant
linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Any changes to the
verification plan require the express written consent of the local planning authority.
The scheme to be implemented as approved.

Reason: To ensure full documentation of the work completed and evidence that it will
not lead to long-term adverse impact on groundwater quality

Within 6 months of the completion of the remediation (or another timeframe otherwise
agreed in writing with the local planning authority) a verification report demonstrating
completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the
effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring
carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the
site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan ( a “long-term
monitoring and maintenance plan”) for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification



Page 108

plan. The long-term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as
approved

Reason:.To demonstrate that there is not an unacceptable risk to groundwater quality
from the site.

No development should take place until a site-wide groundwater management and
long-term monitoring and maintenance plan in respect of contamination, including a
timetable of monitoring and submission of reports to the Local Planning Authority,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reports as specified in the approved plan, including details of any necessary
contingency action arising from the monitoring , shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any necessary contingency measures shall
be carried out in accordance with the details in the approved reports. On completion
of the monitoring specified in the plan a final report demonstrating that all long-term
remediation works have been carried out and confirming that remedial targets have
been achieved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To demonstrate that the development does not have an adverse impact on
groundwater quality.

No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until a risk
assessment is undertaken to quantify the effect of increased infiltration and leaching
following the soil remediation.

Reason: To prevent pollution of controlled waters.

That all open-topped vehicles entering or leaving the site which are carrying materials
to be removed from the site shall be fully sheeted to prevent wind entrainment of
such materials.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby
properties.

That works in connection with the remediation of the site shall be undertaken only in
accordance with the details and particulars forming part of the application hereby
approved.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby
properties.

That works in connection with the remediation of the site, including the movement of
lorries to and from the site, shall only take place between 0800 to 1800 Monday to
Friday and 0800 to 1300 on Saturdays and at no other time except with the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. No HGV movements to and from the
site shall take place between 07:00 — 08:00am and 17:00 — 18:00pm Monday to
Friday.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby
properties and to safeguard the free flow of traffic on the adjoining highway.



Page 109

8 That works shall not commence on site until such time as a Construction
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority The Plan should include:

a) Photographic condition survey of public carriageways, verges and footways in
the vicinity of the site;

b) Map showing routing of vehicles used for the delivery to or removal of
material from the site;

C) Access arrangements to the site;

d) Wheel cleaning methodology and facilities;

e) Contractors parking;

f) The estimated number and type of vehicles per day/week;

9) Details of vehicle holding area;

h) Details of the vehicle call up procedure;

i) Details of any changes to on- street waiting and loading restrictions that will
be required;

)] Details of measures to protect pedestrians and other highway users from
construction activities on the highway;

k) Coordination with other development projects in the vicinity;

)] Where works cannot be contained wholly within the site a plan should be

submitted showing the site layout on the highway including the extent of hoarding,
pedestrian routes and remaining road width for vehicle movements;

m) measures to control dust and emissions from the proposed remediation
works; and
n) details of the location of soil processing area

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction
Management Plan.

Reason: To minimise the impact of construction works upon highway safety,
congestion and parking availability and to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of
adjoining and nearby properties and to ensure that material removed from the site is
not deposited on local roads.

9 Works shall not commence on site until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For land
that is included in the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than
in accordance with the approved WSI, which shall include the statement of
significance and research objectives; and

A The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the
nomination of a competent person (s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works;
B The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,

publication and dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

Reason: To ensure the recording of any archaeology on site.

10 No development shall commence until a Japanese Knotweed and Giant Hogweed
eradication strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The strategy is to be implemented as approved unless otherwise
agreed in writing.

Reason: To ensure that the Japanese Knotweed and Giant Hogweed, identified as
an invasive species, is eradicated and does not spread.

11 All areas of scrub or similar vegetation where birds may nest, and which are to be
cleared as part of this application, are to be cleared outside the bird breeding season



Page 110

(mid-February — mid-September inclusive) or if clearance during the bird-nesting
season cannot be avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist shall survey the areas to be
removed immediately prior to clearance and advise whether nesting birds are
present. If active nests are recorded, no vegetation clearance will proceed until all
young have fledged the nest.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely affected by the proposed
development in line with local and national policy and wildlife legislation.

12 C51 Time limited permission



Page 111

=t 0005€5—
0025€5—

Holder

Superstore

F 191900
/\/

N
N

—

Subway
D compound

N

s ‘ “_

S
an)

Tower B
!
] 1o
v ‘-
!y ‘i&a a ‘ N———
/ LA\l O
! %
/] N N I
[ D — I
/1 1) 7~~-L1~4 !
!y ] ! ~T==a _,J L,
!/ -
!y ~J I
/ Tower D
/ s
!/ ]
1
7
!
I 1 Lorry Park
I
!
1
encountered at
2.5m depth
Notes:

1. Contamination in site soils will need
remediation or capping to render site suitable
for residential use.

2. Approximate location of LNAPL and/or
DNAPL plume based on observations of
measurable thicknesses of NAPL in monitoring
boreholes installed in the Kempton Park
Gravels (KPG).

) High voltage 7
El Sub Sta electricity 33kV? /
7 /

Railway |
3. Services information is for summary
/ ) guidance only and is based on a combination
/) of utility plans and phases of intrusive
SP /
[¢)
R, /
191700—7C /

investigation.

4. The status of all services should be
confirmed with utility companies prior to
excavation.

5. Service easements represent the minimum
easement based on information from the
statutory undertakers and excavation batters
may increase the area of restriction.

6. Location of redundant gas main inferred
from survey of pits encountering main recorded
in 2005 (reference 04079-05-04-Meridian-Way).

7. Location of live medium pressure gas mains
National Grid gas Distribution Plan 07/05/14.

8. Location of high voltage cable taken from
UK Power Networks Plan 07/05/14.

9. Location sewer taken from Assets Location

Search Map ref ALS/ALS
Standard/2014_2758013, 08/05/14.

VT 1

Key

7 . . .
E Site boundary E Electric (easement unknown) m Standoff buffer for services Enfield Council
5. ;

Meridian Way Planning

—— oevelopmentboundary ] o7 ovenead e o] Bt rounc st pormeer Aot | Support Report
: amec
@ Access Surface water drain (easement excavation. foster
unknown) wheeler
E Historical feature
Approximate location of LNAPL .
E Gas Medium Pressure |:| and/or DNAPL plume in Kempton Figure 7
(easement of 3m either side) Park Gravels Site constraints plan indicating site
Redundant gas mains Limitation due to significant services and access
|:| topographic change Or"—:—:—SM

Scale 1:1000 @ A3
Based upon the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. 100001776. July 2015 34910-Lon238.dwg parkj




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113 A PAT 10

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 24™ November 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, | Andy Higham Upper Edmonton

Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson
Ms Sharon Davidson

Ref: 15/04173/RE4 Category: LBE - Dev by LA

LOCATION: Willoughby Lane Gas Works , Willoughby Lane, London, N17 ORY

PROPOSAL: The remediation of contaminated soils and shallow groundwater and removal of
buried structures

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mr Marc Clark Mr Brian Hamilton
Silver Street Lomond House
Enfield Newbury Business Park
EN1 3XY Newbury
United Kingdom Berkshire

RG14 2PS

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION:
That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with Regulation 3 of the
Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to conditions.




Page 114

Ref: 15/04173/RE4 LOCATION: Willoughby Lane Gas Works , Willoughby Lane, London, N17

.
. 4
"N
= 1y
ITAINIE
S —
g1 s
1 ik = ===
== ﬂh@q
E_ __5.§ = g a-q D
=5=l=S ~ ¥
= z

L=
LTI Rip |

(INTIRLTININE IR RRRN AN
AT T e (T LT

(ARiRimiginnnnni
i
|
“—hi‘:_j
L
=

iyl

1111
JLTIT
2

'I'-F‘
i
;

; I

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:5000 North

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. ®
ENF’ELD)‘% Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council




11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 115

Site and Surroundings

The application site extends to 6.70ha and comprises the former gas works site, now
redundant and disused and has been recently acquired by the Council for future
redevelopment as part of the wider regeneration proposals for Meridian Water . The
gasworks infrastructure has historically covered the majority of the site. Underground
structures, including the former gas holder tanks, have undergone various stages of
decommissioning and remediation over the years, although numerous underground
structures and obstructions, including live gas main remain.

The site extends from the North Circular Road to the north to Leeside Road to the
south. It bounds Albany Road and the site of the proposed new Meridian Angel
Primary School on Ladysmith Open Space to the north west. Residential properties
in Kimberley Road and Willoughby Lane bound the site to the west; the railway line
forms the eastern boundary. The site wraps around an operational pressure
reduction station (PRS) , owned by National Grid Gas, and which will remain in situ
and operational.

Proposal

This application, and that submitted under reference 15/04050/RE4 reported
elsewhere on this agenda, proposes the remediation of contaminated soils and
shallow ground water and the removal of buried structures on the site, to prepare the
site for redevelopment. The need for the remediation of the deep groundwater
beneath the London Clay will be considered following additional investigation and risk
assessment and is outside the scope of this current planning application.

The remediation strategy assumes excavation across the site generally to a depth of
1.6m below ground level, where no structure/foundation is encountered, or to
groundwater level where this is shallower. This is to reveal ( and excavate for
processing, remediation or removal from site) gross contamination and
structures/foundations. Excavations may be extended deeper than 1.6m to chase
out and remove shallow concrete /brick obstructions/structures that continue below
this level. Excavations will also be extended to a greater depth than 1.6m to excavate
identified gross contamination in the unsaturated zone above groundwater.
Excavated material will be recovered, processed and re-used in situ where practical
and economically feasible.

Former abstraction wells represent a potential migration pathway between shallow
ground and groundwater contamination, and deep groundwater. Former
monitoring/abstraction wells are to be identified and then decommissioned (unless
otherwise retained for monitoring) in advance of the excavation works to ensure that
these wells do not provide a conduit for contamination to enter the underlying Chalk
Aquifer.

Shallow ground water will also be remediated

The applicant confirms that the remediation measures included in this planning
application have been developed as part of an overall two stage package of
measures that are together designed to enable the site to be safely redeveloped.
Once the works currently proposed are completed then further measures will be
required. These additional measures do not form part of the current proposals. They



2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

41.4

Page 116

will be an integral part of the redevelopment and will be incorporated in a separate
application.

The remediation works will generate additional traffic, particularly the requirement to
export site material and wastes. The only access to and from the site will be via the
existing main site entrance from Leeside Road. The currently estimated volume of
contaminated soil to be taken off site for treatment or disposal is approximately
5000m3, which equates to approximately 500 lorry loads involving 1000 lorry
movements. If waste disposal occurs Monday to Friday over a 3 month period, this
would equate to less than 15 loads per day. There would be a similar rate of import of
clean fills into the site as a consequence of the remediation works. Clean topsoils
and aggregates for the formation of roads and hardstanding will be imported during
the later site development phase.

Relevant Planning History

P13-01382PLA - Temporary stockpiling of London Clay for a period of 24 months on
western side of the site. Planning permission granted November 2013.

P13-03173PLA - Temporary stockpiling of London Clay for a period of 24 months on
eastern side of the site. Planning permission granted November 2013

P13-03564PRI - Removal of 2 no. gasholders and associated booster house
building. Confirmed that prior approval not required , December 2013.

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Traffic and Transportation

No objections subject to conditions relating to construction management.

Environmental Health

No objections. The remediation strategy is acceptable and should ensure there is no
risk to human health arising from contamination in the shallow ground. All
contaminants potentially below the London clay could pose a risk to controlled waters
and the Environment Agency would comment upon this aspect of the strategy. The
remediation strategy must be fully implemented in line with the report forming part of
the application and a verification report will be required once the remediation works
are completed.

Environment Agency

No objection to the proposed soils and shallow ground water remediation as a stand
alone activity, subject to conditions . The Agency note that this is part of a long- term
re-development to be subject of further applications.

Transport for London

No objection on the basis that the applicant has confirmed that there will be no more
than 16 HGV trips per day as a result of the remediation works. TfL are content that
this figure will present minimal impact on the road. TfL are therefore content that the
proposal meets the required standards. However, they recommend that a condition



415

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.2

42.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 117

be set to prevent HGV movements to and from the site between 07:00 — 08:00am
and 17:00 — 18:00pm. This would further prevent any impact during peak hours

Historic England

On the basis of an updated Historic Environment Desk Based Assessment, Historic
England confirm that there is now sufficient information to determine the application.
They advise that the development is likely to cause some harm to archaeological
interest but not sufficient to justify refusal of planning permission provided that a
condition is attached to require an investigation to be undertaken to advance
understanding. The condition recommended requires no works to take place until a
written scheme of investigation has been submitted to and approved.

Network Rail

No objections. The application must ensure that the development does not encroach
on Network Rail land, affect the safety, operation or integrity of the railway and its
infrastructure, undermine its support zone, place additional load on cuttings, over-salil
or encroach upon the air-space of any Network Rail land, cause to or obstruct or
interfere with any works or proposed works or Network Rail development now or in
the future.

London Borough of Haringey

No comments received

Public

Letters have been sent to the occupiers of 432 adjoining and nearby properties. No
responses have been received.

Relevant Policy
London Plan

2.13 Opportunity areas and intensification areas ( Upper Lee Valley)
2.14  Areas for regeneration

5.21 Contaminated land

5.22 Hazardous substances and installations.

6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology

Core Strateqy

CP1 Strategic Growth Areas

CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes (Central Leeside/Meridian
Water)

CP32 Pollution

CP37 Central Leeside

CP38 Meridian Water

Development Management Document




5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 118

DMD44 Conserving and enhancing heritage assets
DMD64 Pollution control and assessment

DMD66 Land contamination and instability

DMD67 Hazardous installations

DMD70 Water quality

Other relevant policy

NPPF

NPPG

Central Leeside AAP
Meridian Water Master Plan

Analysis

Principle

The application site forms part of the Meridian Water regeneration area where the
Council expects to see the delivery of at least 5000 new homes along with
associated infrastructure and employment opportunities. The remediation of these
sites is a necessary initial phase of the regeneration process and therefore this
application is welcomed.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

The key issues arising from the remediation of the site in terms of impact on existing
adjoining occupiers relates to general noise and disturbance, dust and traffic impact.

The applicant acknowledges in their submission that remedial activities such as
earthworks or soil processing will generate noise and vibration that could have a
potential impact on neighbouring properties and people. However, they advise that
they will employ monitoring techniques at the site boundary to determine if corrective
measures are required. Corrective measures could include control of working hours,
acoustic barriers and/or the use of specialist plant and appropriate working methods.
In respect of dust they advise that they would seek to minimise dust generation
through positioning and design of material stockpiles, damping down, wheel washes,
road sweepers and the location of process plant.

It is recommended that conditions be attached to control hours of work on site to
ensure these are limited to normal working hours Monday to Friday and Saturday
mornings, together with a condition covering construction management to deal with
noise/ dust control measures.

Vehicle access to the site would be to the south. From the site entrance it is 200m to
the A1055 meridian Way, which leads on to the A406 North Circular Road. Vehicles
would not be required to pass through the adjacent residential roads and therefore
the development should have limited impact on the amenities of adjoining residents
in this respect.

Traffic Impact on adjacent road network

The applicant has confirmed that the development would generate a limited number
of daily HGV movements. This is acknowledged by both Transport for London and



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

7.1

8.1

Page 119

the Council’s Traffic and Transportation team who raise no objections to the
development in terms of impact on the local highway network, subject to conditions
controlling hours of working and construction management.

Environmental Impact

There is both national and local policy support for the remediation of contaminated
sites to protect human health and the environment and to bring sites back into
beneficial use.

The Environment Agency has confirmed that the proposals are acceptable in
themselves. They note that the works proposed seek only to deal with visible gross
contamination and this may not preclude the need for subsequent soils remediation
based on proposed future development. The applicant acknowledges the potential
need for future remediation associated with any redevelopment scheme.

Ecological Impact

The site has been the subject of an Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey (December
2014) . This identified a possible badger set in the north west part of the site. An
updated badger survey was undertaken in July 2015. The survey revealed that the
old disused sett was no longer present with no sign of badgers.

The site is considered to have no potential to support priority or legally protected
species other than nesting birds and a condition is recommended to ensure works do
not disturb birds during nesting season, unless with the advice of a qualified
ecologist.

Japanese Knotweed is known to be present on the site. A condition is recommended
requiring this to be eradicated in accordance with an agreed strategy.

Flood Risk

The site is more than 1 ha in extent triggering the need for a Flood Risk Assessment.
The key findings are that small parts of the site fall within Flood Zone 2, highlighting a
low-medium risk of fluvial flooding from Pymmes Brook. However, the site benefits
from flood defences along the Brook. There is limited surface water flooding across
the site and the risk of groundwater flooding is low. There is a residual risk of flooding
as a consequence of reservoir failure. The proposed remediation works are
temporary and the limited flood risks will be assessed and managed by the applicant
as part of their construction environmental management plan

Conclusion

The proposed remediation is welcomed as the necessary first stage for the
redevelopment of this site and the longer term regeneration ambitions for Meridian
Water.

Recommendation:

That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with

Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to
conditions:



Page 120

1 No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until a
verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the submitted remediation strategy are
complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant
linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Any changes to the
verification plan require the express written consent of the local planning authority.
The scheme to be implemented as approved.

Reason: To ensure full documentation of the work completed and evidence that it will
not lead to long-term adverse impact on groundwater quality

2 Within 6 months of the completion of the remediation (or another timeframe otherwise
agreed in writing with the local planning authority) a verification report demonstrating
completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the
effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring
carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the
site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan ( a “long-term
monitoring and maintenance plan”) for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification
plan. The long-term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as
approved

Reason:.To demonstrate that there is not an unacceptable risk to groundwater quality
from the site.

3 No development should take place until a site-wide groundwater management and
long-term monitoring and maintenance plan in respect of contamination, including a
timetable of monitoring and submission of reports to the Local Planning Authority,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reports as specified in the approved plan, including details of any necessary
contingency action arising from the monitoring , shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any necessary contingency measures shall
be carried out in accordance with the details in the approved reports. On completion
of the monitoring specified in the plan a final report demonstrating that all long-term
remediation works have been carried out and confirming that remedial targets have
been achieved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To demonstrate that the development does not have an adverse impact on
groundwater quality.

4 No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until a risk
assessment is undertaken to quantify the effect of increased infiltration and leaching
following the soil remediation.

Reason: To prevent pollution of controlled waters.
5 That all open-topped vehicles entering or leaving the site which are carrying materials

to be removed from the site shall be fully sheeted to prevent wind entrainment of
such materials.



Page 121

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby
properties.

That works in connection with the remediation of the site shall be undertaken only in
accordance with the details and particulars forming part of the application hereby
approved.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby
properties.

That works in connection with the remediation of the site, including the movement of
lorries to and from the site, shall only take place between 0800 to 1800 Monday to
Friday and 0800 to 1300 on Saturdays and at no other time except with the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. No HGV movements to and from the
site shall take place between 07:00 — 08:00am and 17:00 — 18:00pm Monday to
Friday.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby
properties and to safeguard the free flow of traffic on the adjoining highway.

That works shall not commence on site until such time as a Construction
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority The Plan should include:

a) Photographic condition survey of public carriageways, verges and footways in
the vicinity of the site;

b) Map showing routing of vehicles used for the delivery to or removal of
material from the site;

C) Access arrangements to the site;

d) Wheel cleaning methodology and facilities;

e) Contractors parking;

f) The estimated number and type of vehicles per day/week;

9) Details of vehicle holding area;

h) Details of the vehicle call up procedure;

i) Details of any changes to on- street waiting and loading restrictions that will
be required;

i) Details of measures to protect pedestrians and other highway users from
construction activities on the highway;

k) Coordination with other development projects in the vicinity;

)] Where works cannot be contained wholly within the site a plan should be

submitted showing the site layout on the highway including the extent of hoarding,
pedestrian routes and remaining road width for vehicle movements;

m) measures to control dust and emissions from the proposed remediation
works; and
n) details of the location of soil processing area

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction
Management Plan.

Reason: To minimise the impact of construction works upon highway safety,
congestion and parking availability and to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of
adjoining and nearby properties and to ensure that material removed from the site is
not deposited on local roads.

Works shall not commence on site until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For land
that is included in the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than



Page 122

in accordance with the approved WSI, which shall include the statement of
significance and research objectives; and

A The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the
nomination of a competent person (s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works;
B The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,

publication and dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

Reason: To ensure the recording of any archaeology on site.

10 No development shall commence until a Japanese Knotweed eradication strategy
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
strategy is to be implemented as approved unless otherwise agreed in writing.

Reason: To ensure that the Japanese Knotweed, identified as an invasive species, is
eradicated and does not spread.

11 All areas of scrub or similar vegetation where birds may nest, and which are to be
cleared as part of this application, are to be cleared outside the bird breeding season
(mid-February — mid-September inclusive) or if clearance during the bird-nesting
season cannot be avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist shall survey the areas to be
removed immediately prior to clearance and advise whether nesting birds are
present. If active nests are recorded, no vegetation clearance will proceed until all
young have fledged the nest.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely affected by the proposed
development in line with local and national policy and wildlife legislation.

12 C51 Time limited permission



Page 123



Notes

1. Contaminated site soils will require remediation or
capping to render site suitable for residential use.

2. LNAPL and DNAPL present in groundwater beneath
site.

3. Location of former abstraction wells shown with BGS
reference taken from 1997 soil remediation validation
report.

4. Services information is for summary guidance only
and is based utility plans acquired in 2015.

5. The status of all services should be confirmed with
utility companies prior to excavation.

6. Service easements represent the minimum easement
based on information from the statutory undertakers
and excavation batters may increase the area of
restriction.

a1
]
a
(=]
(=]
S

Page 124

@)

Deep well

X
Rk

Cirt r R

s,

o7

A\Q\Qf

T L

/

~—f

[r~

|

Site Boundary

Historic structure

KT

| 2006 remedial excavation

|«

| IUNALL

Pile restriction zone
Potential pile restriction zone

Gas holder tank base and walls intact
infilled by NGP

Limitation due to significant topographic
change

EA 8m access strip
Buffer around site perimeter, 1m off
boundary then 45° batter to base of

excavation. Note around the PRS this
extends to 3m off boundary

XN b refined or wil neea civerting

BGS former abstraction well

oiiinn) Japanese knotweed

School

Residential housing
Railway

Services:

UKPN HV electric (easement of 1m
either side)

UKPN LV electric (easement of 1m
either side)

EL L,

(1) NG Gas Intermediate Pressure
(easement of 3m either side)

s NG Gas Medium Pressure (easement of
3m either side)

s NG Gas Low Pressure (easement of
1.5m either side)

BT overhead line (easement of 1.5m
either side)

Virgin media (easement of 1.5m either
side)

Foul water sewer (easement of 5m either
side)

Surface water drain (easement of 3m/sm
either side)

E

JOEEUEE UL U

Water main (easement of 5m either side)

Proposed LV electrical cable (easement
of 1m either side)

— )
f il
-l
Kl
R
i 21
3 s<u=>_' ey
.
|-
.
F
fléBZQESO
| L
=
: lrs;
¢
| If
1 =
I | 0 \
‘L
N
I f o]e}
i &)
e
'LE
I ol
191|9 0 i i e
‘ —_
il L] &
E
y E @)
I ]; ) I:”:I o Railway
® Willoughby
I? Lane Site
2
M=
N o
I Deep well __| §J
| . | pump house o
i $BG8208 ;
AN
1800
| | 7/ Fy sdb
o y
Y g
SN & OWB v F?
; ssure Reducing el
Station (PRS) B
T
Warehouse
Site Access ‘ “*é o,
1 Iv e,
[fading Estate ‘ -
& &
/7 ¢
- /
g CF
= W, P e i N
= . 7 ”‘v\ e Seey ) % ,f
- . ~Large diameter, om
wﬁ(q(m_ FE——T _mei o f Scale 1:1250 @ A3
! r o ~ 5 pump house /™~ . \m

Enfield Council

Willoughby Lane '
Remediation of Soils and
Shallow Groundwater
foster
wheeler
Figure 4

Site constraints indicating site
services and access




Page 125

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 24" November 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham

Sharon Davidson

Ms Gemma Robinson

Ward:
Chase

Ref: 15/03266/FUL

Category: Full Application

LOCATION: St Johns Prep School, 497 The Ridgeway, Enfield, EN6 5QT

PROPOSAL: Demolition of part of east wing and erection of 2 storey extension to north and east
elevations and lower ground floor level to provide additional nursery classrooms and ancillary
space, increased roof height with glazing, access ramp to front.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr

THE RIDGEWAY

POTTERS BAR
HERTFORDSHIRE

ENG6 5QT

United Kingdom

Agent Name & Address:
Mr MALCOLM HONOUR
140 LONDON WALL
LONDON

EC2Y 5DN

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION:

To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions.

TIgoTIga ||.V|H44_




Page 126

Ref: 15/03266/FUL LOCATION: St Johns Prep School, 497 The Ridgeway, Enfield, EN6 5QT

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

ENFIELD Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
Council

Scale 1:1250

North




11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

Page 127

Site and surroundings

The application site comprises a school campus situated on the north side of
The Ridgeway, approximately 200m south of the M25 and half a mile east of
junction 24 on the M25. The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt and
Area of Special Character. The building is not listed but lies with the Green
Belt. There are a number of trees within the site but they are not the subject of
a Tree Preservation Order.

The existing school building comprises two storeys, it was originally built as a
private house. There are also a number of adjacent modular buildings in
classroom use to the north of the site. The school includes an apartment on
the first floor western end currently occupied by the owners. The property was
granted planning permission in 1989 from residential to a Preparatory School.

The existing building is made up of the main building that has been extended
to both sides and rear. To the west side it has a single storey level pergola
area that was built under permitted development. To the rear are two large
single storey modular buildings. There are also two areas of green roof on the
main buildings.

The surrounding character of the area is predominantly rural. Immediately to
the north and east of the school is New Cottage Farm which comprises a
range of farm buildings. To the west of the school site is the access lane to
the farm.

Proposal

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of part of east wing and
erection of two storey extension to north and east elevations and lower
ground floor level to provide additional nursery classrooms (to accommodate
32 pupils) and ancillary space, increased roof height with glazing and access
ramp to front. This is an alternative scheme, in part, to one granted planning
permission under reference TP10/0955 described below.

The revisions to the east wing may be summarised as follows:

e 700mm to the north (600mm of this under the first floor projection and a
100mm on the first floor projection) and to the west to maintain these new
projections in line with the forward projection of the existing west wall of
the hall at the front of the building.

e A total increase to the ground floor footprint of the building by
approximately 121m? (the previous approved application would have
resulted in an increase of 98m?). In comparison to the previously
approved application this would be an increase of 23m?, however part of
this would be infilling below first floor projection.

¢ Introduction of basement level to encompass two storage rooms and two
music practice rooms, comprising an area of 158m?.

e Extension of the staircase on east elevation to ground level to serve as a
means of escape, and further to cellar level.



2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

Page 128

e A change in roof form and design will result in an increase in height from
the originally approved scheme by 1.1 metre (from a height of 9.1 metre
to 10.2 metre).

The external finishing materials are to be pebble dash masonry to southern
elevation, S and O render to north and west elevations. The roof tiles are to
be eternity blue/grey resin coated fibre cement slate, the windows are to be
double glazed polyester coated aluminium /timber composite frames. The
doors are to be double glazed polyester coated aluminium/timber frames.

Relevant Planning Decisions

A lawful development certificate (ref: P13-01026LDC) was granted for a
raised outdoor play area with pergola over in June 2013.

Planning permission was granted in December 2010 (ref: TP10/0955) for a
two storey side and rear, single storey rear extension, alterations to
conservatory at front involving re-glazing, timber louvres to front and side,
new roof with canopy / overhang and access ramp to front. The enlargement
of the school in two areas, the west (new toilets for reception age children,
and a replacement of an existing conservatory with a reception classroom)
and the east (increased sanitary facilities, improved kitchen, improved
circulation and enlarged class bases for year 1) allowed for an increased floor
area of approximately 35%. Works to the west side of the building which
includes new toilets for reception age children and a replacement of an
existing conservatory with a reception classroom were commenced in
February 2013 and completed in September 2013. However works to the east
were not. This application seeks to increase the amount of floor space at the
ground and first floor levels.

Consultation
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Early Years Schools and Children’s Services

Support the application.

Historic England

The proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of
archaeological interest.

Traffic and Transportation

No objections to the extension despite a small increase in pupil numbers
associated with the new nursery use given that the school operates an up to
date Travel Plan and safely accommodates any additional vehicular traffic.

The proposal retains acceptable car parking and access arrangements and
will not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of traffic or
pedestrian movements on the adjoining highway having regard to Policy 6.13
of the London Plan (2014), and Policy 45 of the Enfield DMD.



4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.2

42.1

5.1

Page 129

Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems Officer (SuDS)

The total discharge rate off site should not increase as a result of the
extension. If possible, the developers must demonstrate that they are
reducing the total discharge rate from site.

Where attenuation is required to not increase the discharge rate off site,
sustainable drainage systems must be maximised.

There are ponds etc. on site which can be used for surface water
management.

The developers must provide a detailed sustainable drainage plan
demonstrating how they will not increase the discharge rate off site.

Environmental Health

No objection to the application for planning permission as there is unlikely to
be a negative environmental impact. In particular there are no concerns
regarding air quality, noise or contaminated land.

It is noted that given the Green Belt setting and surrounding vegetation, the
proposal may adversely impact surrounding habitat values by virtue of
external lighting. To address any issues, the applicant should submit external
lighting details prior to commencement.

Public Response

Letters were sent to 9 neighbouring properties together with statutory site and
press publicity. One (1) submission in support of the proposal was received.

Relevant Policy

London Plan

Policy 3.16  Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure
Policy 3.18  Education Facilities

Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation

Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction

Policy 5.5 Decentralised energy networks

Policy 5.6 Decentralised energy in development proposals
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy

Policy 5.8 Innovative energy technologies

Policy 5.9 Overheating and cooling

Policy 5.10  Urban greening

Policy 5.11  Green roofs and development site environs
Policy 5.13  Sustainable drainage

Policy 5.14  Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Policy 5.17  Waste capacity

Policy 5.18  Construction, Excavation and Demolition Waste
Policy 6.13  Parking

Policy 7.1 Communities and Neighbourhoods

Policy 7.4 Local Character



5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

Policy 7.6
Policy 7.16

Core Strateqgy

CP8
CP20:
CP21:

CP22:
CP25
CP30

CP31
CP33

Page 130

Architecture

Green Belt

Education

Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure

Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage
infrastructure

Delivering sustainable waste management

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Maintaining and Improving the Quality of the Built Environment
and Open Environment

Built and Landscape Heritage

Green Belt and Countryside

Development Management Document

DMD16
DMD18
DMD37
DMD38
DMD45
DMD47
DMD48
DMD49
DMD50
DMD51
DMD53
DMD54
DMD55
DMD56
DMD57
DMD58
DMD59
DMD60
DMD61
DMD65
DMD68
DMD69
DMD70
DMD82

Provision of New Community Facilities
Early Years Provision

Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
Design Process

Parking Standards

New Roads, Access and Servicing
Transport Assessments

Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
Environmental Assessment Methods
Energy Efficiency Standards

Low and Zero Carbon Technology
Allowable Solutions

Use of Roof Space / Vertical Surfaces
Heating and Cooling

Responsible Sourcing of Materials
Water Efficiency

Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk
Assessing Flood Risk

Managing Surface Water

Air Quality

Noise

Light Pollution

Water Quality

Protecting the Green Belt

Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance
Enfield Characterisation Study

S106 SPD

Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

Analysis

Principle



6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.2

6.2.1

Page 131

Extensions to schools and commercial buildings are in principle acceptable
providing they do not have a detrimental impact to the character and
appearance of the surrounding area, Green Belt, highway and neighbouring
residential amenities.

The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) (paragraph 79) states that the fundamental aim of
Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently
open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their
permanence.

Paragraph 87 of the NPPF sets out that inappropriate development is, by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in
very special circumstances. Paragraph 89 advises that the construction of
new buildings in the Green Belt is considered inappropriate. Exceptions to
this are:

» Buildings for agriculture and forestry;

= Provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and
for cemeteries, as long as it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and
does not conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

* The extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the original building;

» The replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use
and not materially larger than the one it replaces;

» Limited infilling in villages, and limited affordable housing for local
community needs under policies set out in the Local Plan; or

» Limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously
developed sites (brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use
(excluding temporary buildings), which would not have a greater impact on
the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it
than the existing development.

The principles set out in the NPPF are reflected in Policy 7.16 of the London
Plan, Core Strategy 33 of The Enfield Plan Core Strategy and Policy DMD82
of the Development Management Document. Policy 7.16 of the London Plan
states that the strongest protection should be given to London’s Green Belt, in
accordance with national guidance. Inappropriate development should be
refused, except in very special circumstances and development will be
supported if it is appropriate and helps secure the objectives of improving the
Green Belt as set out in national guidance. Policy DMD 82 states that
inappropriate development within the Green Belt will not be permitted and
only appropriate development will be permitted if it meets a certain criteria.

Application of policy

In applying the Green Belt policy considerations set out above, there are
three main considerations for school extension proposal:

1. Whether the proposal would comprise inappropriate development in the
Green Belt;

The effect on the openness of the Green Belt;

If it is inappropriate development, whether the harm by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other
considerations, so as to amount to ‘very special circumstances’ necessary
to justify the development.

2.
3.



6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

Page 132

Inappropriate development

Having regard to the proposed size, design and siting of the development, it is
considered that the proposed extension is a disproportionate addition above
the size of the original building. As such, potential harm by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm, must be outweighed by other
considerations (paragraph 88 NPPF).

The effect on the openness of the Green Belt

Extensions to the existing building have already been approved as part of
TP/10/0955, with the following comments provided:

‘Openness is the most important attribute of Green Belts. The proposal would
lead to a marginally greater ‘spread’ of built form on the site, but the proposed
two storey elements is contained within the existing main school building and
would not intrude into an area that is not developed or the areas of the site
predominated by a number of single storey structures. Nonetheless, there
would inevitably be some impact. It is considered that the proposed
extensions do not have a significantly greater impact than the existing
development on the openness of the Green Belt.’

The proposal involves an increase in floor area to extensions already
approved within the Green Belt. The proposal seeks to increase the ground
floor footprint of the building by approximately 121m? compared to an already
approved increase in floor space of 98m?, resulting in a total increase to the
approved footprint by 23m?. This is an increase of 39% compared to the
previously approved increase of 35%. On this basis, it is considered that
although the total quantum of development may be inappropriate, the
increase in floor area above that already approved is minor and will not have
a greater impact on openness that the extant permission.

Although the proposed amendments will result in an increase in height, the
revised roof design provides a transparent open roof form which will assist in
reducing any harm to the openness of the Green Belt. Furthermore, the
increase in windows proposed will reduce the bulk and dominance of the
building the Green Belt setting.

Overall, it is considered that the extent and design of the changes that the
proposal will not result in any significant harm to the open and rural character
of the Green Belt and the proposal is therefore considered acceptable.

Very special circumstances

6.2.7

The Planning Statement dated July 2015 submitted by the applicant provided
an assessment of the proposal against the criteria in DMD 82, noting:

e Siting, scale, height and bulk: the proposal remains of a scale compatible
with the existing school building and will not be visible from a public view
point.

e Regard to site contours: the design is contemporary, complementing the
original building.



6.2.8

6.2.9

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.4

Page 133

e Nature, quality, finish and colour of materials: materials have been chosen
for longevity and to complement the existing school.

¢ Retention of existing trees: the revised design will not have any increased
impact on trees.

e Parking provisions, safe access, egress and landscaping: no changes to
parking provision are proposed as part of this development.

To further support their application, the following has also been advanced to
justify the development:

Circumstance Justification

Meeting WC requirements as | There are currently (before alterations to the
per Ofsted recommendations | East Wing) 12 WCs/urinals and 24 are
required to meet School Premises
Regulations.

Adjusting internal floor levels The north eastern part of the building in its
current form has irregular floor levels.

Providing proper internal The current internal arrangements means
access for all that the school hall, used for assembly and
meals and the adjacent toilets (the main
toilet facilities in the school) are accessible
only through the kitchen, one of the class
bases or from the outside.

Increasing the size of the The school hall is not currently large enough
school hall to accommodate for all of the school to attend assembly in a
all pupils satisfactory manner.

Addressing deficiencies in the | A number of the existing class rooms are
teaching and staff small, the proposal seeks to ensure the
accommaodation ‘capacity and quality’ of social infrastructure.

It is considered that the special circumstances advanced, together with the
minor increase in built development over the extant permission, constitutes
the very special circumstances necessary to outweigh the identified harm.

Impact on the Neighbouring Residential Properties

The proposed extensions will create additional floor space for educational
purposes. In total, the amendments to the approved extension will increase
the floor area by 23m? at ground level (beyond what has already been
approved to be extended). It is considered that the extensions are sited in a
discrete location and compatible with the existing use of the site.

The extensions will be largely screened by the presence of mature trees
along the eastern boundary and when viewed from the east.

The proposed amendments are considered to be in keeping with the
extensions already completed to the western portion of the building and will
have limited impact on the neighbouring residential properties.

Parking, Access and Servicing




6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

Page 134

The London Plan, the Core Strategy and the Development Management
Document encourage and advocate sustainable modes of travel and require
that each development should be assessed on its respective merits and
requirements, in terms of the level of parking spaces to be provided for
example. Policy DMDA45 requires parking to be incorporated into schemes
having regard to the parking standards of the London Plan; the scale and
nature of the development; the public transport accessibility (PTAL) of the
site; existing parking pressures in the locality; and accessibility to local
amenities and the needs of the future occupants of the developments. Policy
DMD47 states that new development will only be permitted if there is no
adverse impact on highway safety and the free flow of traffic.

The amendments to the proposed development scheme will result in the
provision of a nursery classroom area on the proposed ground floor. The
proposed ground floor plan (Stern Thom Fehler, Dwg no. 1, Rev G) includes a
notation that the maximum capacity of nursery classroom 1 and 2 is to be 16
children (ie a total increase in children for the preparatory school of 32).

Traffic and Transport have no objections to the scheme given the school
operates an up to date Travel Plan and safely accommodates any additional
vehicular traffic.

The scheme proposes no parking and given that it is contained within the site
it would not impact upon highway safety, the free flow of traffic or pedestrians.

Sustainable Design and Construction

Sustainable urban Drainage Systems (SuDS)

DMD61 states in relation to managing surface water drainage that all
developments must maximise the use of and, where possible, retrofit
Sustainable Drainage Systems. A condition is proposed to secure those
details.

Energy

Information has not been provided in relation to energy saving measures. This
can reasonably be conditioned.

Ecology

Policy 7.19 of the London Plan (“Biodiversity and access to nature”) requires
development proposals to make a positive contribution, where possible, to the
protection, enhancement, creation and management of biodiversity. Core
Policy 36 of the Core Strategy confirms that all developments should be
seeking to protect, restore, and enhance sites. Policy DMD79 advises that on-
site ecological enhancements should be made where a development
proposes more than 100sgm of floor space, subject to viability and feasibility.

The development proposes an additional 98sgm above that approved. In
addition there are no trees and minimal landscaping in the location of the
extension.

Trees



6.5.6

6.5.7

6.5.8

6.5.9

6.6

6.6.1

7.1

Page 135

The applicant is relying upon the tree report submitted with the 2010
application. Ideally, an updated report should be provided however, the Tree
officer has confirmed that subject to securing details of a tree protection plan
(TPP) and an arboricultural method statement (AMS), the development
should not detrimentally harm any retained trees.

Site Waste Management

Policy 5.16 of the London Plan has stated goals of working towards managing
the equivalent of 100% of London’s waste within London by 2026, creating
benefits from waste processing and zero biodegradable or recyclable waste to
landfill by 2026. This will be achieved in part through exceeding recycling and
reuse levels in construction, excavation and demolition (“CE&D”) waste of
95% by 2020.

In order to achieve the above, London Plan policy 5.18 confirms that through
the Local Plan, developers should be required to produce site waste
management plans to arrange for the efficient handling of CE&D. Core Policy
22 of the Core Strategy states that the Council will encourage on-site reuse
and recycling of CE&D waste.

Details of a construction waste management plan can be secured through an
appropriately worded condition

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Educational development such as this is not CIL liable.
Conclusion

Having regard to all of the above, it is considered that on balance, planning
permission should be granted for the following reasons:

1. Itis considered that the identified harm to the openness of the Green Belt
has been sufficiently outweighed by special circumstances advanced in
this report that amount to the very special circumstances necessary to
justify the development. In this regard, the proposal would comply with
Policy 7.16 of the London Plan, Core Policy 33 of the Core Strategy,
DMD82 of the Development Management Document and with guidance
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular
section 9).

2. The proposed development provides for improved school accommodation
The development will assist the Council and the needs of existing and
new communities in accordance with Policy 3.18 of the London Plan,
Core Policies 8 & 11of the Core Strategy, DMD16 & 18 of the
Development Management Document and with guidance contained within
the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 8).

3. The proposed development, having regard to its size, siting and design
and by virtue of conditions imposed has appropriate regard to its
surroundings, the character and amenities of the local area and those of
adjoining occupiers and in this respect complies with Policies 7.1, 7.4 &
7.6 of the London Plan, Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, and national



Page 136

guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (in
particular section 7).

4. The proposed development, by virtue of the measures proposed and
conditions imposed, should achieve an acceptable level of sustainable
design and construction having regard to Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.6, 5.7,
5.8,5.95.13,5.17, 5.18 & 5.19 of the London Plan, Core Policies 20, 21
& 22 of the Core Strategy, DMD Policies 51, 53, 58, 59 and 61 of the
Development Management Document, as well as national guidance
contained with the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular
section 11).

8. Recommendation
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. CO060 Approved plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which
forms part of this notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.

2. C51A Time Limited Permission

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the
decision notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

3. CO07 Details of materials
The development shall nhot commence until details of the external
finishing materials to be used have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved detalils.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance.

4. Details of tree protection
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved
(including all preparatory work), a scheme for the protection of the
retained trees including a tree protection plan (TPP) and an
arboricultural method statement (AMS) in accordance with
BS5837:2012, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
approval in writing.
Specific issues to be dealt with in the TPP and AMS:

(a) Location and installation of services/ utilities/ drainage.



Page 137

(b) Methods of demolition within the root protection area ( RPA as
defined in BS 5837: 2012) of the retained trees

(c) Details of construction within the RPA or that may impact on the
retained trees

(d) Tree protection during construction indicated on a TPP and
construction and construction activities clearly identified as
prohibited in this area.

(e) Boundary treatments within the RPA

(H  Methodology and detailed assessment of root pruning

(g) Arboricultural supervision

(h) The method of protection for the retained trees

The development thereafter shall be implemented in strict accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: To protect existing planting during construction and in the
interest of biodiversity, sustainability, and to ensure that a satisfactory
standard of visual amenity is provided and maintained in accordance
with policies.

C41 Details of External Lighting

Prior to development commencing, details of the design, siting, lux
levels and measures to prevent external lighting affecting light
sensitive premises or ecologically sensitive areas in the vicinity of the
development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
approval in writing. The approved lighting scheme shall be
implemented prior to first occupation in accordance with the approved
detail and permanently maintained..

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the
amenities of adjoining occupiers and / or the visual amenities of the
surrounding area and to protect habitat values and the visual impact of
the Green Belt.

Sustainable Drainage Plan

Prior to development commencing, details of a sustainable drainage
plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in
writing. The submitted detail should demonstrate how the
development will not increase the discharge rate off site. The
submitted detail shall include:

(& A plan of the existing site.

(b) A topographical plan of the area.

(c) Plans and drawings of the proposed site layout identifying the
footprint of the area being drained (including all buildings,
access roads and car parks).

(d) The proposed storage volume.

(e) Information on proposed SuDS measures with a design
statement describing how the proposed measures manage
surface water as close to its source as possible and follow the
drainage hierarchy in the London Plan (DMD 61- 10.5.12).

(H  Geological information including borehole logs, depth to water
table and/or infiltration test results.

(g) Details of overland flow routes for exceedance events.

(h) A management plan for future maintenance.



10.

C.

Page 138

Reason: To manage surface water drainage in accordance with
DMD61.

SuDS Verification Report

Prior to occupation / first use of the development approved, a
verification report demonstrating that the approved drainage / SuDS
measures have been fully implemented shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval in writing.

Reason: In the interest of managing surface water runoff as close to
the source as possible in accordance with adopted policy.

Energy Saving Measures

The energy saving measures identified in the ‘Environmental design
statement’ shall be amended to consider the revised design and
submitted to Council for approval in writing prior to construction.
Before the development is first occupied, the developer shall submit to
the Local Planning Authority a statement confirming that the approved
energy saving measures has been so carried out.

Reason: In the interest of sustainability.

Construction Methodology / Traffic Management Plan
Prior to development commencing, the following detail shall be
provided to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing:

a) photographic condition survey of the roads, footways and verges
leading to the site;

b) wheel cleaning methodology and facilities (inclusive of how waste
water will be collected /managed on site);

c) the estimated number and type of vehicles per day/week;

d) details of any vehicle holding area;

e) details of the vehicle call up procedure;

f) A Construction Management Plan written in accordance with the
‘London Best Practice Guidance: The control of dust and emission
from construction and demolition’.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
detail

Construction Waste Management Plan

Prior to any development commencing, inclusive of site clearance,
details of a Construction Waste Management Plan shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The
Construction Waste Management Plan shall include as a minimum:

Target benchmarks for resource efficiency set in accordance with best
practice;

Procedures and commitments to minimize non-hazardous
construction waste at design stage. Specify waste minimisation
actions relating to at least 3 waste groups and support them by
appropriate monitoring of waste;

Procedures for minimising hazardous waste;



Page 139

d. Monitoring, measuring and reporting of hazardous and non-hazardous
site waste production according to the defined waste groups
(according to the waste streams generated by the scope of the works);

e. Procedures and commitments to sort and divert waste from landfill in
accordance with the waste hierarchy (reduce; reuse; recycle; recover)
according to the defined waste groups; and

f. No less than 85% by weight or by volume of non-hazardous
construction, excavation and demolition waste generated by the
development has been diverted from landfill

Reason: To maximise the amount of waste diverted from landfill
consistent with the waste hierarchy and strategic targets set by
Policies 5.17, 5.18, 5.19 of the London Plan.



v €l | vsesl

(80610}
2vE0 ssv8 (0z0) o7 ‘Aem
uoisiney ‘oN “Bmug “oN qor

Laia HI mscneﬁ— 10S 9N3 a131INg , saulan
e “a = ><\<—an—¢ JHL v ¢ ' 0 v suogesdyejudl) - 1410 - HI - ST'E0'ET
00TT NOILYAZ13 HLHON Q3SOdO¥d NOISNILX3 ONIM 1SV [l TOOHIS AYOLYYVdI¥d S.NHOT LS s - e WA - LI - M- STEOET soNPIY pasoE
— a1 Buimeiq jooloid Ul suoisiney J9|ya4 woyj uials

TAATTININISYE

Z

= | U

| - & EE EOE 1
1l %

n
N
N

R
N
n
N
L

|
i
|
i
|
i
|
i

il
i
|
i
il
i
|
il
il
il
|
il

al
l
AN
/]
AN
/]
AN
/]
AN
/]
AN
/]
AN
/]

Page 140

JK KK %
(0T0Z AINIVLEO LNISNOD

HiH 058'80T 19
1373140074 ST 144
B T oottt T
ONINNY1d HOIHM YO4 LVHL INOY4 d3Y3L1TV)

~ NOISN3LX3 ONIM 1SV3 d3S0d0Yd ~




UZIBUTF

5 10| VvSE8L
uolsinay ‘oN ‘Bmuig “ON qof
HI S10Z/€0/91
Ag aea

00T:T
s9|edg

NOISN3LX3 ONIM LSY3 §TO0HIS AYOLVY!

105 9N3 @131INg

59049 (806T0) 191 438 SHIW NG 'Sauka) UOYIA oyEN01 ‘auen hom
2v€0 S5v8 (020) 191 S0 ZN UoPUOY Aep UONNSSO OF.

VYM3IDAIY IHL v

9 Sjuswpudweudld - 14ld - HI - ST'E0°ZT
Fl - 141G - HI - ST'€0°90
El - 141G - HI - ST'Z00T
, wmmm_z, a - 1010 - HI - ST'TO€Z 14BuAdoo 1e SBuImeIp pue uBIseq
3 - 1010 - HI - ST'TO'ST 1991y a4) 01 Aouedaios|p 1o Ajujepsoun Aue ooy
[ I 0 M ‘puet 1om BuNd 210424 3} UO SUOISUBIP 03U
i

- 141d - HI - STTOET " p .
Moo D[ Mdia - M- STTOET 21635 10u 0q “Aluo SUoISUIWIP PAINBY 35N s1uyaY pasaiey)

suoisioy soton J13]ya4 woyy uins

015801+ ﬁ

067801+ #

2W8S'L8 _|_|U
TIVH @3aN3Lxa I

TIVH ONILSIX3

@ 3NN 83X M3IN
4

oopepr ¥

0ze'80L+ #

[ v snavmal
ONIUNYId M3N|  gzagars

057801+ #

0S¥'801L+ #
01€801+

TIVH 0L 55390V
a318¥510 13731 ¥3ddN MIN ONILNV1d ONILSIX3

2WL'8T
N3IHIOLIM

HONOUL ONIHSYM

3 URINALS
HONOUL ONIHSYM

INOOY 34V1S

058801+ #

i et W\uuuuuuuuuuuuuuﬂvu‘
C | i
'e) dft | |
! |
= L - i 1 4
\ ESSZ=ZZZZZSZZzz sy
T I ] ' L WW \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ ,‘L
T Il I Il I | [
1 1 1 1 1 | | I
" i 1" I i i ! i |
H,u\ e | g | R | | W
! B
I
\\\\\\ i
i
i
i
i

< SSV1I NOILd3D3Y

N

alon

(NI™QTHO 94 "xew)
ZWST'8E
CINOOYUSSYTD
AYISYNN

FUILIVY SUIVLS

(NI™QHO 94 "xew)
ZW88'9E
T INOOYSSV1D
AYISUNN

[onons o | [ ronouowm |

mkwl__Of 3SYNN

[

a

NOISN3LX3 ONIM LSV3 A3S0d0¥d

002201+ ﬁ

(0T0Z @3INIVLE0 LNISNOD

SNINNV1d HIIHM Y04 LVHL INOY¥4 a343L1V)

08€Z01+

L 0L+
V3V QIUVHS
5701+
aiv 1syid 1 SSV1D NOILdID3Y
-7 §
Mr/ A¥V13¥D3S TOOHIS
=4
|
M M JMda |
|
PocscoossETTiIoaacd
C =
S137101 NOILd3DTY i
i |
|
p=========F==i--Tw=3
jm] ml 0L6°201+ %

0097201+ ﬂ 05014
05201+ #

SNIATNG NIVIN ;v €T0C NOISN3LX3 ONIM hwmgl




€59 049 (806T0) 2L d38 I PG ‘sauAa)y uoIIA ‘uoydnon ‘auen Aon £
Nc <m”w _\ H ‘Sjuawpuawe Jud) - laa - ST'E0ZT 2vE0 SSv8 (0Z0) 3L SA0 ZN UOPUOY ‘AeM UCINSSO OF
suopesayje ) - - €0"
‘oN ‘BMg “ON o m mzanE"Z - H“M - M.mn.mm
STULAN 3 suoyesay|e ) - laa - ST'Z0°0T
Laia W 5102/S0/91 10DS 9N3 @131dN3 . | a suogesaje ¥ - laa - ST'T0'EZ WBuAdoo s1e sBumEsp pue uBISoq
2 suoge.ajje ) - laa - ST'T0'ST 19911421 93 0} Aouedauosip 1o Auteeoun Aue sojey
I Ag ajeq NV1d AVM3IDAIY JHL 12 T 3 0 g suonesdyje 3 - 1Q1d - HI - STTOET ] d vou
00T:T — ¥OOT4 LS¥Id a3S0dodd NOISNZLX3 ONIM LSV [ TOOHIS AHOLVHVdIdd S,NHOT LS - s - wowey - o - fa - awg - e et SPRUPIV PRIED
suoisiAe; a0 19|Yya4 wo uJo
sojeog oniL Bumesg Joofoig pUCTIE] IsiARY oN __.* 4 r_._. 1S

W6L'TY
9 INOOYSSV1)

WTTEY
S INOOYSSVTD

WEI0E ~

0507 .
INOOY 0\25_._

INOO¥a3g

Page 142

|
DO\
SMIHOVAL QvIH™

SWSESE “awoz'ge
¥ NQOYUSSV1D € INOOYSSY1D

(0TOZ Q3INIVLE0 LNISNOD
ONINNY1d HOIHM Y04 LYHL INO¥4 Q3¥3L1V)

;v NOISN3LX3 ONIM LSV3 A3S0d0¥d ;v ONIQTING NIVIN ;v €T0C NOISN3LX3 ONIM hmmgl




€59 049 (806T0) 2L d38 I PG ‘sauAa)y uoIIA ‘uoydnon ‘auen Aon £
J €0| VvseEslL 200 53v8 020 1 002N e e eSO
uoisiney ‘oN "B “oN qor
Laia w|  siozicoso 105 9N3 a1alNafl ST > SuoBeISHE UBID - 1QIQ - HI - ST'E0'0 Eﬁ
q suoyesayje Jual - 101g - HI ST°20°ST
) fa ogmn__ ><>>Wwﬂ_x JHL v ¢ g 0 v suoyesajje Jual - 1Qi@ - HI - ST'Z0'0T
00T:T _ NV1d 4003 a3S0d0odd NOISN3ILX3 ONIM LSV B TO0HIS AHOLVYHVd3Idd S,NHOf 1S - xns - wewed - o - ka - owa - S1RUY2IY pasariey)
sajeog P Joofon Jusld suoisiray sejoN J9|ya4 woy] uia1s
opu
qau Xnje, [TTT1
na
™ [
<
~—
<))
o
o

e

)

|

li

o

£
N

aof

e

(0T0Z Q3INIVLE0 LNISNOD
ONINNV1d HOIHM Y04 LVHL INOY4 a34311V)

NOISN3LX3 ONIM 1Sv3 A3S0d0¥d ;v ONIATING NIVIN




€59 0£9 (806T0) 2L d38 SHIN SPNG ‘sauAa) UOIIA ‘uoyBnon ‘aue Aon £
J 0| VSESL 0 5w 020 1 002N sopue Ao SO0
uoisinsy ‘oN ‘Bmig “ON qof
iaa W) sousos Losona arainaff sauan s B Hﬂ%
) g oreq NV1d T3A3T AVMIOANY JHLY v 2 v 0 M SueReicile oIy 1 4010 - HI- STE090 o 1 o DU S5 % 10 LB T
00T'T ANNOYD ¥AMOT AISOdOYUd NOISN3LX3 ONIM LSV3 [| TOOHIS AHOLVYYdI¥d S,NHOT LS R RS~ ot o0 o0 o suasueup pand osn sy pasaviey)
Soie8 opL Bumeig Yoloid 2l suolsinoy seloN J3|ya4 woy] uia1s
7
\\\
,
e
alon
[ I alon
M Wye 0z 39VY0LS 1INV1d
N T ¥V113D ONILSIX3
- IOVHOLS € ¥V1130 ONILSIX3 a
£ ¥VT13D MaN
(0] Ap9he _
(@) 39VHOLS
[0 8 4V1130 MaN
[ [
df]> x
Y] _, 2 /|
YL -—- _ AgE01 L aion
L] e %LY \E:du ONILSIX3
1 \LY i 4n wois|Fa1 [ ] ] INV1d
{ 0517901+ [
dft Y% i T YYT130 ONILSIX3
I
L 1
0€5°20L+
alon
140¥J¥3aNN
I I
ZW80'8¢E ZWEGIE | |
2 NOOY 3D110VYd T INOOY 3D110VHd

9 ¥V113D MaN S ¥VT130 MIN

| | —] T T —] | o |

= | i i | T

(0T0Z @3NIVLE0 LNISNOD
ONINNV1d HIIHM 404 LVHL INOY¥4 d343L1V)

¥ NOISN3LX3 DNIM 1SV3 03S0d0¥d ¥




€59 09 (806T0) 42 IW SPng ‘sauka) uolin ‘uoyinon ‘aue Aoy £
\ LL| VveESL o .1 5002 Uopuon e e g
uoisiney ‘oN Bmig “oN o
Laia HI|  siozsoil 1DS9N3 @13ENIf SN o e ssupme pue ubisoq Hﬁﬂ
L) Aa °ed AVM3IDAIY JHL 12 T L 0 v . 110 - HI - STEOET puet
00T:T _ NOILVAZT3 HLNOS d3S0dodd NOISNILX3 ONIM LSV3 [ T00HIS AHOLVYVd3dd S.NHOT 1S - ouns - o - k8 - erg - $1RUYIIY pasariey)
sojedg oniL Bumesg Jooforg Juann suoisinay sejoN LW-SW& EO—._.—. uJals
T 0s8'80T 19 M [

Page 145

T3IAITHOO0TS LST 144

00T°TTIT

1

W WY

RUAY

(0T0Z @3INIVLE0 LNISNOD

ONINNV1d HOIHM 404 LVHL NO¥4 434317V)
NOISN3LX3 ONIM 1SV3 3S0d0Yd




\ Zl| VveESL
uoisioy ‘oN “Bmid “oN dor
Laia HI 5102/0/91 1DS 9N3 Q13NN SN Kdos o ssumesp pue usoa
[0) ] req AVMIDAIY FHL v [4 v 0 v . laIa - HI - STEOET posi
00T:T NOILVA313 1SV3 a3S0d0odd NOISNILX3 ONIM LSV3 [ T00HIS AHOLVYVd3dd S.NHOT 1S o owns - ©oPo - ke - akd - SPAUPIY palatieyd
o oo s - suormoy soron J9|y24 woyl uias
T13ATT LINIANFSYE
I T -To)
//
[ N
/{/
T 7 ossg0r 19 T 0s880T 19
73AT1 OO 1ST 144 73A31HOOT 1ST 144

- " ootat | " oorat
< /
-— N N | LI ] ] [0 ) a7 C a1
(0]
(@)
[0
o

HEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE




€59 0£9 (806T0) 2L d38 SHIN HPNG ‘sdukay ‘uoyydno ‘auey Aom £
\ L€ | VSESL 29605598 (020) 1. 500 2 uopuo oo
uoisiAey ‘oN "Bmig “ON qor
E_n :_ ES%N ._.dmmEn_._uzzm_ Er
e_u >m 23 E<m._._Soms_o~_u_ >§>uun_xuf

v 141@ - HI - ST'VO'ET
! SIAOVINI MIIA IAT-S.aNIE NOISNILXT ONIM LSV J100HIS AHOLVYVdIYd S,NHOT LS - s - Mo - fa - ewa - ’ S19UYIY pasavIey)
oty Buimeig wooford ot 19]ya4 woy| uiais

TvVSOdOyd A3aSINIY 1N3ISNOD SNINNV1d LNV.LX3




1DS 9N3 a13idnNg
1SIM-HLYON WO¥4 AVM3DAIY 3JHL

pasayje agew - 10Ia - HI - STY0'EL
SIADVINI MIIA JAT-S.Qalg NOISN3LX3 ONIM 1SV ET00HIS AOLVYVdIdd S.NHOI LS - - -

PO - Ag - emaq - SPANYY pasauey)

s oo s oo suorsinoy J3|Yya4 woy) u1dls

1vSOdOYd A3sINIY 1N3ISNOD SNINNV1d LNV.LX3




€59 0£9 (806T0) d38 I PG ‘saukay oA ‘uoydnon ‘suet Aom £
\J €€ | Vve6eEsL 200 53v8 020 1 502N e e eSO
uolsinay ‘oN ‘Bmig “ON qof
Laia HI S10ZIV0/ET 105 9N3 @131INg E
P kg ejea NOILYAZT3 AVM3DAIY 3JHL

sjuaunsnipe JoWN - 14I0 - HI - ST'VO'ET
HLNOS a3S0dO¥d 40 IOVNAI NOISNZLX3 ONIM LSV [ TOOHIS AHOLVHVdIdd S,NHOT LS . : ped e aout U
sworsmon 19|ya4 woyy uis
a1 Buimelg 100fo1d




Ve | vseEel
uoisirey “oN ‘Bmig “ON qor
Laia HI SL0ZIY0/L0 105 9N3 @131INg
o kg sleq AVM3IDAIY JHL
_ NOILVAZT3 LSV 40 S3OVNI NOISN3LX3 ONIM 1SV B TO0HIS AYOLVHVd3dd S,NHOf LS
ol=o8 ap1L Buimeig yosfoig oo

- s -

oo

suoisiAay

I “woryEnoy
2v€0 S5v8 (020) 191 S0 ZN UoPUOY e UONNSSO OF.

T

S1RUY2IY pasariey)

J13]ya4 woyy uins

1vSOdOdd A3SINIY

1N3ISNOD SNINNV1d LNV.LX3




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 20 OCTOBER 2015
	4 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION  (REPORT NO. 124)
	5 15/02026/FUL  -  LAND END, 18 AND 20, BUSH HILL COTTAGE, BUSH HILL, LONDON
	6 15/03922/FUL  -  DEEPHAMS SEWAGE WORKS, PICKETTS LOCK LANE, LONDON, N9 0BA
	7 15/04171/RE4  -  4 AND 5, BURLEIGH WAY, ENFIELD, EN2 6AE
	8 15/04172/HOU  -  74 THE CHINE, LONDON, N21 2EH
	9 15/04050/RE4  -  VACANT LAND, MERIDIAN WAY, LONDON, N18 3HE
	10 15/04173/RE4  -  WILLOUGHBY LANE GAS WORKS, WILLOUGHBY LANE, LONDON, N17 0RY
	11 15/03266/FUL  -  ST JOHNS PREP SCHOOL, 497 THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, EN6 5QT

